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WELCOME MEMBERS OF PUBLIC 
 
 
OPENING PRAYER 
Heavenly Father, we ask you to give your blessing to this Council, direct and prosper its deliberations to 
the advancement of your glory, and the true welfare of the people of the Pyrenees Shire. 

Amen 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY 
 

We acknowledge the people past and present of the Wadawurrung, Dja Dja Wurrung, and Djab Wurrung 
tribes, whose land forms the Pyrenees Shire. 
 

We pay our respect to the customs, traditions and stewardship of the land by the elders and people of 
these tribes, on whose land we meet today. 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
 
NOTICE OF DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS 
 
 
CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Minutes of the: 

 Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 20 August 2019;   

 Closed Meeting of Council held on 20 August 2019  
 

as previously circulated to Councillors be confirmed as required under Section 93 (2) of the Local 
Government Act 1989. 

 
 
BUSINESS ARISING 
 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Questions 

 All questions and answers must be a brief as possible, and no debate or discussion will be allowed 
other than for the purposes of clarification 

 The number of questions that any person may ask at each meeting is limited to two. 

 A question may include a brief introduction. 

 A time limit of five minutes for each question will apply but the time may be extended at the 
discretion of the Chairperson. 
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 Questions will only be heard at a meeting if the person who submitted the question or their 
nominated representative, is present at the meeting. 

 The Chairperson or an Officer may: 
a. Immediately answer the question asked; or 
b. Require the question to be taken on notice. 

 
Submissions 

 Any member of the public wishing to address Council must submit a brief synopsis of the address in 
writing to the Chief Executive Officer a week prior to the Council meeting. 

 A time limit of five minutes for each address will apply but the time may be extended at the 
discretion of the Chairperson. 

 Council may decide to defer an address until a later date. 

 The Chairperson may, at their discretion, refuse a request to address Council. 

 Addresses will only be heard at a meeting if the person who submitted the synopsis, or their 
nominated representative, is present at the meeting. 

 
   



17 SEPTEMBER 2019 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR NOTING 

6 

ITEMS FOR NOTING  
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM 
 

1. BALLARAT REGIONAL TOURISM – MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Ray Davies – Manager Economic Development and Tourism 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  62/10/08 

 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update council regarding its Memorandum of Understanding with 
Ballarat Regional Tourism following the termination of the General Service Agreement between City of 
Ballarat and BRT. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council decided to renew its MOU with BRT which was completed in June, a short time prior to the 
announcement by City of Ballarat that it was terminating its GSA effective as of 30 September 2019. 
 

The effects of this decision will result in a significant reduction of $2.7M of annual income for BRT 
thereby making it unable to conduct business as usual beyond the end of September. 
 

In recent correspondence issued by BRT to its members, the organisation has proposed that its future 
role may be as an industry advocate rather than fulfilling the role it has performed to date in terms of 
marketing, industry development, product development and advocacy.  
 

At the time of drafting this report the AGM of BRT has been scheduled for 12 September at which time 
there are proposed changes to the constitution to take into account the above factors and including 
proposed changes to the composition of the board. 
 

The future of BRT is likely therefore, to be determined by its members at the AGM. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Due to the changed direction of BRT it will no longer be in a position to fulfil the obligations to Pyrenees 
Shire Council as outlined in the recently executed MOU. 
 

As such correspondence has been issued to BRT to formalise the retirement of the MOU. 
 

Alternatives to this agreement were reported to council in August and remain unclear at this time. 
 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 5 - Development and Environment. We will undertake forward planning, and 
facilitate growth in our local economy while protecting key natural and built environmental values. 
 

5.4 - Increase the visitor economy by implementing the Pyrenees Shire Council Tourism Strategy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The 2019/20 council budgets allow for annual financial commitment of $42,000-(excluding GST) for the 
MoU with BRT, which is included in the draft 2019/20 budget. 
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BRT have been paid for their services on a pro rata basis for services delivered during the September 
quarter. 
 
CONCLUSION 
BRT is no longer in a position to fulfil the obligations set out under the MOU exchanged in June, 
therefore requiring the deed to lapse. 
 

Correspondence has been issued to BRT to this effect. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council notes this report.  
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ASSET AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

2. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
Katie Gleisner – Manager Planning and Development 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  66/02/02 – 08/02/02 – 50/24/02 – 46/02/02 

 

 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update on activities within Planning, 
Development and Regulatory Services, during August 2019.  
 

This report includes four parts: 

 Part A: Planning 

 Part B: Building  

 Part C: Environmental Health 

 Part D: Community Safety and Amenities 
 

PART A: PLANNING 
The planning activity statistics for June and July 2019 are summarised in the table below:- 

 

Month 
Applications 

received 
Applications 
completed 

Number of 
referrals 

Requests 
for further 

information 

Estimated 
cost of 
works 

July 2019 14 11 5 8 $2.27M 

August 2019 10 8 1 5 $1.67M 

 
 

General Enquiries for May 2019 

Enquiry Type Number 

Pre purchase enquiry 53 

Pre application enquiry 41 

Existing permit enquiry 5 

Current application enquiry 45 

All other enquiries 61 

Total Enquiries 205 
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Statutory planning  
The planning permit applicants for a proposed highway service centre, west of Beaufort, have made an 
application to VCAT to have Council’s decision of refusal reviewed.  The hearing date for the review has 
been scheduled for January 2020. 
 

Planning enquiry statistics collected throughout August confirms that there is a steady interest in 
developing and investing within the Pyrenees. 
 
Strategic Planning   
Pyrenees Futures 
Council expects to have elements of the amended Avoca Streetscape Plan available to share with the 
community and other stakeholders by the end of September. Officers have requested that persons 
interested in the project register their contact details with council. This enables officers to more 
effectively communicate project updates as they become available.  
 

The Explanatory Report for the incorporation of Waubra, Lexton and Snake Valley framework plans is 
being prepared. This report will allow Council to seek Ministerial Authorisation to exhibit a proposed 
amendment to the Pyrenees Planning Scheme. 

 
PART B: BUILDING 
Activity 
The building activity statistics as at 31/07/2019 are summarised in the table below:  

 

CATEGORY NUMBER COMMENT 

Permits issued by private Building 
Surveyor 

18 Highest number for the year 

‘Property Information Certificates’ 
prepared and issued 

10  

‘Report and Consent’ issued 2  

Notices and orders  issued 5  

Building permit inspections undertaken 7  

Council issued permits finalised 1 ** Council have not issued building 
permits since June 2018 

 
Key projects & compliance  
The Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), on behalf of 79 Victorian councils, has prepared and 
submitted a response to the Swimming Pool and Spa Safety Standards Regulatory Impact Statement 
(RIS).  Whilst MAV generally supports the direction of the RIS, they have expressed concerns around 
the resourcing and financial implications that the new standards will have on Council and the 
community. MAV have also requested that an education and awareness campaign be developed and 
funded by the state to allow pool and spa owners to understand the new obligations and 
requirements. 
 

The Victorian Building Authority Levy Audit officer visited council during August. This was to ensure 
that mandatory inspection reporting is being undertaken in accordance with council’s legislative 
obligations. The audit confirmed that council is compliant and that there were no outstanding 
actions. 
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Council plan / legislative requirements 
- Council Plan 2013-2017  
- Building Act 1993 
- Building Regulations 2018 

 
Financial / risk implications 
The Municipal Building Surveyor must have regard to any relevant guidelines under the Building Act 
1993 or subordinate regulations. The building services department must ensure that a responsive 
service is provided that meets the demand of the building industry within the municipality. 

 
PART C: ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
Activity: Wastewater 
 

Period 
Applications to Install 
New or Alter Existing  
Septic Tanks Received 

Permits to 
Install 
Issued 

Approval 
to Use 
Issued 

Fees Paid 

1st – 31st  August 2019 7 4 1 $2,340 
Wastewater activity statistics for August 2019 

 

 
Monthly wastewater activity (August 2018 to August 2019) 

 

Wastewater related tasks for June 2019 

Septic Tank Inspections 7 

Domestic Wastewater Management Plan Inspections 4 

Domestic Waste Water Service Agent Reports 4 
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Activity: Food, Health & Accommodation Premises 
Food Act 1984 and Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 Premises activity   

Period 
New  

Premises 
 

Routine 
Inspections 

and 
Assessments 

 
Follow 

Up 
Inspections 

Complaints 
Received 

about 
Registered 
Premises 

Food 
Recalls 

Fees Paid 

1st–31st August 2019 0 15 0 1 2 $0 

   
Mobile and Temporary Food Premises in the Shire (Streatrader) 

Period 
New  

Applications 

New 
Class 4 

Notifications 

Routine 
Inspections 

and 
Assessments 

New 
Statements of 

Trade (SOT) 
Fees Paid 

1st-31st  August 2019 1 1 2 29 $60 

 
At 31st August 2019, Pyrenees Shire had 39 current registrations with 42 premises registered, 75 low 
risk notifications and 196 current Statements of Trade (SOT).   
 
Activity: immunisations 
Immunisation sessions were conducted in Beaufort and Avoca whilst the opportunistic immunisations 
performed by the Maternal Health nurses continued. A session was also run at the Beaufort Secondary 
School. 
 

Session Type 
Number of Clients & 
Vaccines 

2 Month -  4+ 
Yr Old 

Secondary 
School 

Adult 

MCHN Opportunistic 
Clients 25 0 0 

Vaccines  62 0 0 

Beaufort Sessions 
Clients 7 19 0 

Vaccines  13 19 0 

Avoca Session 
Clients 1 0 0 

Vaccines  3 0 0 
Immunisation activity statistics for August 2019 

Domestic Wastewater Management 
Properties in the township of Redbank have been sent letters and surveys in preparation for Domestic 
Wastewater Management Plan inspections which have been scheduled for September. 
 
Compliance issues  
Officers received one complaint in relation to a registered food premises and one Public Health and 
Wellbeing nuisance complaint.    
 

Work continues to identify prescribed accommodation businesses operating without registration. 
 
Council plan / legislative requirements 

- Council Plan 2013-2017 
- Domestic Wastewater Management Plan 2015-2018 
- Food Act 1984 
- Public Health & Wellbeing Act 2008 
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- Tobacco Act 1987 
- Environment Protection Act 1970 
- Code of Practice for Septic Tanks 

 
Financial / risk implications 
The Environmental Health Officer (EHO) must work with regard to various legislative requirements with 
respect to Food Safety (Food Act 1984), Public Health (Public Health & Wellbeing Act 2008, Environment 
Protection Act 1970), Tobacco (Tobacco Act 1987) and Wastewater (Environment Protection Act 1970, 
Domestic Wastewater Management Plan, Code of Practice for Septic Tanks).    
 

It is necessary for the EHO to adapt to any changes in regulations whilst still providing a service that 
meets the demands of residents within the municipality and complies with legislation.     
 
PART D: LOCAL LAWS AND ANIMAL CONTROL 
 
ACTIVITY - Animals 

 August 2019 Total Year to date 

Cats registered 607 - 

Dogs registered 2424 - 

Cats impounded 5 9 

Cats reclaimed 1 3 

Cats euthanised 1 3 

Dogs impounded 3 10 

Dogs reclaimed 3 8 

Dogs euthanised 0 1 

Stock impounded 3 6 
Registration and impoundment statistics 

 
ACTIVITY - Infringements 

 

Infringement Type June 2019 Total YTD (201/20) 

Domestic Animals Act 14 49 

Local Laws 4 9 

Road Safety Act 5 8 

Environment Protection Act 0 0 

Impounding of Livestock Act 0 0 

Other 0 0 

Total Infringements Issues 23 66 

Prosecutions 3 3 
Infringement statistics 

 
Three matters were heard in the Magistrates Court during August.  
 

 Unregistered Dog & Dog at Large  
Following a failure to pay two infringements, the matter was taken to court where the accused 
received an aggregate fine given of $616.00 without conviction and ordered to pay Council costs 
of $127.40. 
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 Unregistered Dog 
Following a failure to pay an infringement an unregistered dog, the matter was lodged in the 
Magistrates Court. The accused received a fine of $322.00 without conviction and ordered to pay 
Council costs of $84.40. 
 

 Dog Attack 
Following two attacks on separate occasions and a series of unpaid fines, the matter was lodged 
in the Magistrates Court where the accused received an aggregate fine of $2500.00 with a 
conviction. The accused was also ordered to pay Council costs of $127.40. 
 

Council plan / legislative requirements 

 Council Plan 2013-2017 

 Domestic Animals Act 1994 

 Domestic Animal Management Plan 2012-2016 

 Council Local Laws No. 2, No. 3 and No. 4 
 

Local laws and animal control summary 
1. A review of existing operational procedures is underway to strengthen the administration of 

Council’s Local Law. The review seeks to achieve fairness and consistency for residents of the 
shire, whilst ensuring that compliance is effectively achieved.  

2. Council continues to investigate matters of non-compliance across the Shire.  
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

3. CUSTOMER ACTION REQUESTS – JULY 2019 
Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/08/04 

 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update Council on requests made through the Customer Action Request 
System (CARS) for the month of August 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council has operated an electronic Customer Action Request System (CARS) for a number of years 
enabling residents to lodge service requests.  Requests can be lodged in person, via telephone, via 
Council’s website or by using a smart phone “Snap Send Solve” application. 
 

Service requests are received for operational issues regarding maintenance, pools, local laws, building 
maintenance and compliance matters.  The system is also used for internal telephone messaging and 
case management of some matters. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
214 CARS were received in August 2019, 75 of which related to telephone messages.  207 requests were 
closed during the month resulting in 254 outstanding..  As at the 31st August 2019 the status of CARS 
was as follows: 

 No change in 2017 outstanding CARS – currently at 2 

 Decrease by 2 in 2018 outstanding CARS to 14 

 20% decrease in total CARS outstanding (a decrease from 254 to 204) 
 

The following table shows an overview of requests received and outstanding by Ward.  Requests 
received over and above these numbers relate to telephone messages which are not allocated by Ward. 
 

 Avoca 

Ward 

Beaufort 

Ward 

De Cameron 

Ward 

Ercildoune 

Ward 

Mount Emu 

Ward 

Number of Requests 

received in August 2019 

30 37 20 19 33 

Requests received in 

August still outstanding 

8 12 12 7 15 

Outstanding requests 

older than 1 month 

35 35 12 19 24 

Total outstanding 

requests 

43 47 24 26 39 
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Year Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 % Change

2016 21        3          3          2          1          1          -      -      -      -      -      -            0

2017 29        18        12        10        6          4          3          2          2          2          2          2                0%

2018 110      91        143      155      105      65        36        22        17        15        16        14              -7%

2019 60        90        98        166      186      186      236      188            1%

Total 160     112     158     167     172     160     137     190     205     203     254     204           -20%

Total Received 67 97 149 101 178 160 216 203 303 182 258 214 18%

Total Outstanding Cars Requests
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

1.1 - Ensure local roads are maintained and renewed in line with adopted plans and strategy to provide 
a safe transport network and meet community needs. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The Customer Action Request System remains an integral part of Council’s reactive identification of 
issues that need attention, as well as case management of more complex matters.  Ongoing focus and 
effort continues with regard to resolution of customer requests in a timely and effective manner. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council notes the above report. 
 

Jul-19 Aug-19 Change

38 30 -8

2 2 0

24 24 0

7 9 2

13 13 0

0 1 1

0 1 1

36 14 -22

2 5 3

33 30 -3

0 0 0

2 0 -2

25 22 -3

1 1 0

4 4 0

10 8 -2

Cats 2 1 -1

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 1 1

1 2 1

0 0 0

0 0 0

1 0 -1

13 8 -5

5 3 -2

0 0 0

Telephone messages 34 25 -9

253 204 49Total

Pools

Dogs

Livestock Act

Parking

Council Cleaning

Design & Assets

GIS

Community Wellbeing

Roads

Streetlights

Drainage

30 July 2019 - Open Requests - Type

Footpaths

Roadside Vegetation

Environmental Health

Planning

Bld maintenance

Park & Reserves

Local Laws

Fire Hazard

Bld Compliance

EPA - Litter

Road Maintenance

Waste Management

Roads Unsealed

Road Maintenance Unsealed

Natural Disasters
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4. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  32/04/04 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update of the Audit & Risk Committee meeting 
held on 27th August 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In accordance with Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1989 Council is required to establish an 
Audit Committee.  Council’s Audit & Risk Committee meets three times per year and the attached 
report is a summary of the meeting held on 27th August 2019. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
A brief overview of the issues considered by the Audit & Risk Committee is provided for Council’s 
information: 
 

 The 2018/19 Year End Financials, Council’s Performance Statement and Auditor’s management 
letter and closing report were introduced by Council’s Manager Finance and external auditors, 
Crowe Australia.  A clean audit outcome was reported and the financial documents were 
adopted in principal by the Committee. 

 The 2019/20 final budget document was provided to the Committee. 

 An internal audit report was provided to the Committee by Council’s Internal Auditors, AFS & 
Associates.  The audit was conducted on Council’s risk management framework and findings 
identified seven areas of strength and six areas of risk.  Recommendations have been included 
within the Outstanding Issues Register for action. 

 AFS & Associates facilitated a self-assessment of Audit & Risk Committee performance and the 
final report was provided to the Committee.   

 An internal audit report was provided to the Committee following a review of outstanding 
issues.  Following this review, 14 items were deemed complete and the Committee authorised 
their closure. 

 A full report on outstanding issues and progress against them was provided to the Committee. 

 AFS & Associated provided an internal audit program status update and the Committee 
approved recommendations for change to: 

o Remove the planned 2019/20 internal audit on emergency management as oversight of 
this at present remains constant; and 

o Introduce two new internal audits to the 2019/20 program focusing on procurement 
governance and cash management practices.  

 Governance, risk & compliance updates were provided to the Committee. 

 A report on annual leave balances and work undertaken to reduce leave balances was 
provided.   

 A report on the recent audit undertaken by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office (VAGO) on 
fraud & corruption in local government was discussed, and a report provided by AFS & 
Associations on recent reports and publications of interest to Councils. 
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 An update of VAGO’s performance audit program was provided.  It was noted that, although 
the Pyrenees Shire Council was not included within any of planned audits in 2019/2020 or 
2020/2021, councils had not yet been nominated for future years. 

 The CEO provided a report on current issues for the Pyrenees Shire Council. 
 
In General Business Cr Ferrari sought clarification on two issues: 
 

 Whether a request for traffic light reporting on Customer Action Requests will be implemented.  
It was confirmed that this is under development. 

 Whether employee exit interviews were being conducted, what data would be collected and 
how would it be used.  It was confirmed that the process is under review but that feedback 
provided is used in guidance / advice provided to supervisors.  Overall it was confirmed that a 
good understanding is in place as to why people leave and that knowledge is used 
constructively for improvement.   

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery 
in an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
 

4.4 - Develop our systems to support and enable our people to deliver efficient and quality services 
which are cost effective. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
4.1 - Draft Minutes of the Audit & Risk Committee Meeting of 27th August 2019 - circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
All financial issues have been addressed in the Issues/Discussion section. 
 
CONCLUSION 
In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 the Pyrenees Shire Council’s Audit & Risk 
Committee met on the 27th August 2019.  This report summarises the items considered by the 
Committee. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council notes the minutes of the Audit & Risk Committee meeting held on 27th August 2019. 
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5. COUNCILLOR ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Cr David Clark – Ercildoune Ward 

August 

Fri 09 Rainbow Serpent Drug Response Workshop Ballarat 

Tue 13 Councillor Briefing Session Avoca 

Wed 14 Recognition Event – Projects  Avoca 

Thu 15 CVGA Board Meeting  Ararat 

Mon 19 Raglan Flood Study Consultation Raglan 

Tue 20 Councillor Briefing  Beaufort 

Tue 20 Council meeting Beaufort 

Wed 21 Pyrenees Store Cooperative Meeting  Lexton 

Mon 26 Rural South Central MAV Regional Meeting Bannockburn 

Mon 26 Highlands LLEN Committee Meeting  Ballarat 

Fri 30 State Landcare Awards, Government House Melbourne 
 

 

Cr Robert Vance – De Cameron Ward 

August 

Thu 01 Committee for Ballarat Round Table Creswick 

Mon 05 Meeting with Andy Meddick MP Beaufort 

Fri 09 Rural Councils Victoria Meeting Melbourne 

Tue 13 Councillor Briefing Session Avoca 

Wed 14 Recognition Event – Projects  Avoca 

Sat 17 Ngardang Girri Kalat Minimi Art Exhibition and Dinner Maryborough 

Sun 18 Commemoration of Vietnam Veterans Day Beaufort 

Tue 20 Community Safety Advisory Meeting Landsborough 

Tue 20 Councillor Briefing  Beaufort 

Tue 20 Council meeting Beaufort 

Mon 26 MAV Rural South Central Regional Meeting Bannockburn 

Thu 29 Central Highlands Councils Victoria Mayors and CEOs Meeting  Beaufort 
 

 

Cr Damian Ferrari - Beaufort Ward 

August 

Tue 13 Councillor Briefing Session Avoca 

Tue 20 Councillor Briefing  Beaufort 

Tue 20 Council meeting Beaufort 
 

 

Cr Tanya Kehoe - Mount Emu Ward 

August 

Tue 13 Councillor Briefing Session Avoca 

Tue 20 Councillor Briefing  Beaufort 

Tue 20 Council meeting Beaufort 
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Cr Ron Eason – Avoca Ward 

August 

Wed 07 AGM Senior Citizens Avoca 

Tue 13 Sunraysia Hwy Meeting  St Arnaud 

Tue 13 Councillor Briefing Session Avoca 

Wed 14 Recognition Event Avoca 

Sun 18 25th Anniversary – Neighbourhood Watch Avoca 

Tue 20 Councillor Briefing  Beaufort 

Tue 20 Council meeting Beaufort 

Tue 27 Audit & Risk Committee Meeting Beaufort 
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6. ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS 

MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 13 August 2019 commenced at 2.00pm and closed at 5.30pm 

Meeting Location Avoca RTC Room at Avoca Information Centre 
 

Matters Discussed 1. 2019/20 Rate Modelling 
2. Murray Darling Association 
3. School Crossing Supervisor Scheme 
4. Officers for the Protection of Local Government 
5. VCAT Matter 
6. Avoca Streetscape Plan 
7. Project Update 
8. OPAN Project 
9. Issue of Permits to Burn under the CFA Act 
10. Resourcing 
11. Agenda Review 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr Robert Vance  Cr Damian Ferrari 

Cr Ron Eason  Cr David Clark 

Cr Tanya Kehoe  

Apologies Nil 

Staff Jim Nolan (Chief Executive Officer) 
Douglas Gowans (Director Asset and Development Services) 
Kathy Bramwell (Director Corporate and Community Services) 
April Ure (Manager Governance, Risk and Compliance) – Item 1 
Janette Haines (Property Revenue Officer) – Item 1 
Katie Gleisner (Manager Planning and Development) – Item 6 

Visitors Nil 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Matter No: Councillor making 
disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure Councillor left 
meeting 

Nil    

 

CEO Jim Nolan declared an interest in one element of item 11 involving the CEO Contract.  
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MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 20 August 2019 commenced at 2.00pm and closed at 5.45pm 

Meeting Location Beaufort Council Chambers - 5 Lawrence Street, Beaufort 
 

Matters Discussed 1. Beaufort & Skipton Health Services  
2. Regional Tourism Review 
3. Community Planning Process Reviews 
4. Engagement with Aboriginal Parties 
5. Surplus Government Land Identified for Disposal 
6. Council Art Collection 
7. Major Projects Update 
8. Stockyard Hill Wind Farm 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr Robert Vance  Cr Tanya Kehoe (4.45pm) 

Cr David Clark Cr Damian Ferrari 

Cr Ron Eason  

Apologies Nil 

Staff Jim Nolan (Chief Executive Officer) 
Douglas Gowans (Director Asset and Development Services) 
Kathy Bramwell (Director Corporate and Community Services) 
Ray Davies (Manager Economic Development and Tourism) – Item 2 
Carmel Pethick (Community Wellbeing and Grants Coordinator) – Item 3 
Martin Walmsley (Manager Community Wellbeing) – Item 3 

Visitors Nick Shady (Chair of BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 
Malcolm Fletcher (BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 
Carita Clancy (BSHS Board Member) – Item 1 
Len Carey (BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 
Darren White (BSHS Corporate Service Manager) – Item 1 
Narelle Harrison (BSHS – CEO EA) – Item 1 
Lynne Dickman (BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 
Chris Johnston (BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 
Frank Carland (BSHS Foundation) – Item 1 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Matter No: Councillor making 
disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure Councillor left meeting 

Nil    

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the items for noting be received. 
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ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM 

 

7. MOBILE LIBRARY SERVICE DELIVERY 
Ray Davies – Manager Economic Development and Tourism 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item.   
File No:  42/06/08 

 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update council on activity levels in respect of circulation/lending levels, 
demand for holds/reserves, active membership levels, and average monthly attendance levels at the 
three mobile library outreach sites presently supported by Pyrenees Libraries, being Landsborough, 
Lexton and Snake Valley.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Since council assumed responsibility for provision of mobile library outreach services following the 
dissolution of the Central Highlands Library Corporation in 2012,   mobile library services have been 
provided at the following sites:- 
 

 Snake Valley Primary School – weekly – two hours each Wednesday 2-4pm 

 Lexton - at the Lexton Rural Transaction Centre (RTC)- every second week – alternating with 
Landsborough – Tuesday from 10-30-11.30am; 

 Landsborough – at the Landsborough Resource Centre - every second week – alternating with 
Lexton – Tuesday from 10-30-11.30am 

 

Activity levels for the current sites are provided in the table below. 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/2017 2017/18 2018/19 

Landsborough 

Ave monthly circulation* 97.2 65.7 35.75 25.58 37.25 

Ave monthly holds ± 24.9 13.9 6.91 6.75 7.25 

Membership 31.5 27.33 30.8 30.16 32.91 

Ave monthly attendance   12.5 23.41 30.91 

Lexton 

Ave monthly circulation 84.3 90.5 62.91 56.75 31 

Ave monthly holds 9.6 13.8 13.83 15.6 9.5 

Membership 22.75 23 25.8 21.83 19.5 

Ave monthly attendance   25.25 14.16 9.16 

Snake Valley 

Ave monthly circulation 91.6 120 232.5 127.08 78.66 

Ave monthly holds 22.9 18.2 46.75 27.25 12.41 

Membership 40.33 57 86.25 91.16 92.1 

Ave monthly attendance   74.16 50.5 56.83 

 

 * Circulation is the term used for library items out on loan 
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 ± The data on holds is likely to be distorted due to operational systems in place for these 
borrowings. There is a process for managing holds whereby library staff discharge hold items 
received via courier from Ballarat into the Beaufort Library. These items include the holds for the 
outreach sites. To reflect an item is a hold for an outreach site staff are required to complete an 
additional function in the library computer system by opening the program for the relevant site 
and marking the item as in transit for collection by the library member. There are circumstances 
from time to time where this additional step does not occur due to time constraints and work 
load. The item on hold is still sent out for collection at the intended outreach site and is able to 
be picked up by the library member without any inconvenience. However the statistics under 
this situation will not reflect the hold as being domiciled to the outreach site.    The rate at which 
holds are requested by members is unpredictable. 
 

Activity levels recorded in the statistics on the previous page are represented in graphical form below 
in order to show the activity and trends visually 
 
Landsborough 

 
 
Lexton 
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Snake Valley 

 
 
Landsborough 
The Landsborough mobile library outreach service operates every second Tuesday, alternating with the 
Lexton service.  While activity levels at Landsborough in 2018-2019 recorded increases across all activity 
levels, the overall activity level and trend lines are steady.  Attendance numbers increase and decrease 
from fortnight to fortnight, and are influenced by factors such as school holiday breaks, scheduled 
activities at the local primary school that involve students in other activities, illness or holidays. 
On some weeks there have been as few as one or two people attend, generally during school term 
breaks.  The teachers at the local primary school routinely schedule a visit during the hour of service 
every fortnight, and the service is valued and well received by both teachers and students alike. 
 

The Landsborough outreach consumes three hours staff time to pack materials, travel and operate 
services at the site for one hour. 
 
Lexton 
Activity levels at the Lexton mobile site in 2018-2019 recorded decreases across all activity levels, and 
the overall activity level and trend line are in decline.  During 2018-2019, the fortnightly Lexton service, 
which operates every second Tuesday, alternating with the Landsborough service, was attended by a 
small group of regulars, usually four, sometimes five, per session. 
 

The local situation at Lexton is very much a story of a small rural village that is in essence a crossroads 
community.  Many adults of working age travel away from Lexton for work, unless they are employed or 
occupied in local agricultural enterprises.  Some travel to Ballarat for employment, and reportedly make 
use of the services and facilities available to them in the larger regional centre.  There is no school or 
kindergarten in Lexton, and students travel to Waubra or elsewhere for their education, returning at the 
end of the school day.  Secondary students who travel to Ballarat, Beaufort or Maryborough for classes 
have access to school and local public library services.  On a daily basis, those who remain in Lexton are 
retirees, some of whom do not have ready access to independent means of transport.  The Lexton 
mobile library service operates from a small room at the back of the Lexton Rural Transaction Centre, 
and the regular local patrons of the service anticipate the  fortnightly pattern of mobile service and 
arrive, generally at once,  shortly after commencement of the service at 10.30am.  The small number of 
local regulars who make use of the service every fortnight have established a good relationship with the 
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Customer Service Officer who provides the service, and their reading preferences are understood and 
anticipated if holds have not been placed. 
 

The decreases in attendance numbers have been gradual, but shaped very much by generational change 
- arrival of new residents, with evidence of a younger demographic emerging and departures of older 
residents.  The older regulars who attend the mobile library are happy with service levels and will 
continue to patronize the service.  However, as their numbers decrease, new, incoming residents, or 
those who travel out for employment and education, often have their needs for library and other 
services catered for elsewhere, or are less interested in the provision of this form of local library service. 
In the immediate future, attendance and usage trends at Lexton are static or in decline. 
 

During the period of the Central Highlands Library Corporation, a mobile service was delivered 
fortnightly in Waubra, a service of 45 minutes with average monthly circulation of 24.8 items.  In 2018-
2019, average monthly circulation numbers at Lexton mobile were recorded at 31 items, which exceeds 
those last recorded at Waubra before the mobile service ceased.  Overall however, the figures show that 
circulation rates at Lexton are in decline, and there is really nothing to suggest that this will be reversed 
in the foreseeable future. 
 

The Lexton outreach presently consumes three hours staff time to pack materials, travel and operate 
services at the site for one hour. 
 
Snake Valley 
The Snake Valley mobile library outreach service operates on a weekly basis every Wednesday in a 
dedicated room at the Snake Valley Primary School.  Activity levels at Snake Valley in 2018-2019 
recorded decreases in circulation (Loans of items) and holds requested, while there were increases in 
active membership and average monthly attendance figures.  Overall activity levels and trend lines are 
volatile showing increases and decreases from year to year.  On the available data, circulation trended 
upwards during the period 2014-17, spiking in 2016-2017.  There is no explanation that can be offered 
to explain the almost doubling of the circulation rate during 2016-17.  In 2017-18. circulation dropped 
again back to just above the level recorded in 2015-16.  In 2018-19, circulation decreased by just under 
forty percent on the figures recorded in 2017-18.  Personnel changes during 2018-19 due to illness, 
absence and eventual retirement of the popular staff member who operated the mobile service may 
account for some of the decrease.  Despite these interruptions, service levels were maintained and 
monthly attendance figures increased slightly, as did membership, while recorded monthly averages for 
holds decreased by half.  The local book club continues its activities and remains active. 
 

Staffing for Snake Valley is filled by one staff member with an allocation of four hours, to enable books 
to be packed, travel time and operate services at the site for two hours. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
In general terms, the mobile library services at Landsborough and Snake Valley are valued and well 
regarded by the schools in the communities in which they operate.  Membership levels at these sites are 
steady or exhibit a slight increase.  While circulation levels at Landsborough show a slight increase, 
lending remains essentially steady.  However Snake Valley’s lending figures exhibit unpredictable 
variability from year to year. 
 

At the time that a fortnightly service pattern was implemented at the Lexton and Landsborough mobile 
library sites, consideration was given to development of book exchanges and static library displays at 
both sites.  These ideas were not carried forward. 
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Recently announced joint economic initiatives in the areas contiguous to Landsborough may well act as 
the catalyst for an increase in the population of Landsborough, with the prospect that such an increase 
holds out for increased activity and demand for services in the town, including library, local services, 
retail and education. 
 

Unfortunately, similar stimuli are not in prospect for Lexton, and on the balance of probabilities, 
demand for the fortnightly mobile service may decline.  Lexton is showing small signs of becoming a 
destination of choice for metropolitan city dwellers who are seeking a quieter life in a rural setting 
situated within proximity to a range of services.  It is from this source that incoming residents may 
stimulate and re-energize demand for the fortnightly mobile library service. 
 

Snake Valley mobile continues to be well attended and used, despite the volatility from one year to the 
next in activity levels.  Like Lexton, Snake Valley continues to attract new residents, and it is from this 
source that additional patronage of the weekly mobile service will likely be sourced. 
 
Recommendation 

 That mobile library outreach services continue to be provided at present levels; 

 that activity levels at all three sites continue to be monitored to identify changing demands and 
trends 

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 2 - Community 
 

2.8 – Promote the use of community hubs and resource centres to enhance the community’s 
educational, training and social networking opportunities to maximise the utilisation of community 
assets. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The cost of library operations will not change by implementing these recommendations. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 
 

1. Supports service provision at the three mobile library outreach sites with the existing service 
levels and frequency. 

2. Monitors activity levels at the three existing sites to identify changing demands and trends. 
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8. RV FREE CAMPING 
Ray Davies – Manager Economic Development and Tourism 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item.   
File No:  62/22/06 

 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide council an interim report on the Beaufort RV free camp site. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council established a trial RV free camp site at 10 Audas Lane Beaufort in late 2018 and RV dump point 
earlier this year. 
 

The free camp was established as a means of Beaufort qualifying for RV Friendly Town status with the 
Campervan and Motorhome Club of Australia (CMCA) and was selected as the preferred option after 
consideration of the sites outlined below:- 
 

1. The former Beaufort Primary School oval. The site is highly visible from Neill Street and while it 
provides excellent access to the town it is considered unsuitable for the following reasons:- 
a. The property is owned by the State Government, is therefore not under Council control 

without negotiating some form of lease arrangement. This would be at an added cost to 
Council in terms of officer time and potential added cost of rental payments, therefore 
impacting on other council services. While the State Government is intending to sell the land 
involved, Council would need to consider the budgetary consequences and whether these 
may have impacts on other council priorities. 

b. The site can become sodden during wet weather and without developing some form of road 
structure could become unsightly.  

c. Added costs of maintenance by Council staff. 
d. The site is located in the flood zone. 
e. Having full visibility of a free camp site adjacent to the towns CBD may not create the best 

image of the town for visitors, passing traffic and residents. 
f. There will be broader community consultation undertaken through the Pyrenees Futures 

Project in the near future, which may identify alternative treatments to the site. 
2. Adjacent to the Beggs Street Playground. This site has the advantage of being Council owned 

property and also provides convenient access to nearby public toilets and the towns’ retail centre. 
However as Council has plans to continue developing facilities for the towns’ youth at this location 
this site will not be available in the longer term and has been excluded from further consideration 
for RV purposes. 

3. Land adjacent to the former goods shed on the north side of the Beaufort Railway Station. Council 
currently holds a head lease for this site which is owned by the State Government and sub-let to 
Lake Goldsmith Steam Preservation Association for the purposes of their steam museum. The site 
is elevated, sewerage infrastructure is available should a future dump point be required, it 
provides convenient access to Camp Hill and the town centre and may be a reasonable option to 
consider. LGSPA have verbally indicated that they are willing to make this option available for an 
RV site. Having a free camp site opposite the railway station platform may however be 
objectionable to train passengers and RV campers alike. There are also a number of residents who 
would have full visibility of the site from their properties. Additionally visitors to the LGSPA 
museum could have their access impeded by free campers.  
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4. Council owned land that includes the facilities of the Beaufort Apex and Croquet Clubs at 10 Audas 
Lane Beaufort. The location is more discreet than options 1-3 but still provides easy access to the 
retail area which is within walking distance via footpaths. There are four residents and a church 
nearby to the site which has good screening via fencing at the rear of these properties. The site is 
also well located for people wanting to take advantage of walking facilities nearby at Beaufort 
Lake. 

5. Raglan Recreation Reserve which has been discounted due to its distance from the town centre 
and lack of sewerage facilities.  

 

It was decided to trial the site at Audas Lane for a period of twelve months with an interim report after 
six months operation.  
 

Daily use of the site (during weekdays) was monitored at the beginning of each day in the period 27 
February up to and including 1 June 2019 with the following observations. 

 During the period 27 February to 31 March the use of the site peaked on 12 and 13 March 
(following the Labour Day public holiday) with up to five RV users observed at the site. There 
were 25 RV campers recorded in total during this period while there were nine days where no 
RV’s were observed 

 During April 36 RV units were observed and only one day where campers were not noted at the 
site 

 During May there were 31 RV units observed for the month, however there was a peak of up to 
seven RV’s at the site following the Lake Goldsmith Steam Rally weekend with patronage 
declining later in May. 

 

The data for the latter part of May is indicative of the reduced trade from RV’s during the onset of the 
winter period and therefore consistent with occupancy trends at the local caravan park. The peak 
periods for camping activities in the region generally occur between the beginning of spring and the end 
of autumn, generally reducing after ANZAC day, and in the case of Beaufort following the steam rally. 
 

Based on these observations which only include weekdays, there were a total of 93 units using the site 
with up to seven units using the site at any one time. Assuming an average of one and one half people 
for each RV unit, then the estimated economic return (at an average visitor spend in the Pyrenees of 
$109- per night) for this period would amount to at least $15,205-. It is highly likely for there to have 
been other patrons using the site at weekends and over public holidays that were not captured in this 
data.  
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The trial of the free camp site has proven effective to date with regular use during the period under 
review and further observations of the site to be conducted during spring 2019. 
 

While there has been some community interest to see the site relocated to the former Beaufort primary 
school oval, that site currently remains under the control of the Victorian Government, with potential 
future uses of the site likely to be investigated during the consultancy phase due in Beaufort of the 
Pyrenees Futures project. 
 

The reasons for selecting the Audas Lane site as the preferred option as mentioned earlier in this report 
also remain relevant. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 5 - Development and Environment. We will undertake forward planning, and 
facilitate growth in our local economy while protecting key natural and built environmental values. 
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5.4 - Increase the visitor economy by implementing the Pyrenees Shire Council Tourism Strategy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council invested $38,306- to establish the free camp site (not including the RV dump point) with 
maintenance of the facility (similar to its previous use) being built into councils existing operational 
budgets. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The existing free camp site is being well utilised and remains the preferred option at this time. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council receives a further report on the free camp site following the completion of the twelve 
month trial. 
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ASSET AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 

9. PETITION – MORE FOOTPATHS IN BEAUFORT 
Douglas Gowans – Director Asset and Development Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 58/12/06 

 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to seek Councils response to a petition from members of the Beaufort 
Community relating to lack of footpaths in the Beaufort township. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A report was presented to Council at its August 2019 meeting in relation to a petition received regarding 
the current lack of suitable walking paths around the township of Beaufort. 
 
The petition received contained 39 signatures and states the following: 
 

“Support: The construction of a footpath along one side of every street within the limits of 
the Beaufort Township. 
 
Summary: Current lack of suitable walking paths around the township of Beaufort is placing 
the lives of our residents (young and old) at ‘risk’. 

- One from the cars with whom they currently share the road 

- Two from a lack of exercise due to the insufficient safe surfaces on which to use 
mobility aids, bikes, scooters, roller skates or even walk/run. 

The undersigned petition supports the construction of a ‘Footpath’ along one side of every 
street within Beaufort.” 

 
When Council received the petition via email there was also correspondence that specifically referenced 
the lack of footpaths in South Street, Beaufort.  
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Council undertook the Beaufort Walkability project in 2016 that sought to provide a strategic direction 

for footpath connectivity needs within Beaufort. Council was able to leverage this plan to successfully 

gain funding from the Federal Government to address the lack of footpath linkage between the Beaufort 

township and the school precinct. Council has additionally allocated funds to provide a path connection 

between Correa Park and the township. This work was completed in June 2019.  

The Beaufort Walkability Plan does not currently inform future footpath connections for sealed streets 

or provide a prioritisation of missing footpath infrastructure.  

Council currently has responsibility for 7.6 kms of footpath within the township of Beaufort. Some key 
commercial precinct streets currently have a footpath on each side of the road.  There are currently 20 
kms of sealed streets within Beaufort.  
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Council also has responsibility for a number of others population areas where there are footpath needs. 
The following information is provided to assist Council to consider this petition in relation to other 
township areas. 
 

Urban Roads with Footpaths 
 

Townshi
p 

 

Population 
Road Lengths 

(km) 

Footpath Lengths 
(km) 

Amphitheatre 248 1.10 0.04 
Avoca 972 20.41 5.05 
Beaufort 1,072 20.03 7.60 
Evansford 131 0.38 0.00 
Landsborough 180 2.27 1.58 
Lexton 231 6.24 0.27 
Moonambel 167 0.70 0.48 
Raglan 231 1.43 0.00 
Redbank 94 1.51 0.03 
Snake Valley 743 7.22 4.85 
Waubra 275 3.95 0.40 

 
It is worth noting that the majority of footpath lengths shown in the above table relate to concrete 
footpaths, however it should be noted that the majority of Snake Valley’s footpaths are gravel only 
footpaths. Gravel footpaths are problematic from a maintenance perspective but have been provided in 
some locations for aesthetic and/or capital cost reasons.  
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 1 - Roads and Townships. We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure 
in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the community. 
 

1.2 - Maintain and renew Council's facilities and built assets in line with community service needs. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
9.1 Petition 
9.2 Map of existing footpath network in Beaufort 
9.3 Map of existing footpath network in Avoca 
9.4 Walkability Plan – circulated separately 

 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The current cost per 1.0 kilometre of a new concrete footpath at 1.5m width is $200,000. Therefore, if 
Council was to fully meet the petition request an additional $3.2 million would need to be sourced. 
Council currently annually allocate $26,000 towards footpath maintenance and renewal for its entire 
network.  
 

Council has mainly funded new footpaths where there has been a co-contribution from a funding body. 
Council has set aside funds of $106,566 to leverage external funds to further undertake elements of the 
Beaufort Walkability Project. Since the funding and completion of Stage 1 of the walkability project, an 
appropriate funding opportunity has yet to be identified. 
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Council could undertake new footpath works via the funding vehicle of a shared scheme. This requires 
support from direct beneficiaries eg. land owners that front the road reserve where the new 
infrastructure is to be built, directly contributing to the cost of the new piece of infrastructure.  
 

The benefits of such a scheme include the delivery of new infrastructure in a timelier manner as Council 
can leverage external funds from ratepayers to contribute to its own limited funds. The problems with 
such a scheme include the claim from some ratepayers that previous infrastructure has been fully 
funded and can create a divide within the community. An additional problem is that the administration 
of such a scheme requires a high level of resourcing and requires a majority of impacted property 
owners to commit the scheme. 
 

One of the issues that could arise if a shared funding scheme was applied in response to this petition, is 
the petition does not necessary represent any one group of residents (eg South Street residents). It is 
unclear whether the petitioners would be prepared to directly contribute to the cost of new 
infrastructure.   
 
CONCLUSION 
Footpath infrastructure is an important element of providing connectivity that makes communities 
liveable. There are significant costs associated with installing new footpath infrastructure. Council 
should plan for new footpath infrastructure taking into account equable outcomes across the shire.  
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

That Council: 
 

1. Reviews the Beaufort Walkability Plan to reflect the recent footpath connections and 
provide a prioritisation of key missing connections to assist Council to determine the most 
needed footpath infrastructure.  

2. Continues to seek funding opportunities to expand the footpath network within Pyrenees 
Shire. 

3. That Council writes to the author of the petition to advise of the outcome of Council’s 
consideration of the petition. 
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

10. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 
Shana Johnny – Manager Finance 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  32/08/30 

 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to give in principle approval to the Financial Statements and 
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Council currently has Crowe Horwath as its external auditor under subcontract by the Victorian Auditor 
General’s Office.  Crowe Horwath conducted the external audit on the 2018/19 Financial Statements 
during the period 5 - 9 August 2019. The audited draft Financial Statements and Performance 
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were tabled at the Pyrenees Shire Council Audit and Risk 
Advisory Committee meeting on Tuesday 27th August 2019. The Committee has recommended that 
Council sign the statements in their final form. 
 

The audited financial statements must be submitted to the Minister within 3 months of the end of the 
financial year (30 September 2019). The Financial Reporting process includes presenting the statements 
to the Audit Advisory Committee, the Committee making a recommendation to Council, Council 
approving the statements “in principle” with the understanding that the Auditor General’s Office may 
still require changes to be made. This process is required to be completed prior to 30 September 2019. 
Meeting this timeline ensures the audited financial statements can be included in the 2018/19 Annual 
Report 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Throughout 2018/19 Council continued to work on balancing the expectations of the community with 
the need to ensure that the financial foundations of Council remain strong and capable to meet the 
challenges of the future. 
 

Council continually seeks to find the right balance between community expectations and financial 
responsibility. A commitment to cost restraint and the provision of value-for-money services for the 
community, combined with the continual refinement of the Long Term Financial Plan constitutes the 
financial framework that Council uses to address this balance. This financial framework remains 
imperative and continues to drive Council’s financial decisions. 

 

It is important to review these 2018/19 financial results in light of the long-term financial objectives 
developed by Council. These are to: 

 Maintain a strong cash position. 

 Ensure that Council remains financially sustainable in the long-term. 

 Continue to be debt free after Council’s final loan repayment was made in September 2016. 

 Continue to pursue recurrent grant funding for strategic capital works from the state and federal 
governments. 

 Maintain the existing range and level of services available to communities within the Shire. 

 Ensure adequate revenue to maintain a sustainable level of services for the community. 
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 Ensure that the renewal of critical infrastructure is funded annually over the timeframe of the 
Long Term Financial Plan. 
 

The following is a snapshot of our 2018/19 financial position: 

 $30.6 million revenue including $7.1 million in flood recovery grants and $5.5 million of grant 
income received in advance. During 2018/19, Council has been successful in attracting additional 
Roads & Bridges funding via the Fixing Country Roads Program and Local Roads to Market 
Program.  Council also received grants for community projects including Lexton Community Hub, 
Avoca Inclusive Playspace, Snake Valley Skate Park and Carngham Recreation Reserve female 
friendly change rooms in 2018/19.  Unspent grants are carried forward into 2019/20 as restricted 
funds to facilitate completion of these projects. 

 $7.69 million Capital Expenditure program delivered. Council claimed its full allocation under the 
2014-2019 Roads to Recovery Program by completion of all works by 30 June 2019.  Additional 
grant funding received under the Fixing Country Roads and Local Roads to Market Programs has 
significantly improved the Asset Renewal ratio.  

 Rates and waste charges comprised $10 million (33 per cent) of total revenue. 

 Operating surplus of $6.08 million.  Outstanding flood grants at 30 June 2018 ($2.7 million) were 
received in 2018/19.  

 Cash holdings of $12 million at year end.  Part of this relates to grants received in advance for 
works programmed in 2019/20. 

 Council continues to be debt free. 
 

Operating Result 

Council has an operating surplus of $6.08 million in 2018/19 compared with a $2.43 million deficit in 
2017/18. This surplus can be attributed to - outstanding flood grants at 30 June 2018 ($2.7 million) being 
received in 2018/19 and as mentioned earlier, Council being successful in attracting grant funding under 
the Fixing Country Roads Programs, Local Roads to Market Programs and a range of community projects 
including the Lexton Community Hub, Avoca Inclusive Playspace, Snake Valley Skate Park and Carngham 
Recreation Reserve female friendly change rooms in 2018/19. 

 
 
Cash holdings 
Cash holdings at the end of the financial year are $12 million.  This figure includes $6.06 million funds 
required for capital works carried forward from 2018/19 which will be undertaken in 2019/20 and $3.23 
million in unspent operating grants to be carried forwards.  This cash also backs the $2.2 million 
employee leave liability that sits on the balance sheet. At 30 June 2019, Council was awaiting 
reimbursement ($787,000) for flood recovery works undertaken during 2018/19. 

-10

-5

0

5

10

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

($
m

ill
io

n
s)

 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 



17 SEPTEMBER 2019 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION 

 

40 
 

Council’s aim is to continue to retain moderate levels of cash. This will provide Council with the 
flexibility to respond to future opportunities or unexpected events. These may include the potential to 
strategically acquire an asset or to respond to natural disasters such as flood or fire events. 

 

 
 

Sustainable Capital Expenditure 

Council aims to ensure that its assets are maintained in a condition that allows them to continue to 
deliver the services needed by the community at a standard that is acceptable to users.  During 2018/19, 
Council spent a total of $7.7 million on capital expenditure across the Shire, including $7 million on 
renewing existing assets. 
 

 
 

Council’s 2018/19 capital expenditure continued to address the challenge of renewing community 
assets. It is anticipated that in future, capital expenditure will be maintained at a realistic level with a 
high degree of dependence on funding from government grants.   
 

Asset renewal is measured as capital expenditure relative to asset depreciation.  Whilst, Council 
continues to face a significant challenge to fund the renewal of critical long-lived community 
infrastructure in the longer term, 2018/19 funding received under the Fixing Country Roads and Local 
Roads to Market Programs has significantly improved the Asset Renewal ratio.  Council continues to 
advocate for more grants that will help improve in the renewal of assets.  

0

5

10

15

20

25

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

($
m

ill
io

n
s)

 

Cash Balance 

0

4

8

12

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

($
m

ill
io

n
s)

 

Capital Works 



17 SEPTEMBER 2019 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION 

 

41 
 

 
 

Meeting the continual renewal of Council’s vast asset base remains an ongoing challenge for all 
Councils.   

 

 
 

Financial Sustainability 
Council is committed to operating without bank debt where possible, and made the final loan 
repayment in September 2016.  In 2015/16 interest on borrowings and debt redemption consumed $0.5 
million.  In future years the funds used to pay interest and redeem debt can be allocated to other 
Council priorities which strengthen Council’s financial sustainability in the medium term. Council strives 
to operate in a financially responsible manner while responding to community needs and striving for 
excellence in service delivery. 

 

 
 

Council is mindful that the cost of rates is borne by ratepayers.  Council is working towards lowering this 
level of annual rate increase in order to reduce the impact on ratepayers, and the State Government’s 
“Fair Go Rates” rate capping system has acted to reduce the annual rate rises from 2016/17 onwards. 

0%

50%

100%

150%

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

re
n

e
w

al
 d

e
m

an
d

 m
e

t 
Asset Renewal 

0

100

200

300

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

($
m

ill
io

n
s)

 

Net Assets 

0

1

2

3

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

$
m

ill
io

n
s 

Loan Balances 



17 SEPTEMBER 2019 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION 

 

42 
 

 
 

Council has many current and future demands on funding, highlighting the need for strong, long-term 
planning and the targeted allocation of resources. This is achieved through the preparation and annual 
review process of the Council Plan which is supported by Council’s Strategic Resource Plan. Ultimately, 
these documents are guided by longer-term visions and plans including the Long Term Financial Plan, 
which projects Council’s financial direction for the next ten years. This enables Council to identify and 
analyse trends of significance and provide for sound financial planning and decision-making. 
 

The continued revision and refinement of the Long Term Financial Plan enables longer-term 
conversations with the community and this makes possible long-term goals that assist in creating 
engaged and vibrant communities. 
 

This financial snapshot for the 2018/19 financial year gives a brief overview of Council’s financial 
performance and the significant factors that impacted on the financial resources used to support the 
achievement of long-term community service and asset management objectives.  A more detailed 
analysis of the financial performance for 2018/19 can be found in the Annual Financial Report which is 
available on Council’s website and is attached to Council’s physical Annual Report. 

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery in 
an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
 

Pursuant to Section 132 of the Local Government Act 1989, Council is required to give “in principle” 
approval of the 2018/19 Financial Statements and Performance Statement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
10.1 Draft Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 – circulated separately 
10.2 Draft Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019 – circulated separately 

 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Financial implications of this report are covered within the financial statements 
 
CONCLUSION 
In accordance with Section 132 of the Local Government Act 1989, Council is required to give “in 
principle” approval of the 2018/19 Financial Statements and Performance Statement. 
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council, pursuant to Section 132 of the Local Government Act 1989, gives in principle approval to 
the Financial Statements and Performance Statement in their final form after any changes 
recommended or agreed to by the auditors have been made for the year ended 30 June 2019. 
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11. FINANCE REPORT 1 JULY 2018 – 30 JUNE 2019 
Shana Johnny – Manager Finance 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 32/08/18 

 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update Council on the operating and capital performance for the 
2018/19 financial year and confirm the carry forwards for the 2019/20 financial year.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Council at its Meeting on 12 June 2018 adopted the budget for the 2018/19 financial year and at the        

18 September 2018 Council Meeting approved the carry forward of incomplete projects from 2017/18 

to 2018/19 to form the 2018/19 current budget.  

This report compares Council’s actual result for 2018/19 with the 2018/19 forecast as well as 

determining the operating and capital carry forwards from 2018/19 to 2019/20. 

 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
In summary, Council’s closing working capital position as at 30 June 2019 after allowing for expenditure 

and income that has to be carried over to the 2019/20 year is a surplus of $1,565,000.  

At 20 March 2018 Council Meeting, Council resolved to retain $639,000 for unexpected expenditure 

such as natural disasters.  At the end of 2017/18, Council had a deficit of $1,460,000 due to outstanding 

flood reimbursements of $2,721,000, which has been received in 2018/19.  Council was awaiting flood 

reimbursements of $787,000 at 30 June 2019, which has been accrued and recognised as income in 

2018/19.  

The surplus occurs as a result of a number of variations in the operating and capital expenditure areas. 

Year Cumulative Working 

Capital Surplus 

Working Capital Surplus 

Utilised 

2013/14 $633,000 $421,000 

2014/15 $320,000 $nil 

2015/16 $638,000 $nil 

2016/17 $1,839,000 1,200,000 

2017/18 ($1,460,000) -  

2018/19 $554,000 -  
 

A detailed finance report containing the following reports is attached to this report: 

o Summary Finance Report by Strategic Objective 
o Working capital report 
o Detailed Finance Report by Strategic Objective 
o Capital works report 
o Income Statement 
o Balance Sheet 
o Cash Flow Statement 
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Variance Analysis (note that any apparent adding errors will be due to rounding) 

Operating Strategic Objectives 

Below is a summary of operating income and expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2018 by Strategic 

Objective.  

1 – Leadership 
Forecast 

$’000 

YTD Actual 

$’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -10,634 -12,336 1,702 1,767 

Less: Expenditure 3,715 3,515 200 64 

Net -6,919 -8,821 1,902 1,831 
 

 Income was higher than forecast due to the prepayment of $1,767k of the 2019/20 Financial 

Assistance Grants. 

 Expenditure was lower than forecast by $200k due to lower Councillor expenses of $19k, Council 

election expenses of $49k, lower Fringe Benefits Tax of $25k and temporary staff vacancies during 

the year. 

 Income carry forwards of $1,767k relate to the adjustment of the 2018/19 Financial Assistance 

Grant which was received in advance during June 2019 and recognised as income in 2018/19. 

 Expenditure carry forwards of $64k relate to corporate training and council elections. 
 

2 – Community 
Forecast 

$’000 

YTD Actual 

$’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -1,599 -1,649 50 30 

Less: Expenditure 3,501 3,074 426 240 

Net 1,902 1,426 476 270 

 Income was higher than forecast due to additional animal registration fees of $11k, additional 

Maternal and Child Healthcare funding of $16k, additional Walk to School funding of $4k and 

Evaluating Transport Connections grant of $15k. 

 Expenditure was lower than forecast by $426k primarily due to lower than expected expenditure in 

Parks & Gardens $125k, Supported Playgroup 49k, Maternal and Child Health $28k, Local Area 

Planning $12k, funded war memorial projects $32k, Walk to School program $21k, Youth Outreach 

program $10k, Freeza $19k, Safer Together Project $31k and Local Laws enforcement $12k 

 Expenditure carry forward of $270k relates to some of the above mentioned funded projects - 

Supported Playgroup 48k, Maternal and Child Health $46k,  funded war memorial projects $42k, 

Walk to School program $25k, Youth Outreach program $10k, Freeza $13k, Evaluating Transport 

Connections $10k and Safer Together Project $31k.  Expenditure of $44k for irrigation systems has 

also been carried forward. 

3 – Roads 
Forecast 

$’000 

YTD Actual 

$’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -1,132 -2,209 1,077 1,107 

Less: Expenditure 10,118 9,249 869 95 

Net 8,986 7,040 1,946 1,202 
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 Income was higher than forecast by $1,077k due to the prepayment of $1,107k of the 2019/20 

Financial Assistance Grants.  

 Expenditure was lower than forecast primarily due to depreciation being lower than forecast $804k. 

Depreciation is a non cash item. The Infrastructure Revaluation in 2018/19 found that there has 

been a strong improvement in the overall condition of roads and bridges.  The life of sub assets has 

increased thereby reducing annual depreciation.  Besides depreciation, work in progress associated 

with signage improvement $48k and line marking $23k are part of the variance.  

 Income carry forwards of $1,107k relate to the adjustment of the 2019/20 Financial Assistance 

Grant which was received in advance during June 2019 and recognised as income in 2018/19. 

 Expenditure carry forward related to the above mentioned signage improvement $48k, line marking 

$23k and aerial imaging 24k spread over two years. 
 

4 – Commerce 
Forecast 

$’000 

YTD Actual 

$’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -346 -518 172 0 

Less: Expenditure 1,135 1,084 50 153 

Net 789 567 222 153 

 Income is higher than forecast due to grants received post confirmation of forecast - Skipton 

Hospital Straw Heating Project $70k and Integrated Water Management Project $80k. Construction 

of the windfarms within the Shire and the associated stays by construction crew has been 

instrumental in improved takings at the Beaufort Caravan Park. 

 Expenditure is lower than forecast primarily due to savings within Economic development services.  

 Expenditure carry forward of $153k relate to the Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project $68k, 

Integrated Water Management Project $80k and Council’s contribution to the Grampians Pyrenees 

Awards $6k.  

5 – Environment 
Forecast 

$’000 

YTD Actual 

$’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -1,630 -1,593 -38 0 

Less: Expenditure 2,689 2,576 113 21 

Net 1,059 983 75 21 

 Income was lower than forecast primarily due to the reduction in fines issued for fire hazard non-

compliances.  

 Expenditure was lower than forecast due to under spend in Planning and Building Enforcement costs 

$25k, Waste management $26k, Emergency Planning $12k and Pyrenees Futures $21k. 

 Expenditure carry forward of $21k relates to Pyrenees Futures $21k. 

Total - Operating result 
Forecast 

$’000 
YTD Actual $’000 

Variance 

 $’000 

Carryover  

$’000 

Income -15,341 -18,304 2,963 2,874 

Less: Expenditure 21,157 19,498 1,659 574 

Net 5,816 1,194 4,622 3,448 
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Capital Works & Major Projects 

Below is a summary of capital works expenditures for 2018-19. Total capital works expenditure in some 

instances was lower than the forecast as a result of the timing of land purchases and non-receipt of 

Government Funding. The carryovers are indicated in the column on the right. 

Capital works and major 

projects 
Forecast YTD Actuals Variance Carryover 

Council Roads 2,655 1,987 -668 573 

Roads to Recovery, Roads To 
Market and Fixing Country 
Roads 

1,188 211 -977 1,084 

Floods -2,651 -2,602 49 - 

Land 958 3 -956 1,068 

Land Improvements 447 268 -179 248 

Recreation 1,395 -193 -1,588 1,489 

Buildings 877 -303 -1,181 1,170 

Furniture & equipment 394 182 -213 155 

Plant purchases 879 589 -290 278 

Net capital expenditure 6,142 140 -6,002 6,065 

Total Expenditure 20,541 12,606 -7,935 7,557 

Total Income -14,398 -12,466 1,933 -1,492 

 

Overall Working Capital Position 

Working Capital Result Forecast $’000 YTD Actual $’000 

Opening Balance – General                 6,406                  6,406  

Operating Result -              5,816  -              1,194  

Capital Result -              6,142  -                 140  

Add Back Depreciation                 6,835                  6,029  

Add Back Bad & Doubtful Debts                        1                       -    

Less Reserve and Provision Adjustment                          7  

Closing Working Capital Result                 1,284                11,108  

Less Carryover – Operating   -              6,065  

Less Carryover – Capital   -              3,478  

Surplus/(Deficit)                 1,284                  1,565  

 

At the end of the year, after allowing for carried forward adjustments, Council had a working capital 

surplus of $1.56m. At the 20th March 2018 Council Meeting, Council resolved to retain $639,000 for 

unexpected expenditure such as natural disasters.  Council was also holding $372k as overpayment 

received from the Commonwealth Home Support Program. The net working capital surplus for 2017/18 

and 2018/19 is $554k.  
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery in 
an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
 

Under Section 138 of the Local Government Act 1989, at least quarterly a report comparing expenses 

and revenue to budget must be presented to the Council.  

ATTACHMENTS 
11.1 Finance Report 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 – circulated separately 

FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Financial Implications associated with this report have been covered in Issue/Discussion. 

CONCLUSION 
Council’s closing working capital after allowing for carried forward works will reflect sufficient funds 

retained to allow for contingencies that are hard to predict.   

 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 

1. Receives the End of Year Finance Report for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. 

2. Adopts the 30th June 2019 carryover adjustments to the 2019/20 Budget as detailed in the 

above report. 
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12. CEO CONTRACT 
Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 10NOLJ 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider the matter of the CEO contract which ends on 7 
December 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The current employment contract for Chief Executive Officer of the Pyrenees Shire Council ends on 7th 
December 2019. 
 

Section 94 of the Local Government Act 1989 sets out the provisions relating to the appointment of a 
Chief Executive Officer. 
 

Mr Phillip Shanahan was engaged to prepare a report to assist Council through the process of appointing 
a Chief Executive Officer beyond the 7th December 2019. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Section 94(4) of the Local Government Act 1989 makes provision for re-appointment of a person as 
Chief Executive Officer in the six months immediately before that person’s contract is due to expire, 
without advertising that position. 
 

As part of its consideration into whether the current Pyrenees Shire Chief Executive Officer, Mr Jim 
Nolan, should be re-appointed, Council undertook a review into the performance of the current Chief 
Executive Officer and considered options provided in the report commissioned to assist with the 
process. 
 

In a closed Council meeting session on 11 June 2019, Council debated the re-appointment of the current 
Chief Executive Officer and determined to offer Mr Nolan a further contract for five years with Terms & 
Conditions similar to those currently in place.  At its meeting on 20 August 2019, Council resolved: 
 

1. That it intended at a future meeting to resolve to enter into a new contract with Mr Jim Nolan as 

Chief Executive Officer, for a period of five years commencing on 7th December 2019; and 

2. That a public notice of Council’s intention be published in accordance with section 94(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1989.  

A public notice was published in The Advocate on Friday, 30 August 2019 detailing Council’s resolution.  
No comments or feedback were received in response to this notice. 
 

It is now recommended that Council resolves to re-appoint Mr Jim Nolan as its Chief Executive Officer 
without advertising the position and to make the position’s proposed total remuneration available for 
public inspection. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery in 
an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
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ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Section 94 of the Local Government Act 1989 sets out Council’s legal obligations in respect of the 
appointment of a Chief Executive Officer.  This report follows proper process in facilitating the re-
appointment of the Pyrenees Shire Chief Executive Officer. 
 
CONCLUSION 
In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, Council may resolve to enter into a new contract for 
CEO without advertising the position and if Council resolves to do so, Council must make details of the 
person’s proposed total remuneration as CEO under the new contract available for public inspection 
within 14 days after the passing of the resolution. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

1. Council resolves to enter into a new contract with Mr Jim Nolan as Chief Executive Officer, 
without advertising the position, for a period of five years commencing on 7th December 2019; 
and 

2. That details of the position’s proposed total remuneration under the new contract be made 
available for public inspection within 14 days after the passing of this resolution. 
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13. CODE RED DAY POLICY 
Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  28/06/02  

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider adopting the Code Red Day Policy, following its 
review. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council first adopted a Code Red Day Policy in December 2014 and further reviewed in November 2015.  
Victoria adopted nationally agreed Fire Danger Rating scales to assist communities in understanding 
information and warnings about fire danger.  A Fire Danger Rating is a prediction of fire behaviour, 
including how hard it would be to extinguish once it starts. 
 

Every day during the fire season the Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) forecasts an outlook of the fire 
danger index (FDI) by considering elements of the predicted weather including temperature, relative 
humidity, wind speed and dryness of vegetation. 
 

Days when the Fire Danger Rating is Code Red are considered by emergency agencies to be the most 
dangerous, with fire behaviour predicted to be uncontrollable, unpredictable and fast moving.  On such 
days the Country Fire Authority (CFA) advise people to leave areas of high fire risk, either the night 
before or early in the morning, and avoid heavily grassed or forested areas. 
 

In fire prone areas it is likely that many public services will be suspended, including schools, 
kindergartens and pre-schools.  Employment is likely to be disrupted as people heed the advice of the 
CFA and enact bushfire survival plans.  State Forests and National Parks will be closed to the public on 
such days. 
 

Council is obliged under the Occupational Health & Safety Act to provide a duty of care to its employees.  
A significant increase in severe bushfire conditions has been experienced over past years and it is 
essential Council has clear plans to protect its staff and community.  Therefore Council needs to mitigate 
potential risk on Code Red Days by restricting work to essential services and those activities that do not 
impose unnecessary risk to employees or the general public. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The Code Red Day Policy was reviewed in consultation with members of the Senior Leadership Team 
and staff involved in employee safety and emergency management planning.  Minor wording changes 
were made to the body of the document which are indicated by red text.   
 

The Code Red Day Policy recognises that Council’s services are likely to operate with altered or reduced 
service levels on days declared as Code Red Days.  Appendix A, which details services impacted on Code 
Red Days, was reviewed to ensure this reflects actual work practices on such days. 
 

The objectives of the Policy, in the event of a ‘Code Red’ fire warning being issued for the South West 
District (which includes the Pyrenees Shire), remain as before to: 
 

1. Promote and encourage safe work practices for Council employees; 
2. Provide guidance to employees on service delivery and leave entitlements; 
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3. Determine the services that will be affected on Code Red Days and document what will be 
modified or suspended; and 

4. Ensure the Council Emergency Management Team have sufficient resources in place to 
undertake their emergency management responsibilities. 

 

Council adoption of the revised Code Red Day Policy is now requested. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 4 - Financially Sustainable, High-performing Organisation. Our organisation will 
respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service delivery in 
an ethical and financially responsible manner. 
 

4.3 - Provide a safe working environment through the provision of an integrated risk and OH&S 
management system. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
13.1 Policy – Council – Code Red Day – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The Policy intends to ensure that employees, Councillors, volunteers, contractors and members of the 
public are not placed in situations of undue risk on Code Red Days when conducting Council business or 
accessing Council services. 
 

In the event of actual fire emergency on a Code Red Day, Council’s emergency management procedures, 
documented in Council’s Municipal Emergency Management Plan (MEMP) will come into operation. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The Code Red Policy addresses Council’s responsibility to plan and manage for the provision of services 
and Council information on days declared as a Code Red fire risk, in order to maximise employee and 
community safety, whilst ensuring appropriate emergency responses can be activated as required. 
 

Further review will be undertaken following any event of a Code Red warning being activated. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 

1. Adopts the revised Code Red Day Policy; and 
2. Makes the Policy publicly available on Council’s website and promote to the Pyrenees Shire 

Community prior to the summer season. 
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14. VISION SUPER’S VESTED BENEFITS INDEX (VBI) FOR DEFINED BENEFITS 
Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No:  48/08/06  

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to update Council on the current status of the Local Authorities 
Superannuation Fund Defined Benefits Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (LASF) was established by an Act of Parliament in 1947 to 
provide superannuation to Victorian local government and the water industry.  The defined benefit 
scheme was set up by the Victorian Government in 1982 and was compulsory for all councils until it was 
closed to new members in 1993. 
 

Defined benefit schemes provide a prescribed benefit based on how long an employee has been a 
scheme member and their salary at retirement.  Employers, rather than employees, must shoulder 
investment risks. 
 

Accumulation schemes, which are the norm today, reverse this model and when investment market 
returns are down, the total accumulated funds in an employee’s account will also decline.  Sine 1 
January 1994 new local government employees have only been able to join a standard accumulation 
plan. 
 

Although the scheme was closed in 1993, Victorian councils must continue to make payments in respect 
to staff who were members of the scheme at the time of closing.  The LASF Defined Benefit Plan became 
a ‘regulated fund’ under Commonwealth legislation on 1 July 1998, which required it to be fully funded.  
Prior to this date it was exempt from being fully funded.  Other public sector (state and federal 
government) defined benefit super schemes continue to be exempt up to now. 
 

In accordance with Commonwealth Regulations, Vision Super must complete an actuarial review at least 
every three years to ensure that assets are adequate to meet the benefits previously promised to 
members, now and into the future.  If a shortfall arises that cannot be addressed through an investment 
plan, then employers may be required to make top-up contributions. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
As the superannuation fund regulator, APRA monitors the financial condition of all Defined Benefit (DB) 
arrangements and has set a number of requirements that DB trustees must adhere to, including 
appointing a Fund Actuary to undertake, and report on, regular actuarial investigations into the financial 
position of the DB plan. 
 

APRA issued a prudential standard (Prudential Standard SPS 160 – Defined Benefit Matters (SPS 160)) 
which sets out the funding requirements for a DB plan.  Under this standard: 
 

 The vested benefits index (VBI) is the measure to determine whether there is an unfunded 
liability, and 

 Any unfunded liability that arises must be rectified within three years. 
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DB plans are generally required to be in a ‘satisfactory financial position’.  For these purposes, the value 
of the DB plan assets must be sufficient to cover the vested benefit liability of the DB plan. 
 

The vested benefit liability of a DB plan is equal to the value of the total benefits that would be payable 
by the DB plan if all members voluntarily terminated their service with their employer at that time.  Any 
lifetime pension benefits in a DB plan are included in the vested benefit calculations. 
 

The VBI is used to determine if a DB plan is in a satisfactory or unsatisfactory financial position.  The VBI 
is calculated as: VBI = (Market value of assets/Total of vested benefits).  A VBI of 100% or greater means 
that the value of the assets supporting the DB plan are more than sufficient to cover the vested benefit 
liabilities of the plan at that date and, as such, is in a satisfactory financial position. 
 

A VBI less than 100% means that the value of the assets supporting the DB plan are not sufficient to 
cover the vested benefit liabilities of the plan at a particular date and, as such, in in an unsatisfactory 
financial position.  The VBI shortfall limit, at which point a call for funds may be made upon employers, 
is set at 97%.   
 

Vision Super reviews the VBI position of the LASF on a quarterly basis using the same methodology used 
by the Fund Actuary during the Fund Actuary’s investigations/reviews.  As at June 2019 the VBI was 
107.1% which satisfies APRA’s Superannuation Standard 160 and is 1.1% above the June 2018 figure. 
 

An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2019.  It is 
anticipated that this investigation will be completed by October 2019. 
 

A table showing the changes in VBI over five years is detailed below: 
 

Year Q1 Sept (est) Q2 Dec (est) Q3 Mar (est) Q4 June (actual) 

2014/15 102.6% 103.1% 108.5% 105.8% 

2015/16 104.0% 104.4% 102.4% 102.0% 

2016/17 103.7% 105.4% 106.6% 103.1% 

2017/18 103.8% 106.4% 106.2% 106.0% 

2018/19 106.9% 101.9% 105.4% 107.1% 

 
Although the table shows a consistent VBI of above 100% over the five years, it should be noted that in 
2012/13 the VBI did go below the threshold of 97%.  At this stage no action is required. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 
 

2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The monitoring of the Vested Benefit Index provides Council with guidance on the performance of the 
Defined Benefits Fund.  In the event the VBI falls below the shortfall threshold, the Fund is required 
under the superannuation prudential standards (SPS 160) to formulate a restoration plan to restore the 
VBI to 100% within three years, which may require additional funds to be sought from individual 
councils. 
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CONCLUSION 
The Vested Benefit Index was 107.1% as at 30th June 2019.  An interim actuarial investigation is 
underway which should be completed by October 2019.  At present no action is required. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 

1. Receives the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund update report and requests that any 
significant movements be reported to Council. 

2. Retains part of the working capital surplus at 30 June 2019 to fund a shortfall in the event of a 
call. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 

15. RESERVE NO. 1 PITTONG-SNAKE VALLEY ROAD, SNAKE VALLEY 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 710010974P 
 
 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with additional information relating to Reserve No.1 
Pittong Snake Valley Road, Snake Valley following further discussions held with the Friends of Reserve 
No.1 group and to authorise the CEO to enter into an Agreement for the management of the reserve. 
 
BACKGROUND 
At Council’s January 2019 meeting, Council considered a report on the Snake Valley Reserve which 
sought Council to provide direction in respect of a planning permit application to remove a restrictive 
covenant and allow the use and development of land for a dwelling, at Reserve No.1, Pittong-Snake 
Valley Road, Snake Valley. 
 

Prior to this meeting, a verbal submission was made by members of the community, ‘Friends of Reserve 
No.1’, seeking to have the reserve retained in Council’s ownership. The Friends group expressed an 
interest in assuming management functionality over the reserve and committed to providing a draft 
management plan for Council’s consideration.  
 

Council’s consideration of the matter was deferred until the Ordinary Council Meeting in February 2019 
at which Council resolved: 
 

That Council:  
1. enters into further discussions with the Friends of the Reserve No 1 Group in respect of 

the future management of Reserve No 1 
2. Investigates possible management models for future consideration by Council 
3. Considers a further report on the matter at a future meeting of Council 

 

Subsequently the CEO met with representatives of the Friends of the Reserve group to progress 
arrangements whereby the group could enter into an agreement with Council to use and maintain the 
land as open space to benefit the local community under the auspices of the Snake Valley & District 
Land Protection Group Inc. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
A draft management plan was prepared by the group and tabled at the January 2019 Council meeting, 
and more recently a letter setting out the proposed arrangements for an agreement was received from 
the group and is attached to this report. 
 

The group propose a five year agreement be entered into with shared arrangements to manage risks 
and liability insurance. 
 

A range of models were considered for the management of the site including the formation of a Special 
Committee under Section 86 of the Local Government Act, an Agreement under section 173 of the 
Planning and Environment Act, a formal contract or lease. It is proposed that Council authorise the CEO 
to enter into an agreement as outlined in the attached having regard to any legal matters and relevant 
risk management. 
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As the site was the subject of a planning application by Council for the use and development of a 
dwelling, and having regard to Council’s desire to provide opportunities for the community to 
demonstrate their capability to manage and maintain the site as open space, it is proposed that the 
planning application PA2660/17 be withdrawn. This does not limit Council or another party from the 
possibility of making a future application for development and use of the site for a dwelling at a future 
time should the agreement with the group cease for whatever reason. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 5 - Development and Environment. We will undertake forward planning, and 
facilitate growth in our local economy while protecting key natural and built environmental values. 
 

1.4 - Maintain, develop and renew the public amenity of our townships in consultation with our 
communities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
15.1 Draft Agreement between Pyrenees Shire Council and Snake Valley & District Land Protection 

Group Inc to manage Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley, August 2019 – circulated 

separately 

FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
A draft risk assessment is included in the draft letter attached to this report.  It is proposed that Council 
maintain general public liability insurance coverage in addition to the protection provided to the group 
through the incorporation of the auspice body. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Council has previously sought to remove the reservation on the No.1 Reserve, Pittong-Snake Valley 
Road, Snake Valley, and to seek a planning application for the use and development of the site for a 
dwelling.  Submissions have been received in respect of the planning application and representations 
have been made by the Friends of the Reserve No 1 Group seeking Council to not proceed with the 
planning application, and the land be retained and used as public open space for a community purpose. 
 

The Group has prepared a management plan for management of the reserve, and following discussions 
between the CEO and representatives of the group it is proposed that a five year agreement be entered 
into between Council and the Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group Inc. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council:  

1. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to enter into an agreement with the Snake Valley & 
District Land Protection Group Inc. for the management of No.1 Reserve, Pittong-Snake Valley 
Road, Snake Valley. 

2. Withdraws the planning application PA2660/17. 
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16. GOLDFIELDS WORLD HERITAGE BID 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 62/12/10 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is  to provide an update to Council and seek ongoing support for the 
proposed Central Victorian Goldfields world heritage listing. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council considered a report on the Central Victorian Goldfields World Heritage Bid at the Ordinary 
Council Meeting in September 2018, and agreed to join with the City of Ballarat, the City of Bendigo and 
other councils to seek to take the next steps towards application for the Central Goldfields World 
Heritage nomination. 

The project team has continued to progress the bid following strong support from the thirteen 
participating councils. 

The following is an excerpt taken from the project brochure used to provide background to the bid and 
to communicate key messages. 

“World Heritage is the biggest tourism brand in the world  

It’s used successfully to define significant tourism destinations globally.  

While we know our goldfields are significant, the full tourism and jobs potential of the region is relatively 
untapped and not widely known.  

Thirteen local governments, led by the Cities of Ballarat and Greater Bendigo, have partnered to progress 
a World Heritage listing of the Central Victorian Goldfields.   

This aims to unlock the full potential of the region, bringing economic diversification, jobs, investment 
and tourism, and raise the socio-economic outlook for cities, towns and local communities. This 
consortium represents close to half a million people spread over nearly 40,000 square kilometres, 17% of 
the state.  

Parts of the region are thriving but other parts are among the most socially disadvantaged areas in the 
state. Experience in other disadvantaged areas shows that World Heritage listing can bring unique 
opportunities for communities to diversify their local economies and increase liveability. 

WORLD HERITAGE LISTING 

The nineteenth century global rush for gold changed the world forever. The Central Victorian Goldfields 
played a major part in this never-before-seen wave of globalisation and modernisation. The legacy is still 
very strong – far stronger than in any other part of the world. The region has a huge amount of the most 
intact and authentic gold rush heritage in the world. Advice from international World Heritage experts is 
that the Central Victorian Goldfields are ‘exceptional’ and the bid has a very good chance of success. 

Properties selected would be the ‘best of the best’ and it is thought that nominated sites could number 
between 10 and 20. Types of properties that will be considered include publicly owned properties such as 
Town Halls, Railway Stations or Botanic Gardens and recognised archaeological mining sites on public 
land. The process of selection will include wide community engagement.  
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PROJECT DELIVERY & OUTCOMES 

The task before the region over the next two years has five components. 

1. Identify how to best use World Heritage as a catalyst to benefit the entire region. What is the value 
proposition and how can World Heritage Listing be leveraged to benefit the region?  

2. Ensure the widest possible support and collaboration from all the stakeholders, the community and 
relevant government agencies for the application.  

3. Maximise collaboration with all key stakeholders to deliver the socio-economic regeneration and 
tourism opportunities and benefits.  

4. Document the sites that will need to be placed on the National Heritage Register for World Heritage 
listing. 

5. Engage international experts who can assist in guiding the bid to ensure ultimate success.  

FUNDING 

Local Governments and regional tourism bodies have committed $150,000 over the next two years. 
Funding of $620,000 from the state is being sought to enable critical work to be commissioned, 
undertake the community and industry engagement and to bring in expert advice.” 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
To demonstrate commitment by the 13 councils involved in the bid, each council is invited to sign the 
attached MOU. In doing so tis further evidences the strong ongoing support by those involved. 
The purpose of the MOU as stated in the document is as follows: 
 

The signatories to this Memorandum of Understanding will work together to progress the development 
of the Program with the objective of unlocking the full potential of the Central Victorian Goldfields 
region, bringing economic diversification, jobs, investment and tourism, and raise the socio-economic 
outlook and liveability for cities, towns and communities across the region. 
 

A copy of the draft MOU is attached to this report and it is suggested that council agrees to demonstrate 
its support further by agreeing to be a signatory to the MOU. 
 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 

2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
16.1  Central Victorian Goldfields – World Heritage Listing Bid 
16.2 Draft MOU – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council has previously committed to provide $2,000 per year for two years towards the bid. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Council is invited to be a signatory to an MOU to participate in the Central Victorian Goldfields World 
Heritage bid. This will enable strong support to be demonstrated from the participating Councils. 
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Council agrees to sign the MOU attached to this report, with or without amendment, along 
with other participating Councils join involved in the Central Victorian Goldfields World Heritage Bid. 

 

 



17 SEPTEMBER 2019 – PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL – ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA – ITEMS FOR DECISION – ATTACHMENT 16.1 

 

61 
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17. EXPO AND BUSINESS FORUM INVITATION 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 18/02/06 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to inform and seek support from Council about an invitation received for 
the Mayor to participate in a delegation to China as a special guest and presenter at an expo and 
business forum event. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Mayor has received an invitation to participate in a joint Australian and New Zealand Trade Mission 
delegation to China to attend an industry expo and forums. 
 

The invitation states as follows: 
 

“The trade mission is a tailor-made special event for where you will participate: 

 2019 China International Logistics and Transportation Industry Expo 

 2019 World VR Industry Conference Nanchang, JiangXi in Nanchang, Jiangxi. 

 2019 International Toy Fair/Early Childhood Forum in Shanghai 
 

These events will provide with the latest scale in China in the sector of advanced logistics 
methods, cold-chain logistics, pharmaceutical logistics, environmental-friendly green 
logistics, logistics equipment, etc. The event is specially organized by AITA to provide a 
unique opportunity for the Alliance members to further engage with China Supply Chain & 
Logistics Industry from business groups to governments and NGO. It also provides a chance 
for those leading enterprises to display, promote and integrate market. 

 

 Meet the key Governments, NGOs and Companies (Including ports site visit) in each 
location 

 Visit Australia, NZ Embassy and other related organizations 

 Visit 3 port cities in China 
 

The exhibition will also host a series of activities such as “The First China Logistics Hub City 
Cooperation Forum”, “China Business Logistics Cooperation Forum”, “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei 
Collaborative Development Forum” and “China Pharmaceutical Logistics Supply Chain 
Innovation Development Forum.  Nearly 100 media outlets such as CCTV, Xinhua News 
Agency, People's Daily, China Economic Herald, Tencent will be covering this event”.  
 

The event is hosted/organized/supported by: 
 

 Australian International Trade Association & Associates 

 Ministry of Commerce 

 Transportation and Logistics Branch of China Communications and Transportation 

 Association 

 Shanghai Derui Exhibition Planning Co., Ltd. 

 Qinghai Provincial People's Government 

 Hebei Kangxu Business Service Co., Ltd 
 

Time: October 14th – October 21st, 2019 
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Further details regarding the event are attached to this report. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Participation in the delegation mission is consistent with the role of Council as stated in Section 3D of 
the Local Government Act which includes: 

(d) advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments; 
 

The opportunity enables the Mayor to promote our local industry and the Pyrenees brand 
internationally to benefit our local economy. It also enables Australia to build relationships with China 
which is one of Australia’s leading trade nations and our fastest growing tourism market. 
 

The Mayor is recognised as being a leader in the local government through his participation on a 
number of regional forums including a member of the Rural Councils Victoria executive. 
 

The invitation is considered to be a gift of Australian International Trade Association & Associates. The 
matter is reported to Council to ensure transparency in Council decision making. Participation in the 
trade mission will require the Mayor to forge his ordinary business and personal activities for the period 
of the mission and to participate in the trade mission activities including as key note speaker. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 2 - Relationships and Advocacy. We will build and maintain effective relationships 
with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate on key issues. 

2.3 - Maintain strategic partnerships, and participate with peak bodies for support and to enhance 
advocacy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
17.1 Trade Mission Forum and Expo – circulated separately 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The costs associated with the event are to be met by the organising body and as detailed in the 
attached. 
 

Despite the benefits outlined above, there is potential reputational risk to Council that participation in 
the event may not be seen as being in the interests of the community.  
 
CONCLUSION 
Australian International Trade Association & Associates has invited the Mayor to participate in a Trade 
mission delegation to China. 
 

Council direction is sought in respect of the invitation. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council endorses the acceptance of the invitation by the Australian International Trade 
Association & Associates for the Mayor to participate in a Trade Mission to China during October 14th 
– October 21st, 2019 
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18. PROPOSED CHANGE OF COUNCIL MEETING LOCATION 
Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/02/02 

 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an opportunity to change the location for the 
Ordinary Council Meetings in October and November. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Councillors expressed a desire to consider a change of venue for the October and November Ordinary 
Council Meetings to enable the October Meeting to be held in Avoca, and the November Meeting to be 
held in Beaufort. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The reason for the change is to enable some further engagement with the community in October on the 
matter of the Pyrenees Futures Framework and Streetscape Planning project. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 3 - Community Connection and Wellbeing. We will engage with communities to 
provide responsive, efficient services that enhance the quality of life of residents and promote 
connected, active and resilient communities. 

5.2 - Prepare and implement township framework plans to guide future development in Beaufort, 
Avoca, Snake Valley, Lexton, Waubra/Evansford, Landsborough, Moonambel, Amphitheatre and Raglan 
and then consider extending the planning to include other towns. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Nil 
 
CONCLUSION 
Changes to the following Ordinary Council Meeting Dates are reflected in the recommendation below. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Council: 

1. Agrees to change the location for the Ordinary Council Meeting to be held on 15 October 
2019 to be at the Town Hall Supper Room, Avoca; 

2. Agrees to change the location for the Ordinary Council Meeting to be held on 12 November 
2019 to be at the Council Chambers in Beaufort; and 

3. Gives public notice of the proposed changes to the meeting locations in accordance with the 
Local Government Act and the Meeting Procedure Local Law. 
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COUNCILLOR REPORTS AND GENERAL BUSINESS 
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CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 
19. CLOSURE OF MEETING TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
That pursuant to the provisions of Section 89(2) of the Local Government Act 1989, the meeting be 
closed to the public in order to consider a contractual matter. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the meeting be closed to members of the public under Section 89(2) of the Local Government 
Act 1989, to consider a report on the:- 
 
20. Supply and Delivery of Prefabricated Bridge Formwork 
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20. RE-OPENING OF MEETING TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council, having considered the confidential items, re-opens the meeting to members of the public. 
 

 

 

CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting closed at       

 
Minutes of the meeting confirmed   ........................................................... ……….   

 
      2019   Mayor 
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Date : 17th September 2019


Beaufort


Tanya Kehoe


Councillor


Date : 17th September 2019


Beaufort


Chief Executive Officer


Date : 17th September 2019


Beaufort


Certification of the 


Financial Statements


In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the


Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional


reporting requirements.


Shana Johnny CPA


Principal Accounting Officer


Beaufort


In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Pyrenees Shire Council for the year


ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.


As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be


misleading or inaccurate.


We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify the


financial statements in their final form.


Robert Vance


Jim Nolan
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Pyrenees Shire Council Comprehensive Income Statement


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


2019 2018


Note $'000 $'000 


Income


Rates and service charges 3.1 10,004            9,640              


Statutory fees and fines 3.2 229                 201                 


User charges 3.3 796                 762                 


Grants - operating 3.4 15,024            9,476              


Grants - capital 3.4 4,101              2,515              


Contributions - monetary 3.5 79                   18                   


3.6 46                   52                   


Other income 3.7 335                 635                 


Total income 30,614            23,299            


Expenses


Employee costs 4.1 (7,002)             (6,394)             


Materials and services 4.2 (11,172)           (12,336)           


Bad and doubtful debts 4.3 (30)                  (1)                    


Depreciation 4.4 (6,031)             (6,704)             


Borrowing costs 4.5 (2)                    -                  


Other expenses 4.6 (302)                (291)                


Total expenses (24,539)           (25,726)           


Surplus/(deficit) for the year 6,075              (2,427)             


Other comprehensive income


Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 9.1 5,200              5,068              


Total comprehensive result 11,275            2,641              


Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods


The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Balance Sheet


2018/2019 Financial Report


2019 2018


Note  $'000  $'000 


Assets


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 5.1              12,029                8,680 


Other financial assets 5.1                     20                       5 


Trade and other receivables 5.1                1,843                   781 


Non-current assets classified as held for sale 6.1                     -                     155 


Other assets 5.2                1,040                   685 


Total current assets              14,932              10,306 


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables 5.1                     57                     65 


Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2            234,762            228,070 


Total non-current assets            234,819            228,135 


Total assets            249,751            238,442 


Liabilities


Current liabilities


Trade and other payables 5.3                1,484                1,679 


Trust funds and deposits 5.3                   156                   120 


Employee provisions 5.4                2,068                1,924 


Total current liabilities                3,708                3,723 


Non-current liabilities


Employee provisions 5.4                   129                     80 


Total non-current liabilities                   129                     80 


Total liabilities                3,837                3,803 


Net assets            245,914            234,639 


Equity


Accumulated surplus              90,275              84,200 


Reserves 9            155,639            150,439 


Total equity            245,914            234,639 


As at 30 June 2019


The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Statement of Changes in Equity


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Total


Accumulated 


surplus


2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


Balance at beginning of the financial year 234,639           84,200            150,430           9                     


Surplus for the year 6,075              6,075              -                      -                      


Net asset revaluation (increment) 9.1 5,200              -                  5,200              -                      


Balance at end of the financial year 245,914           90,275            155,630           9                     


2018


Balance at beginning of the financial year 231,998           86,627            145,362           9                     


(Deficit) for the year (2,427)             (2,427)             -                      -                      


Net asset revaluation (decrement) 9.1 5,068              -                      5,068              -                      


Balance at end of the financial year 234,639           84,200            150,430           9                     


Note


Recreational 


land reserve


Asset 


revaluation 


reserve


The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.


Page:6







Pyrenees Shire Council Statement of Cash Flows


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
2019 2018


Inflows/ Inflows/


(Outflows) (Outflows)


Note $'000 $'000 


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and service charges 10,107            9,601              


Statutory fees and fines 229                 201                 


User charges 87                   630                 


Grants - operating 14,195            9,476              


Grants - capital 4,101              2,515              


Contributions - monetary 87                   20                   


Interest received 102                 175                 


Trust funds and deposits taken 37                   19                   


Other receipts 224                 471                 


Net GST refund 1,601              1,557              


Employee costs (6,809)             (6,572)             


Materials and services (12,277)           (13,677)           


Trust funds and deposits repaid (1)                    (3)                    


Other payments (365)                (321)                


Net cash provided by operating activities 9.2 11,318            4,092              


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (8,306)             (5,861)             


Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 190                 360                 


Payments for land held for resale -                  (55)                  


Proceeds from sale of land held for resale 164                 594                 


Proceeds from sale of other financial assets (15)                  3,750              


Net cash (used in) investing activities (7,967)             (1,212)             


Cash flows from financing activities     


Finance costs (2)                    -                  


Repayment of borrowings -                  -                  


Net cash (used in) financing activities (2)                    -                  


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,349              2,880              


Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 8,680              5,800              


Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     5.1(a) 12,029            8,680              


Financing arrangements 5.5


Restrictions on cash assets 5.1


The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Statement of Capital Works


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
2019 2018


$'000 $'000


Property


Land - specialised 146                 50                   


Land improvements -                  75                   


Total land 146                 125                 


Buildings - specialised 469                 91                   


Building improvements 37                   128                 


Total buildings 506                 219                 


Total property 652                 344                 


Plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment 759                 754                 


Fixtures, fittings and furniture 14                   20                   


Computers and telecommunications 92                   93                   


Library  collection 36                   31                   


Total plant and equipment 901                 898                 


Infrastructure


Roads 3,972              3,835              


Footpaths and cycleways 316                 43                   


Drainage 417                 168                 


Bridges 847                 67                   


Recreational, leisure and community facilities 289                 188                 


Other Structures 291                 9                     


Total infrastructure 6,132              4,310              


Total capital works expenditure 7,685              5,552              


Represented by:


New asset expenditure 172                 50                   


Asset renewal expenditure 6,981              4,849              


Asset expansion expenditure 308                 38                   


Asset upgrade expenditure 225                 615                 


Total capital works expenditure 7,686              5,552              


The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Overview


Introduction


Significant accounting policies


Rounding


Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. Figures in the


financial statements may not equate due to rounding 


The Pyrenees Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 23 September 1994 and is a body


corporate.  The Council's main office is located at 5 Lawrence Street Beaufort.  


These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement,


Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes


accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accounting


Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local


Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.


The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities,


equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is


received or paid. 


Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are


not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement


derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.


Actual results may differ from these estimates.


Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods


that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that


have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:


Basis of accounting


Statement of compliance 


 - the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)


 - the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)


 - the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.4)


Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate,


comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any


material changes to comparatives. 


 -  specific areas requiring judgments including Non current assets classified as held for sale (refer Note 6.1)
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note 1 Performance against budget 


Budget Actual         Variance         Variance


1.1 Income and expenditure 2019 2019 2019


$'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref


Income


Rates and service charges 10,013      10,004       (9) 0%


Statutory fees and fines 213           229           16 8%


User charges 858           796            (62) -7% 1


Grants - operating 6,475        15,024      8,549 132% 2


Grants - capital 1,103        4,101        2,998 272% 3


Contributions - monetary 1               79             78 7800% 4


71                          46  (25) -35% 5


Other income 272           335           63 23% 6


Total income 19,006      30,614      11,608


Expenses


Employee costs 7,163        7,002        161 2% 7


Materials and services 6,537        11,172       (4,635) -71% 8


Bad and doubtful debts 2               30              (28) -1400% 9


Depreciation 6,835        6,031        804 12% 10


Other expenses 311           302           9 3%


Total expenses 20,848      24,539      3,691-        


Surplus/(deficit) for the year  (1,842) 6,075 7,917


The performance against budget notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual


performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances.


Council has adopted a materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $100,000 where further explanation is warranted.


Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material


because of its nature.


The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 12 June 2018. The Budget was based on assumptions that


were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense targets in this


budget in order to meet Council’s planning and financial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not


reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.


Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and 


equipment


These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and


Reporting) Regulations 2014.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note 1 Performance against budget (continued)


1.1 Income and expenditure(continued)


Explanation of material variations


Ref Item Explanation


1 User charges


2 Grants - operating


207


Natural disaster recovery grants - not budgeted 7,110


Avoca War Memorial 30


Avoca Inclusive Playspace 187


Snake Valley Linear Park 225


Carngham Recreation Reserve 180


Upper Avoca Flood Study Grant 80


Raglan Flood Study 52


Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project 70


Integrated Water Management 80


Evaluating Transport Connections project 15


Safer Together Project - Snake Valley 80


Avoca Oval - Playing Surface 41


Snake Valley Golf Club Sustainable Green Project 38


8,395


3 Grants - capital


Fixing Country Roads Grant - 2018/19 600


Early payment of Fixing Country Roads Grant - 2019/20 600


E-waste Projects Grant 225


827


Lexton Community Hub grant 520


Beaufort Walkability Project 150


Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Halls Project 138


3,060


4 Contributions - monetary


30             


18             


Waubra Tennis Court Refurbishment 15             


63


5 Net gain/(loss) on disposal 


of property, infrastructure, 


plant and equipment


During the year Council received the contributions towards the following projects


The level of capital grants received by Council had a number of significant variations to budget. Whilst


the grants for the Roads projects were received post adoption of the Budget 2018/19, grants for


buildings & other works though anticipated in the 2017/18 budget were confirmed in 2018/19. Any


unspent grant funding will be carried forward into 2019/20 to facilitate completion of these projects. 


Local Roads to Market - 2018/19


The level of operating grants received by Council had the following variations to budget. Most of


these grants were approved post adoption of the Budget 2018/19. Any unspent grant funding will be


carried forward into 2019/20 to facilitate completion of these projects. 


User charges are lower than budgeted primarily due to fewer building applications than budgeted.


Federal Assistance Grants - early receipt of grants


Avoca Inclusive Playspace


Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Halls Project


Council budgeted for a gain on the disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment of


$71,000 and the actual result was a gain of $46,000.  
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note 1 Performance against budget (continued)


1.1 Income and expenditure(continued)


Explanation of material variations


Ref Item Explanation


6 Other income


122


Interest on investments less than budget  (29)


 (29)


64


7 Employee costs


8 Materials and services


4,509


4,509


9 Bad and doubtful debts


10 Depreciation


Flood recovery contractors


The level of other income received by Council had the following significant variations to budget


including:Workcover wage reimbursements greater than budget


Debt collection legal cost reimbursements less than budget 


Employee costs were predominantly under budget due temporary staff vacancies during the year.


Some of these vacancies are offset by contractors.


Fringe Benefits Tax has been lower than budgeted by $25k due to fewer private use cars. 


Council incurred significant expenditure on flood recovery activities and this was the prime driver in


materials and services expenses being significantly over budget. Flood related expenditure is


reimbursed by the Commonwealth Government post analysis of claims. Council was awaiting


reimbursement for part of this expenditure at year end.  


Depreciation is a non cash item. The Infrastructure Revaluation in 2018/19 found that there has been


a strong improvement in the overall condition of roads and bridges. The life of sub assets have


increased thereby reducing annual depreciation.  


During the year, a review of debtors had indicated that some outstanding amounts were not


recoverable e.g. they have reached their 12 month statute of limitation. The provision for bad and


doubtful debts has also been increased to allow for outstanding debts to be recognised in line with the


expected credit loss model. 
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note 1 Performance against budget (continued)


Budget Actual Variance Variance


1.2 Capital works 2019 2019 2019


$'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref


Property


Land - specialised 334           146            (188) -56% 11


Total Land 334           146            (188)


Buildings - specialised 110           469           359 326% 12


Building improvements -            37             37 100% 13


Total Buildings 110           506           396


Total Property 444           652           208


Plant and Equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment 982           759            (223) -23% 14


Fixtures, fittings and furniture 21             14              (7) -33%


Computers and telecommunications 116           92              (24) -21% 15


Library  collection 52             36              (16) -31% 16


Total Plant and Equipment 1,171        901           (270)          


Infrastructure


Roads 3,033        3,972        939 31% 17


Footpaths and cycleways 25             316           291 1164% 18


Drainage 50             417           367 734% 19


Bridges 523           847           324 62% 20


Recreational, leisure and community facilities 283           289           6 2%


Waste Management 56             291           235 420% 21


Total Infrastructure 3,970        6,132        2,162        


Total Capital Works Expenditure 5,585        7,685        2,100        


Represented by:


New asset expenditure 339           172           (167)          


Asset renewal expenditure 4,973        6,981        2,008        


Asset expansion expenditure 10             308           298           


Asset upgrade expenditure 263           225           (38)            


Total Capital Works Expenditure 5,585        7,686        2,101        
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Explanation of material variations


Ref Item Explanation


11 Land - specialised


12 Building Specialised


13 Building Improvements


14 Plant, machinery and 


equipment


15 Computers and 


telecommunications


16 Library 


collection


17 Roads


18 Footpaths and cycleways


19 Drainage


20 Bridges


21 Waste Management


The variance relates to the 2017/18 carried forward works on the Waubra Recreation Reserve toilet


block refurbishment. 


The variance relates to the 2017/18 carried forward works on the Beaufort Walkability project. 


One item of plant that Council currently leases is on order. Unspent budgets are carried forward into


2019/20 to facilitate renewal of the fleet and plant on a rolling basis. 


Council budgeted to purchase some vacant land to undertake a residential subdivision. The contract


for purchase has been signed and deposit paid.  The transaction will be completed in 2019/20.


The variance relates to the 2017/18 carried forward works on the Raglan, Redbank and Barkly halls


projects.


The variance primarily relates to the transition in the Wide Area Network (WAN) provider being


deferred to 2019/20. 


The variance primarily relates to 2 bridge projects funded by the Local Roads to Market Program


($472k) which were not part of the 2018/19 Budget and one 2017/18 carried forward Roads to


Recovery funded project ($285k).


This overspend is offset by a bridge project that is on the Shire's boundary and is project managed by


the neighbouring Shire. The budget is carried forward into 2019/20 to facilitate completion of the


project. 


The variance relates to the e-waste shed projects at Beaufort ($110k), Avoca ($116k) and Snake


Valley ($28k) which are funded by Sustainability Victoria in preparation of e-waste collection from 1st


July 2019. 


Expenditure on library collection renewal was significantly less than budget and this created a budget


saving of $16,000.


The variance relates to the 2017/18 carried forward works on the Roads to Recovery funded works. 


The variance primarily relates to projects funded by the Fixing Country Roads Program ($600k) and


Local Roads to Market Program($423k) which were not part of the 2018/19 Budget. 
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program 


Council delivers its functions and activities through the  following  programs.  


2 (a) Roads and Townships


We will plan, manage, maintain and renew infrastructure in a sustainable way that responds to the needs of the 


community.


Relationships and Advocacy 


We will build and maintain effective relationships with community, government and strategic partners, and advocate 


on key issues.


Community Connection and Wellbeing


We will engage with communities to provide responsive, efficient services that enhance the quality of life of 


residents and promote connected, active and resilient communities.


Financially Sustainable, High Performing Organisation


Our organisation will respond to community needs, attend to our core business, and strive for excellence in service 


delivery in an ethical and financially responsible manner.


Development and Environment 


We will undertake forward planning, and facilitate growth in our local economy while protecting key natural and built 


environmental values.
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Pyrenees Shire Council


2018/2019 Financial Report


Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program 


2.1 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program


 Income  Expenses 


 


Surplus/(D


eficit) 


 Grants 


included in 


income 


 Total assets 


2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Roads and Townships 3,186             4,241            (1,055)        3,034         224,234        


Relationships and Advocacy 318                3,519            (3,203)        -             3,410            


Community Connection and Wellbeing 1,574             2,631            (1,056)        1,190         3,852            


Financially Sustainable, High Performing Organisation -                 172               (172)           -             272               


Development and Environment 2,134             3,436            (1,301)        241            3,660            


Capital grants 4,101             -                4,101         4,101         1,084            


Net asset sales 56                  -                56              -             -               


Rates Revenue 8,686             -                8,686         -             402               


Federal Assistance Grants - general purpose 3,448             -                3,448         3,448         -               


Flood Restoration works 7,111             4,509            2,602         7,111         787               


Depreciation -                 6,031            (6,031)        -             -               


Cash and cash equivalent and other financial assets 12,050          


30,614           24,539          6,075         19,125       249,751        


 Income  Expenses 


 


Surplus/(D


eficit) 


 Grants 


included in 


income 


 Total assets 


2018 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Roads and Townships 2,266             4,292            (2,026)        2,127         217,717        


Relationships and Advocacy 554                3,374            (2,820)        35              3,685            


Community Connection and Wellbeing 1,455             2,731            (1,276)        1,045         4,010            


Financially Sustainable, High Performing Organisation -                 192               (192)           -             167               


Development and Environment 2,066             3,277            (1,211)        356            3,735            


Capital grants 2,515             -                2,515         2,515         -               


Net asset sales 83                  -                83              -             -               


Rates Revenue 8,446             -                8,446         -             443               


Federal Assistance Grants - general purpose 3,251             -                3,251         3,251         -               


Flood Restoration works 2,663             5,156            (2,493)        2,662         -               


Depreciation -                 6,704            (6,704)        -             -               


Cash and cash equivalent and other financial assets 8,685            


23,299           25,726          2,427-         11,991       238,442        


Notes to the Financial Report


For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Note: - This disclosure is in line with the Council Plan and Annual Budget. 
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services


3.1 Rates and service charges


Farm and Rural 4,374               3,926               


Residential 2,823               2,963               


Waste service charges 1,319               1,194               


Vacant land 865                  861                  


Wind Farm 304                  267                  


Commercial and Industrial 256                  359                  


Interest on rates and charges 48                    51                    


Recreation and Cultural 15                    18                    


Total rates and service charges 10,004             9,640               


3.2 Statutory fees and fines


Town planning fees                   148                   113 


Environmental health fees                     40                     41 


Land information and building certificate fees                     21                     22 


Fines                     20                     25 


Total statutory fees and fines 229                  201                  


3.3 User charges


Caravan park charges                   252                   214 


Home care charges                   154                   122 


Building charges                     30                     73 


Animal registration charges                   109                     95 


Rental and function charges                     70                     67 


Delivered meals charges                     35                     44 


Swimming pool charges                        -                        - 


Goldfields Recreation Reserve venue hire charges                     45                     35 


Waste disposal charges                     22                     20 


Resource and information centre charges                     27                     16 


Community transport charges                     10                       8 


Other charges                     42                     68 


Total user charges 796                  762                  


Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The CIV of


a property is its market value (land and buildings inclusive).


The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2018-2019 was $2,119 million (2017-2018 was $1,695 million). The


2018-2019 general rate - cents in the CIV dollar was 0.4228 (2016-2017, was 0.4980).


The date of the last general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2019, and the


valuation was first applied to the rating period commencing 1 July 2019.


Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are


recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.


Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or when


the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.


User  fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or council has otherwise earned the income.
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Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)


3.4


Commonwealth funded grants                7,119                7,975 


State funded grants              12,006                4,016 


Total grants received 19,125             11,991             


Operating Grants


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Federal Assistance Grants - general purpose                3,448                3,251 


Federal Assistance Grants - local roads                2,174                2,094 


Commonwealth Home Support Program                   508                   372 


Deparment of Veterans' Affairs Care                     10                     27 


Recurrent - State Government


                  135                   143 


Library                   117                   114 


Maternal & child health                   226                   155 


Youth outreach                        -                     17 


Adult day care                       2                       2 


Freeza                       6                     12 


Other                     43                     38 


6,669               6,225               


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Natural disaster - 35


Roadside weeds & pests - 40


Moonabel Water Supply Planning - 180


Non-recurrent - State Government


Flood damage natural disaster                7,110                2,663 


Recreation strategy                       3                        - 


L2P learner driver mentor program                     19                     19 


Evaluating Transport Connections                     15                        - 


Snake Valley Safer Together Project                     80                        - 


Emergency planning                     30                     90 


Roadside weeds and pests management                     48                     48 


Waubra oval water                        -                     20 


Avoca Oval - Playing surface                     41                        - 


Snake Valley Golf Club Sustainable Green                     38                        - 


Community Resilience Grant                     13                     52 


Straw Pallet Study                     20                       6 


Walk to School                     15                     10 


Avoca War Memorial                        -                       6 


Beaufort War Memorial                        -                     11 


Avoca War Memorial                     30                        - 


Recycling Services Temporary relief                       6                       6 


Avoca Inclusive Playspace                   187                        - 


Snake Valley Skate park                   225                        - 


Carngham Recreation Reserve - Female Friendly Toilets                   180                        - 


Upper Avoca River Flood Study                     80                        - 


Raglan Flood Study                     52                        - 


Grants were received in respect of the following :


Funding from other levels of government


Summary of grants


Aged care and senior citizens


Total recurrent operating grants
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)


3.4


Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project State Grant                     70                        - 


Intergrated Water Management - Beaufort Closed Loop State Grant                     80                        - 


Beaufort golf/bowls club water                        -                     14 


Beaufort Framework Plan                        -                     30 


Other                     13                     21 


8,355               3,251               


15,024             9,476               


Capital Grants


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Roads to recovery                   979                1,976 


Recurrent - State Government


Nil                        -                        - 


                  979                1,976 


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Road Black Spot                        -                        - 


Non-recurrent - State Government


Trawalla Road                     58                   232 


Beaufort Walkability Project                   150                        - 


E-waste project - Beaufort Transfer Station                   100                        - 


E-waste project - Avoca Transfer Station                   100                        - 


E-waste project - Snake Valley Transfer Station                     25                        - 


Bridge 91 Landsborough Elmhurst Road                   167                        - 


Bridge 13 - Beaufort Carngham Road                   279                        - 


Raglan Elmhurst Road                   381                        - 


Lexton Community Facility                   520                        - 


Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Hall                   138                     92 


Avoca Pool                        -                   112 


Moonambel Water Supply Planning                       4                     41 


Eurambeen Streatham Road - Stage 1 (FCR)                   600                        - 


Bridge 59 - Eurambeen Streatham Road (FCR)                   173                        - 


Eurambeen Streatham Road - Stage 2 (FCR)                     86                        - 


Raglan Elmhurst Road 1.68km Reconstruction  (FCR)                   158                        - 


Langi Kal Kal Road 1.75km Reconstruction (FCR)                   183                        - 


Landsborough Streetscape                        -                     50 


Beaufort - Carngham Road Bridge                        -                       2 


Other                        -                     10 


Total non-recurrent capital grants                3,122                   539 


Total capital grants                4,101                2,515 


Total grants              19,125              11,991 


Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner


Balance at start of year                3,778                3,444 


Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date                5,447                3,769 


Received in prior years and spent during the financial year  (3,716)  (3,435)


Balance at year end                5,509                3,778 


Total non-recurrent operating grants


Funding from other levels of government (continued)


Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution. Control is normally obtained upon receipt (or


acquittal).


Total operating grants


Total recurrent capital grants
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)


3.5


Monetary - Operating 16                    -                       


Monetary - Capital 63                    18                    


Total contributions 79                    18                    


3.6


Plant and equipment


173                  327                  


 (121)  (250)


52                    77                    


Land classified as held for resale


160                  570                  


Selling costs  (11)  (30)


 (155)  (565)


 (6)  (25)


46 52


3.7 Other income


Interest on investments 111                  164                  


Reimbursement - Workcover wages 132                  88                    


Reimbursement - State Revenue Office 71                    45                    


Legal fees - rates                       1                        - 


Private works 19                    99                    


Other 1                      239                  


335                  635                  


Note 4


4.1 Employee costs


Wages and salaries 6,251               5,664               


Superannuation 611                  573                  


Fringe benefits tax 65                    76                    


WorkCover insurance premium 75                    81                    


Total employee costs 7,002               6,394               


Superannuation


Council made contributions to the following funds:


Defined benefit fund


Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 113                  113                  


113                  113                  


-                       -                       


Total other income


Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Proceeds of sale 


Written down value of assets disposed


Proceeds of sale 


Carrying value of assets disposed


Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment


Net gain(loss) on disposal of land classified as held for resale


The cost of delivering services


Interest is recognised as it is earned.


Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when Council gains 


control over the right to receive the income.


Contributions


Monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the contributed asset.  


The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.


Defined benefits employer contributions payable at reporting date.
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 4 The cost of delivering services (continued)


Accumulation funds


498                  460                  


Employer contributions  - other funds -                       -                       


498                  460                  


Employer contributions payable at reporting date. -                       -                       


4.2


Contractors 6,834               8,329               


Consumables 1,176               1,179               


Contracted Service Delivery 1,502               1,308               


Cleaning Contract 144                  151                  


Library Service 48                    43                    


Meals on Wheels 38                    55                    


Swimming Pool 242                  236                  


Waste Collection 1,031               824                  


Insurance 348                  324                  


Electricity and water 233                  220                  


Plant expenses 234                  117                  


Information technology 170                  169                  


Telecommunications 159                  150                  


Subscriptions and memberships 83                    115                  


Advertising 117                   97                     


Legal fees 59                    81                    


64                    74                    


Conferences and training 86                    65                    


88                    56                    


Valuations 3                      34                    


Fire services levy 14                    17                    


Cleaning 2                       1                      


11,172             12,336             


4.3 Bad and doubtful debts


Community Care 2                      -                       


Fire hazard infringement debtors 8                      1                      


Local laws 3                      -                       


Other debtors 18                    -                       


Total bad and doubtful debts 30                    1                      


Movement in provision for doubtful debts


Balance at the beginning of the year -                       -                       


New provisions recognised during the year  (7) -                       


Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible -                       -                       


Amounts provided for but recovered during the year -                       -                       


Balance at end of year  (7)


Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.


Materials and services


Contributions and donations


Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model.  This model considers both historic and 


forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.


Stationery, postage, photocopying and printing


Total materials and services


Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


4.4 Depreciation


Infrastructure 4,260               4,846               


Property 1,216               1,300               


Plant and equipment 555                  558                  


6,031               6,704               


4.5 Borrowing costs


Interest on borrowings 2                      -                       


2                      -                       


4.6 Other expenses


Councillors' allowances 156                  153                  


Operating lease rentals 69                    74                    


Auditors' remuneration - internal auditor 29                    14                    


37                    36                    


Internal audit committee 11                    14                    


Total other expenses 302                  291                  


Auditors' remuneration - audit of the financial statements, performance statements and 


grant acquittals by the Victorian Auditor General's Office (VAGO) 


Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as 


part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.


Total borrowing costs


Refer to note 6.2 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation charges and accounting policy.


Total depreciation
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 5 Our financial position


5.1 Financial assets


(a) Cash and cash equivalents


Term deposits 6,000              -                      


Cash at bank 6,028              8,678              


Cash on hand 2                     2                     


Total cash and cash equivalents 12,030            8,680              


(b) Other financial assets


Term deposits - current 20                   5                     


Total other financial assets 20                   5                     


- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3(b) ) 156                 120                 


- Recreational land reserve (Note 9.1(b) ) 9                     9                     


Total restricted funds 165                 129                 


11,865            8,551


Intended allocations


6,065              3,889              


2,874              2,703              


364                 1,080              


9,303              7,672              


(c) Trade and other receivables


Current


Statutory receivables


Rates debtors 280                 383                 


Net Australian Taxation Office receivable 263                 161                 


Private scheme debtors 10                   11                   


Provision for Doubtful Debts  (7) -                      


Non statutory receivables


Sundry debtors 1,297              226                 


Total current trade and other receivables 1,843              781                 


Non-current


Statutory receivables


Private scheme debtors 57                   65                   


Total non-current trade and other receivables 57                   65                   


Total trade and other receivables 1,900              846                 


 - Other grant funding received in advance


Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use.


These include:


Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:


 - Net cash held to fund carried forward capital works


Total funds subject to intended allocations


Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 


 - Victoria Grants Commission funding received in advance


Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective


evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest


rate method.


Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities


of 90 days or less.


Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any unrealised gains


and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.  
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 5 Our financial position (continued)


5.1 Financial assets (continued)


(c) Trade and other receivables (continued)


Ageing of receivables


Current (not yet due) 1,226              111                 


Past due by up to 30 days 39                   37                   


Past due between 31 and 180 days 9                     51                   


Past due between 181 and 365 days 4                     6                     


Past due by more than 1 year 19                   21                   


Total trade and other receivables 1,297              226                 


5.2 Non-financial assets


(a) Inventories


Inventories held for sale 2                     4                     


Total inventories 2                     4                     


(b) Other assets


Prepayments 200                   404                   


Accrued Income 838                   277                   


Total other assets 1,038                681                   


Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 


The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 5 Our financial position (continued)


5.3 Payables


(a) Trade and other payables


Trade payables 1,144              1,448              


Accrued payables 340                 231                 


Total trade and other payables 1,484              1,679              


(b) Trust funds and deposits


Refundable deposits 65                   62                   


Landsborough Community trust funds 66                   34                   


Camp Hill trust funds 17                   17                   


Other refundable deposits 8                     7                     


Total trust funds and deposits 156                 120                 


5.4 Employee provisions


Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,004              2,182              


Additional provisions 604                 556                 


Amounts used  (422)  (709)


11  (25)


Balance at the end of the financial year 2,197              2,004              


Employee provisions


Annual leave 380                 396                 


Long service leave 570                 477                 


950                 873                 


Annual leave 168                 172                 


Long service leave 950                 879                 


1,118              1,051              


Total current employee provisions 2,068              1,924              


Non-current provisions


Long service leave 129                 80                   


Total non-current provisions 129                 80                   


Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months


Increase/decrease in the discounted amount arising because of time and the effect of 


any change in the discount rate


Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are


returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in


council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.


Total current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months


Total current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months


Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months


Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or


a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the


elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.


Purpose and nature of items


Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in relation to


building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 5 Our financial position (continued)


5.4 Employee provisions (continued)


Current 2,068              1,924              


Non-current 129                 80                   


2,197              2,004              


The following assumptions were adopted in measuring the present value of employee benefits:


Weighted average increase in employee costs 4.313% 3.875%


Weighted average discount rates 1.324% 2.647%


Weighted average long service leave settlement period 15 years 15 years


5.5 Financing arrangements


Credit card facilities 16                   38                   


Total facilities 16                   38                   


Unused credit card facilities 34                   12                   


Unused facilities 34                   12                   


Council does not have a bank overdraft facility.


Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions


Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for


employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities


are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.


Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present value.


Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach


a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability.


The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.


Wages and salaries and annual leave


Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be wholly settled within 12


months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the


reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.


Long service leave


Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
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Note 5


5.6


2019
Not later than 


1 year


Later than 1 


year and not 


later than 2 


years


Later than 2 


years and not 


later than 5 


years


Later than 5 


years Total


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


Operating


49               50               -              -              99               


864             -              -              -              864             


270             46               -              -              316             


139             142             295             -              576             


17               -              -              -              17               


138             145             182             465             


164 28               -              -              192             


1,641          411             477             -              2,529          


Capital


Motor Grader 378             -              -              -              378             


Amphitheatre Toilet Block 76               -              -              -              76               


Land Purchase - Correa Park 675             -              -              -              675             


Bridge 91 330             -              -              -              330             


Bridge 13 263             -              -              -              263             


1,722          -              -              -              1,722          


2018


Operating


81               -              -              -              81               


839             -              -              -              839             


264             270             46               -              580             


83               -              -              -              83               


16               17               -              -              33               


1,283          287             46               -              1,616          


Capital


Signage project 18               -              -              -              18               


18               -              -              -              18               


2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


22               75               


55               8                 


-              


77               83               


At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment


for use within Council's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):


Later than one year and not later than five years


Later than five years


Total operating lease commitments


Not later than one year


Our financial position (continued)


The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments


are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.


Telecommunications


Total capital commitments


Swimmming pool


Waste services


Cleaning services


Commitments


Delivered meals


Waste services


Internal audit


Total operating commitments


Total capital commitments


Environmental Health


(a) Contractual Commitments


(b) Operating lease commitments


Delivered meals


Swimmming pool


Internal audit


Total operating commitments


Cleaning services
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2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Note 6 Assets we manage


6.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale


Residential land held for sale -                  155             


Industrial land held for sale -                  -                  


-                  155             


Movement in non-current assets classified as held for sale


Balance at beginning of financial year 155             870             


Additions -                  50               


Disposals  (155)  (565)


Transfers -  (200)


Revaluation increment/(decrement) - -


Balance at end of financial year -                  155             


Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair


value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related liabilities and


assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction


rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale


(or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.


Total non-current assets classified as held for sale


Valuation of residential and industrial land held for sale


Valuation of residential and industrial land held for sale has been determined in accordance with a valuation by qualified


independent valuer Mr Chris Barrett, BSc., MBA, AAPI, Certified Practicing Valuer, who has recent experience in the location and


category of the property being valued. The valuation is at fair value, based on the current market value for the property. The


residential and industrial land is held at the lower of carrying value or fair value.
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


At Fair 


Value 30 


June 2018 Additions Revaluation Depreciation Disposal Transfers


At Fair 


Value 30 


June 2019


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


Land 6,808       130 -  (172) - 47 6,813       


Buildings 28,069     861 -  (1,044) - 81 27,967     


Plant and Equipment 3,457       901 -  (555)  (121) - 3,683       


Infrastructure 189,452   5,032 5,200  (4,260) - 60 195,487   


Work in progress 284          760 - - -  (232) 812          


TOTAL 228,070   7,684 5,200  (6,031)  (121)  (43) 234,762   


Summary of Work in Progress (WIP)


Opening WIP Additions Transfers Write Offs Closing WIP


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


Infrastructure 159          566           (107) - 618          


Property 125          194           (125) - 194          


TOTAL 284          760           (232) - 812          


Pyrenees Shire Council


2018/2019 Financial Report


Notes to the Financial Report


For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)


(a) Property Land - 


specialised


Land 


improvements


Total 


Land and 


Land 


Improvements


Buildings - 


specialised


Total 


Buildings


Work In 


Progress


Total 


Property


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


At fair value 1 July 2018 4,178       4,597       8,775       52,191     52,191     125          61,091     


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018 -                (1,967)  (1,967)  (24,122)  (24,122) -                (26,089)


Written down value at 1 July 2018 4,178       2,630       6,808       28,069     28,069     125          35,002     


Movements in fair value


Additions -               130          130          861          861          194          1,185       


Revaluation -               - -               -               -               -               -               


Transfers -               47 47            81            81             (125) 3              


Movements in value for year -               177 177 942          942          69            1,188       


Movements in accumulated depreciation


Depreciation -                (172)  (172)  (1,044)  (1,044) -                (1,216)


Transfers -               -               -               -               -               -               -               


-                (172)  (172)  (1,044)  (1,044) -                (1,216)


At fair value 30 June 2019 4,178       4,774       8,952       53,133     53,133     194          62,279     


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019 -                (2,139)  (2,139)  (25,166)  (25,166) -                (27,305)


Written down value at 30 June 2019        4,178        2,635 6,813       27,967     27,967     194          34,974     


(b) Plant and Equipment Plant, machinery 


and equipment


Fixtures, fittings 


and furniture


Computers and 


telecommun-


ications


Library 


collection


Total plant 


and 


equipment


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


At fair value 1 July 2018 5,954       307          1,362       362          7,985       


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018  (2,768)  (258)  (1,238)  (264)  (4,528)


Written down value at 1 July 2018 3,186       49            124          98            3,457       


Movements in fair value


Additions 758          14            93            36            901          


Disposals  (512) -               -               -                (512)


Movements in value for year 246          14            93            36            389          


Movements in accumulated depreciation


Depreciation  (477)  (12)  (52)  (14)  (555)


Accumulated depreciation of disposals 391          -               -               -               391          


86-             (12)  (52)  (14)  (164)


At fair value 30 June 2019 6,201       321          1,455       398          8,375       


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019  (2,854)  (270)  (1,290)  (278)  (4,692)


Written down value at 30 June 2019        3,347             51           165           120 3,683       


Movements in accumulated 


depreciation for year


Movements in accumulated 


depreciation for year
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Roads Bridges


Footpaths 


and 


cycleways Drainage


Other 


structures


Work In 


Progress
Total 


Infrastructure


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 


At fair value 1 July 2018 237,886   51,047     1,984       19,253     813          159          311,142   


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018  (90,399)  (22,997)  (1,059)  (6,665)  (411) -                (121,531)


Written down value at 1 July 2018 147,487   28,050     925          12,588     402          159          189,611   


Movements in fair value


Additions 3,981       285          315          432          19            566          5,599       


Revaluation  (6,060)  (6,126) 196 1,215       -               -                (10,775)


Disposals -               


Impairment losses recognised in operating result -               


Transfers 18            35            1              5               (107) 47-            


Movements in value for year  (2,079)  (5,822) 546 1,649 24 459  (5,223)


Movements in accumulated depreciation


Depreciation  (3,621)  (349)  (43)  (215)  (32) -                (4,260)


Revaluation 12,089 4,192       88             (394) -               -               15,976


Impairment losses recognised in operating result -               -               -               -               -               -               -


Transfers -               -               -               -               -               -               -


8,468 3,843 45  (609)  (32) -               11,716


At fair value 30 June 2019 235,808   45,225     2,531       20,902     837          618          305,921   


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019  (81,931)  (19,154)  (1,014)  (7,274)  (443) -                (109,815)


Written down value at 30 June 2019 153,877   26,071     1,517       13,628     394          618          196,105   


Movements in accumulated 


depreciation for year


(c) Infrastructure
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)


Recognition and measurement of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Acquisition


Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods


Asset category 2019 2018 $'000 


Property


   land - -                     -   


   land improvements 25 25                     10 


Buildings


   heritage buildings                     10 


   buildings 120 120                     10 


   building improvements                     10 


   leasehold improvements                     10 


Plant and Equipment


   plant, machinery and equipment 5-10 5-10                       1 


   fixtures, fittings and furniture 3-10 3-10                       1 


   computers and telecommunications 3-10 3-10                       1 


   library collection 3-10 3-10                       1 


Infrastructure


   sealed roads formation 100.0 100.0                     10 


   unsealed roads formation 100.0 100.0                     10 


   sealed roads pavement 88.7 80.4                     10 


   unsealed roads pavement 34.4 25.0                     10 


   sealed surfaces 20.4 18.5                     10 


   footpaths 52.6 52.1                     10 


   kerb and channel 78.1 78.1                     10 


   major culverts, pipes and pits 80-100 80-100                     10 


   bridges 128.0 108.0                     10 


   other structures 10-25 10-25                       1 


The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as


consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that


would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the


measurement date.


Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs


incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed  overheads.


In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset


class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.


Depreciation Period (years) Threshold 


LimitFor the year ended 30 June:
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)


Depreciation


Repairs and maintenance


Valuation of land and buildings 


Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Specialised land 30.06.2018 -                      -                      4,178              


Land improvements 30.06.2018 -                      -                      2,635              


Specialised buildings 30.06.2018 -                      -                      27,967            


Total property -                      -                      34,780            


Valuation of infrastructure


Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced)


characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services.


This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income


statement.


Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are


systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service


potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis


with major asset classes reassessed annually.  Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.


Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are


assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.


Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.


Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.


Depreciation periods used are listed previously and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.


Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the


cost is capitalised and depreciated.  The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed. 


Valuation of land and buildings was undertaken by qualified independent valuer Mr Chris Barrett, BSc., MBA, AAPI, Certified


Practicing Valuer. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use


permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the


valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has


no impact on the comprehensive income statement.   


Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land will have a significant impact on the fair value of these assets.


Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:


Date of Valuation


Valuation of bridge, footpath and cycleway, kerb and channel, road pavement, road formation and sealed surface assets has


been determined in accordance with an independent valuation undertaken by Mr Peter Moloney, Dip. C.E., MIE Australia.  
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Note 6 Assets we manage (continued)


6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)


Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Roads  31.12.2018 -                      -                      153,877           


Footpaths and cycleways  31.12.2018 -                      -                      1,517              


Drainage   31.12.2018 -                      -                      13,628            


Bridges    31.12.2018 -                      -                      26,071            


Other structures   30.06.2016 -                      -                      394                 


Total infrastructure -                      -                      195,487           


2019 2018


Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 $'000 


Recreation 2,054              2,054              


Industry 439                 439                 


Tourism 638                 638                 


Works 390                 390                 


Waste management 340                 340                 


Children's services 68                   68                   


Roads 181                 181                 


Administration 67                   67                   


Total specialised land 4,177              4,177              


6.3


Committees of management


Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant


unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The


extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values between 0% and 90%.


The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions.


Currently land values range between $1 and $266 per square metre.  


Valuation of major culvert, pit and pipe assets has been determined in accordance with a valuation undertaken by Council's


Manager of Assets, Mr Robert Rowe.  


The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.


Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:


Date of Valuation


Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations


Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable inputs include


the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs is calculated on a square


metre basis and ranges from $141 to $4,575 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on


the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 28 years to 50 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes


in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are


sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.


Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the


current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are


determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from one year to 128 years. Replacement cost is


sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful


lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the


useful lives of infrastructure assets.


Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries


Council does not have any investments in associates, joint arrangements or subsidiaries.


All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, such as Committees of


Management, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have been


eliminated in full.
The following Local Government Act 1989  Section 86 Committee of Council has been consolidated into this financial report: 


Beaufort Community Bank Complex.
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2019 2018


Note 7 People and relationships No. No.


7.1 Council and key management remuneration


(a) Related Parties


Pyrenees Shire Council is the parent entity.


Subsidiaries and Associates


As at 30 June 2019 Council does not have any interests in any subsidiaries and/or associates.


(b) Key Management Personnel


Councillors Councillor David Clark (Mayor 01.07.2018 - 30.10.2018)


Councillor Robert Vance (Mayor 30.10.2018 - current)


Councillor Ronald Eason


Councillor Tanya Kehoe


Councillor Damien Ferrari (28.08.2018 - current)


Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer


Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services


Douglas Gowans - Director Assets and Development


Total Number of Councillors                 5                 5 


Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 3               4               


Total of Key Management Personnel 8               9               


(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


Short-term benefits 677           782           


Long-term benefits               20               11 


Post-employment benefits               60               83 


Total Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 757           876           


2019 2018


No. No.
                1 


                2                 3 


1               1               


1               1               


                1 


                1                 1 


                1 


                1 


$200,000 - $215,999


$230,000 - $239,999 1               1               


Total Key Management Personnel 8               9               


Parent entity


Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:


The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any 


related entities, fall within the following bands:


Income Range:


$30,000 - $39,999


$20,000 - $29,999


Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the 


year are:


$10,000 - $19,999


$190,000 - $199,999


Short term benefits include wages, salaries, councillor allowances, accrued annual leave and non-monetary car benefits.


Long term benefits include long service accrued during the year.


Post employment benefits refers to superannuation benefits earned during the year.


All of these are included within the bandings below.


$120,000 - $129,999


$180,000 - $189,999


$160,000 - $169,999


$40,000 - $49,999


$110,000 - $119,999


$100,000 - $109,999


$50,000 - $59,999


$170,000 - $179,999
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2019 2018


Note 7 People and relationships (continued)


7.1 Council and key management remuneration (continued)


7.2 Related party disclosure


2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


2               5               


-            -            


1               


71             70             


73             76             


All of the above transactions were at arms length and in the normal course of Council's business.


2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


                -                 - 


                -                 - 


                - 


                -                 - 


                -                 - 


                -                 - 


The aggregate amount of commitments  in existence at balance date that have been made, 


guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party are as follows:


A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who: 


a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or


(d) Senior Officers Remuneration


Total outstanding balances with related parties as at 30 June


Employee remuneration under normal employment terms


During the year Council did not have any staff that were deemed to be Senior Officers under the above definition (nil in


2017/2018).


Payment of community grants under normal funding terms


b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $148,000


(c) Loans to/from related parties


(d) Commitments to/from related parties


The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or 


secured by the Council to a related party as follows:


Purchase of goods and services under normal trading terms


(a) Transactions with related parties 


During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.


Purchase of goods and services under normal trading terms


The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions 


with related parties


Payment of community grants under normal funding terms


Total transactions with related parties 


(b) Outstanding balances with related parties 


Employee remuneration under normal employment terms


Leasing out council building facility
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Note 8


8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities


Contingent assets


Contingent liabilities


Superannuation


Liability Mutual Insurance


8.2 Change in accounting standards


Council has elected to adopt the modified retrospective approach to the transition to the new lease standard. This will mean that


only existing operating leases for non low value assets, with remaining terms greater than 12 months, will be recognised on


transition (1 July 2019). Based on our current lease commitments and an assumption of a continuation of the current leasing


arrangements Council expects that the transition to the new standard will see the initial recognition of $56,282 in lease related


assets and an equivalent liability


During the year, Council completed flood recovery works of 4.5m. Council expects to be reimbursed outstanding claims of


$787,000 upon review of claims in 2019/20.


Managing uncertainties


The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition is determined based on what


the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations), while measurement encompasses estimation by the entity of the


amount expected to be entitled for performing under the contract. The full impact of this standard is not known however it is most


likely to impact where contracts extend over time, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the timing or amount of the


consideration, or where there are multiple performance elements. This has the potential to impact on the recognition of certain


grant income. 


Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 2016-7) (applies


2019/20)


Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)


This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019.


Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme.  The LMI scheme provides public liability and 


professional indemnity insurance cover.  The LMI scheme states that each participant  will remain liable to make further 


contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was a participant to the extent of its participant’s share of 


any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such liability will continue whether or not the 


participant remains a participant in future insurance years. 


In addition to the disclosed contributions, Pyrenees Shire Council has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super totalling $0


paid during the 2017/18 year ($0 paid during the 2016/17 year). There were no contributions outstanding and no loans issued


from or to the above scheme as at 30 June 2018. The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision


Super for the year ending 30 June 2020 are $74,000


The following new Australian Accounting Standards (AAS's) have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2019


reporting period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from


the application of these standards in future reporting periods.


Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional


contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in financial


markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. 


Future superannuation contributions


Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20 for Local Government sector)


The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised in the


Balance Sheet by capitalising the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a ‘right-of-use’ asset, while future


lease payments will be recognised as a financial liability. The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or loss will change.


Rather than being shown as rent, or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’ asset, and an


interest charge on the lease liability. The interest charge will be calculated using the effective interest method, which will result in


a gradual reduction of interest expense over the lease term.
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Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058 ) (applies 2019/20)


Note 8


8.3


 - monitoring of return on investment; and


- Council only invests surplus funds with financial institutions which have the recognised credit rating specified in its investment


policy.


Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit risk


associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable


property. 


There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.


Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when Council


provide a guarantee for another party. At balance date Council has not provided any guarantees to any third parties.


The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any


provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does


not hold any collateral.


Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in


market prices.  The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other 


price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 


 - Council may require collateral where appropriate; and


(c) Interest rate risk


Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate


due to changes in market interest rates. Council does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair


value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash


flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash


flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates. 


Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989. Council manages


interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:


 - diversification of investment product;


 - benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.


There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest


rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.


Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result.


(d) Credit risk


Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to


make a financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet. Particularly


significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and receivables from sporting clubs


and associations.   To help manage this risk:


 - Council has a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities it deals with; 


Financial Instruments


(a)  Objectives and policies


The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory receivables)


and payables (excluding statutory payables). Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the


criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of


each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the Notes of the financial statements. Risk


management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification


and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.


(b) Market risk


Managing uncertainties (continued)


This standard replaces AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for transactions where the


consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable to not-for-profit entity to further its objectives.
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Note 8


8.3


 - monitors budget to actual performance on a regular basis.


(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis


Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of


the financial markets,  Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months:


 - has a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;


To help reduce these risks Council:


(e) Liquidity risk


Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds to


settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or recover a


financial asset.


 - has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;


 - has readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;


Financial Instruments (continued)


Managing uncertainties (continued)


 - A parallel shift of +2.0% and -1.0% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end cash rates of 1.25% (1.25% at 30 June 2019).


These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they have a


material impact on the results of Council's operations.


The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the


balance sheet, and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.


There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or


the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.


All financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.  


Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
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Note 8


8.4 Fair value measurement


8.5 Events occurring after balance date 


Managing uncertainties


No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.


Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting


Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition


of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian


Accounting Standards.


AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly


transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of


whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 


Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's financial assets


and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 


Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities


Revaluation


Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured


at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly


transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying


value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair


value.  Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.


Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only


occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or


practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and


infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from three to five years. The valuation is performed either by experienced


council officers or independent experts.


Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to


the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an


expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements


are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of


asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class


of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.


Impairment of assets


All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a


fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement


as a whole:


Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 


or indirectly observable; and


Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is


unobservable.


For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the


nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.


In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing


categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of


each reporting period.


At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that


these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the


asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the


assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is


carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in


respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation


surplus for that same class of asset.
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Note 9 Other matters


9.1 Reserves


(a) Asset revaluation reserve $'000 $'000 $'000


2019


Property


Land 2,455              -                  2,455              


Buildings 20,700            -                  20,700            


Total property revaluation reserve 23,155            -                  23,155            


Infrastructure


Roads 95,299            6,029              101,328           


Footpaths and cycleways 827                 284                 1,111              


Drainage  10,636            822                 11,458            


Bridges   20,172            (1,934)             18,238            


Plant and equipment 301                 -                  301                 


Furniture and fittings 40                   -                  40                   


Total infrastructure revaluation reserve 127,275           5,200              132,475           


Total asset revaluation reserves 150,430           5,200              155,630           


2018


Property


Land 1,845              610                 2,455              


Buildings 19,140            1,560              20,700            


Total property revaluation reserve 20,985            2,170              23,155            


Infrastructure


Roads 92,401            2,898              95,299            


Footpaths and cycleways 827                 -                  827                 


Drainage  10,636            -                  10,636            


Bridges   20,172            -                  20,172            


Plant and equipment 301                 -                  301                 


Furniture and fittings 40                   -                  40                   


Total infrastructure revaluation reserve 124,377           2,898              127,275           


Total asset revaluation reserves 145,362           5,068              150,430           


Balance at


beginning of 


reporting period


Transfer from 


accumulated 


surplus


Balance at end 


of reporting 


period


(b) Recreational land reserve $'000 $'000 $'000


2019


Recreational land 9                     -                  9                     


Total recreational land reserves 9                     -                  9                     


2018


Recreational land 9                     -                  9                     


Total recreational land reserves 9                     -                  9                     


The recreational land reserve contains contributions paid by developers undertaking the subdivision of residential land.


These funds are required to be expended on the creation or expansion of recreational opportunities for the community, and


are held until such time the relevant expenditure is incurred.


Pyrenees Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report


2018/2019 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2019


Balance at


beginning of 


reporting period


Increment 


(decrement)


Balance at


 end of 


reporting period


The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.
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Note 9 Other matters (continued)
2019 2018


$'000 $'000 


9.2


Surplus/(deficit) for the year 6,075              (2,427)             


Depreciation 6,031              6,704              


(46)                  (52)                  


-                  -                  


Borrowing costs 2                     -                  


Change in assets and liabilities:


(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables (1,054)             101                 


Decrease in inventories 2                     2                     


(Increase) in prepayments 204                 (181)                


(Increase)/Decrease in accrued income (561)                (266)                


Increase in trade and other payables (195)                81                   


Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 193                 (178)                


Increase/(Decrease) in trust funds and deposits 36                   17                   


Net GST on operating activities 631                 292                 


Net cash provided by operating activities 11,318            4,092              


9.3 Superannuation


Fair value adjustment for non-current assets classified as held for sale


Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)


Net investment returns 6.5% pa


Salary information 3.5% pa


Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa.


Vision Super has advised that the VBI at 30 June 2019 was 107.1%. 


The VBI is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2018 interim


actuarial investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change


was necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.


Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on


the advice of the Fund Actuary. For the year ended 30 June 2019, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in


2017/2018).  


As at 30 June 2018, an interim actuarial investigation was conducted. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit


category of which Council is a contributing employer was 106%. To determine the VBI, the Fund Actuary used the following


long-term assumptions:


Council makes majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities


Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of


which is funded differently.


Accumulation


The Fund's accumulation categories receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer


contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2019, this was


9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation).   


Defined Benefit


Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit


category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.   


Funding arrangements
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Note 9 Other matters (continued)


9.3 Superannuation (continued)


2018 


$


2017


$


A VBI surplus $131.90 $69.80


A total service liability surplus $218.30 $193.50


A discounted accrued benefits surplus $249.10 $228.80


An interim actuarial investigation will be conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2019. It is anticipated that this


actuarial investigation will be completed in October 2019.


The 2019 interim actuarial investigation


The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the


vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2018.


Council was notified of the 30 June 2018 VBI during August 2018.


The 2018 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts


An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit Category of which Council is a contributing


employer. Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are


conducted for each intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2018 and full actuarial


investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2017. 
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Performance Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 


REFERENCES 


Reg R 


Better Practice  BP 


 


R17(1) 
 
 
 
BP 


Description of municipality 


 


Pyrenees Shire is located in the Central West of Victoria, about 130 kilometers North West of 
Melbourne. It is heavily dependent on primary industry and is renowned for its wool, viticulture 
and forestry activity. Thirty percent of the workforce is involved in agriculture. Key areas of 
production are wool, cereal, hay crops and meat. Grape and wine production has expanded 
significantly in recent times.  Gold, along with sand, gravel and slate all contribute to the 
economy.  
 
The Pyrenees Shire comprises an area of nearly 3,500 square kilometres and a population of 
7,353 residents. The Shire takes its name from the ranges in the north that hold similarity to the 
Pyrenees Ranges in Europe. 
 
Council administration is based in the township of Beaufort, and a number of Council services 
also operate from the township of Avoca. These services include health and aged care, roads 
and infrastructure maintenance, library and information centres. 
 
Excellent educational facilities are available in the Pyrenees Shire, including integrated 
children’s centres, primary schools, a secondary college and Community Resource and 
Information Centres incorporating adult education and library services. 
 
Recreational activities are available in abundance in the region, giving community members and 
visitors wonderful opportunities to experience new pastimes. Most townships in the Shire have 
their own sporting facilities, such as sports ovals and netball courts. Avoca and Beaufort also 
have skate parks.  
 
Tourism is ever growing throughout the region. Hang-gliding from Mount Cole, croquet in 
Beaufort, the French game of Petanque in Avoca and the long-running Lake Goldsmith Steam 
Rally, attract large numbers of visitors year round.  In recent years, the action sport of 
mountain bike riding has risen in popularity. 
 
In addition to the sporting opportunities, the Pyrenees is known for its wineries and culinary 
delights. Community markets are a popular attraction, as are the region’s antique fairs, picnic 
horse races and music festivals. 
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 


 


 Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 


R15(3) 


Sch3 


R16(1) 


R17(2) 


Population 


Expenses per head of municipal 


population 


[Total expenses / Municipal 


population] 


$2,779.24 $3,156.69 $3,501.57 $3,337.28 Expenses for 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 have been higher than 


normal due to flood recovery works associated with 3 flood events in 


2016.17.  These works are now complete. 


 Infrastructure per head of municipal 


population 


[Value of infrastructure / Municipal 


population] 


$32,563.03 $30,256.40 $30,115.97 $31,000.82 The increase in infrastructure is as a result of the impact of 


infrastructure revaluations in 2018/19. 


 Population density per length of road 


[Municipal population / kilometres of 


local roads] 


3.47 3.71 3.73 3.59 Population density per length of road has remained consistent with 


prior years. 


 Own-source revenue 


Own-source revenue per head of 


municipal population 


[Own-source revenue / Municipal 


population] 


$1,436.68 $1,494.45 $1,536.68 $1,551.75 Increase in own source revenue is in line with the rate cap. 


 Recurrent grants 


Recurrent grants per head of 


municipal population 


[Recurrent grants / Municipal 


population] 


$492.67 $1,458.98 $1,116.24 $1,040.12 The early payment of the Federal Assistance Grants inflated the ratio 


in 2016/17 (which received full allocation for 2016/17 and ½ 


allocation for 2017/18).  The ratio has gone down between 2017/18 


and 2018/19 because of Roads to Recovery quarterly advance 


payments from 2017/18. 


 Disadvantage 


Relative socio-economic 


disadvantage of the municipality 


[Index of Relative Socio-economic 


Disadvantage by decile] 


1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 Improvements in the economic and social conditions of households 


within the Pyrenees Shire has resulted in a SEIFA Index move in 


2018/19 up two levels from the most disadvantages of areas 


reported by the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS). 
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BP 
 


Definitions 
 


"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:  
a) Non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and 
b) Non-monetary asset contributions; and 
c) Contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above. 


 “infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land 
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road 
Management Act 2004 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council 
(including government grants) 
"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant 
financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 
2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA 
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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Service Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 


 


 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 


R15(1) 


Sch3 


R16(1) 


R17(2) 


Aquatic facilities utilisation 


Utilisation of aquatic facilities 


[Number of visits to aquatic facilities 


/ Municipal population] 


2.81 1.66 1.66 1.48 Cooler weather conditions contributed to fluctuating attendance, 


although attendances remain above target levels. 


Animal management  


Animal management prosecutions 


[Number of successful animal 


management prosecutions] 


0.00 0.00 0.00 3.00 Increased enforcement activity was undertaken in 2018/19 to 


maximize public safety. 


Food safety 


Critical and major non-compliance 


outcome notifications 


[Number of critical and major non-


compliance outcome notifications 


about a food premises followed up / 


Number of critical and major non-


compliance outcome notifications 


about a food premises] x 100 


50.00% 42.86% 75.00% 100.00% Notifications increased in 2018/19 to 100% as a result of a program, 


started in 2017/18, to increase public safety and compliance 


monitoring within the Shire. 


Governance Satisfaction 


Satisfaction with council decisions 


[Community satisfaction rating out of 


100 with how Council has performed 


in making decisions in the interest of 


the community) 


 


 


 


 


 


56.00 62.00 57.00 56.00 Community satisfaction with Council’s decision making remains 


above the State-wide and small rural council averages. 
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 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 


Home and Community Care (HACC) 


Participation  


Participation in the Home and 


Community Care service 


[Number of people that received a 


community care service / Municipal 


target population for services] x 100 


n/a n/a n/a n/a Reporting on Home and Community Care ceased on 1 July 2016 due 


to the introduction of Commonwealth Government’s NDIS and CHSP 


programs. 


HACC Participation by CALD people 


Participation in the Home and 


Community Care service by CALD 


people 


[Number of CALD people who 


receive a HACC service / Municipal 


target population in relation to CALD 


people for HACC services] x 1000 


n/a n/a n/a n/a Reporting on Home and Community Care ceased on 1 July 2016 due 


to the introduction of Commonwealth Government’s NDIS and CHSP 


programs. 


Libraries participation 


Active library members 


[Number of active library members / 


Municipal population] x 100 


10.80% 9.78% 11.00% 11.02% The number of active members in the Pyrenees remains steady. 


Maternal and child health 


Participation 


Participation in the MCH Service 


[Number of children who attend 


MCH service at least once (in the 


year) / Number of children enrolled 


in the MCH service] x 100 


 


 


 


 


 


86.63% 88.56% 83.77% 88.62% Increased maternal and child health nurses has enabled the 


participation rate to increase. 
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 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 


MCH Participation  


Participation in the MCH Service by 


Aboriginal children 


[Number of Aboriginal children who 


attend the MCH service at least once 


(in the year) / Number of children 


enrolled in the MCH service] x 100 


66.67% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% Low numbers of participants can result in high variations year on 


year, however the 100% participation rate has remains consistent 


over the last few years. 


Roads Satisfaction 


Satisfaction with sealed local roads 


[Community satisfaction rating out of 


100 with how council has performed 


on the condition of sealed local 


roads] 


54.00 55.00 54.00 54.00 Community satisfaction with sealed roads remains constant and 


above the average result for small rural councils. 


Statutory Planning – decision 


making 


Council planning decisions upheld at 


VCAT 


[Number of VCAT decisions that did 


not set aside council’s decision in 


relation to a planning application 


/Number of VCAT decisions in 


relation to planning applications] x 


100 


0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% There were no VCAT Council decisions in relation to planning 


applications in 2018/2019. 


Waste Collection – waste diversion 


Kerbside collection waste diverted 


from landfill 


[Weight of recyclables and green 


organics collected from kerbside bins 


/ Weight of garbage, recyclables and 


green organics collected from 


kerbside bins] x 100 


38.61% 39.36% 42.02% 31.22% A change in methodology from estimated weights to accurate 


measurements for comingled recycling has resulted in a change in 


diversion rate calculations, however Council continues to focus on 


initiatives that reduce the amount of waste going to landfill, 


particularly in the current recycling environment.  Community 


perceptions regarding the recycling sector may also have contributed 


negatively to the rate of participation in recycling. 
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BP 


 
Definitions 
 
"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person 
"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006 
"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library 
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act 
“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose 
national language is not English 
“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 
1 food premises under section 19C of that Act 
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of 
that Act 
"Community Care Common Standards "means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC 
services, published from time to time by the Commonwealth 
"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of 
the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health 
"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984 
"HACC program" means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into for the purpose of the Home and Community Care 
Act 1985 of the Commonwealth 
"HACC service" means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program 
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road 
Management Act 2004 
"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council 
by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken 
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth 
until school age 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council 
“Target population” has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home 
and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth 


“WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident” means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian 
WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004. 
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Financial Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 
 


 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 


R15(2) 
Sch3 
R16(1) 
R16(2) 


 
R17(2) 
R17(3) 


Efficiency 


Revenue level 


Average residential rate per 


residential property 


assessment 


[Residential rate revenue / 


Number of residential 


property assessments] 


$877.80 $956.16 $987.67 $941.00 $1,026.73 $1,052.40 $1,078.71 $1,105.68 Increase in own source revenue is in 


line with the rate cap. 


Expenditure level 


Expenses per property 


assessment 


[Total expenses / Number of 


property assessments] 


$3,216.40 $3,920.89 $4,287.67 $4,089.83 $3,653.17 $3,735.33 $3,812.67 $3,945.67 Expenses for 2016/17, 2017/18 and 


2018/19 are higher than normal due 


to flood recovery works associated 


with three flood events in 2016/17.  


These works are now complete. 


Workforce turnover 


Resignations and terminations 


compared to average staff 


[Number of permanent staff 


resignations and terminations 


/ Average number of 


permanent staff for the 


financial year] x 100 


8.20% 14.81% 23.38% 16.29% 8.93% 8.93% 8.93% 8.93% Council has undertaken a number of 


initiatives seeking to recognize and 


encourage flexibility in the 


workplace, diversity and inclusion 


which has had a positive impact on 


staff satisfaction and retention levels. 
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 


R15(2) 
Sch3 
R16(1) 
R16(2) 


 
R17(2) 
R17(3) 


Liquidity 


Working Capital 


Current assets compared to 


current liabilities 


[Current assets / Current 


liabilities] x 100 


197.02% 309.32% 276.85% 402.70% 185.33% 162.07% 162.70% 158.85% 2018/19 ratio is much higher than 


prior years because of grant 


milestone payments received for 


projects that will be undertaken in 


2019.20.  At 30 June 2019, Council 


held $6.07 million to fund carried 


forward capital works. 


Unrestricted cash 


Unrestricted cash compared 


to current liabilities 


[Unrestricted cash / Current 


liabilities] x 100 


-6.50% 5.48% 23.85% 69.07% 107.44% 104.14% 102.27% 100.47% Unrestricted cash at 30 June 2019 is 


required to cover current employee 


provisions.  The primary reason for 


the increase in unrestricted cash 


between 2017/18 and 2018/19 is 


because Council was awaiting $2.7 


million in flood reimbursements at 


30 June 2018 compared to $787,000 


outstanding at 30 June 2019. 


Obligations 


Asset renewal 


Asset renewal compared to 


depreciation 


[Asset renewal expenses / 


asset depreciation] x 100 


60.25% 70.64% 72.33% 115.75% 101.41% 97.13% 88.70% 87.43% Asset renewal in 2018/19 is better 


than prior years because of two 


reasons: 


*Council received additional funding 


for Roads & Bridges via the Fixing 


Country Roads Program and Local 


Roads to Market Program.  Council 


also spent Roads to Recovery grant 


funds carried forward from 2017/18. 


*Annual Depreciation on 


infrastructure has reduced 


significantly as the Infrastructure 


Revaluation undertaken in 2018/10 


revealed that the condition of assets 


has improved which can have a 
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 


positive impact on the life of the 


assets. 


Loans and borrowings 


Loans and borrowings 


compared to rates 


[Interest bearing loans and 


borrowings / Rate revenue] x 


100 


5.76% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% Council has no loans or borrowings 


and is currently debt free. 


Loans and borrowings 


Loans and borrowings 


repayments compared to 


rates 


[Interest and principal 


repayments on interest 


bearing loans and borrowings 


/ Rates revenue] x 100 


8.81% 5.53% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% Council has no loans or borrowings 


and is currently debt free. 


Indebtedness 


Non-current liabilities 


compared to own source 


revenue 


[Non-current liabilities / Own 


source revenue] x 100 


1.59% 1.47% 0.71% 1.13% 0.73% 0.69% 0.72% 0.73% Council is debt free and non-current 


liabilities held reflect employee 


provisions. 


Obligations 


Adjusted underlying result 


Adjusted underlying surplus 


(or deficit) 


[Adjusted underlying surplus 


(deficit) / Adjusted underlying 


revenue] x 100 


-39.98% 10.47% -13.12% 10.54% -9.52% -3.17% -2.80% -3.63% The increased amount of adjusted 


underlying surplus for 2018.19 is 


primarily due to receipt of 


outstanding flood reimbursements 


at 30 June 2018 during 2018/19 


($2.7 million) and the accrual of the 


flood reimbursements for works 


undertaken during the last quarter of 


2018/19 ($787,000).  Council also 
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 


received grants for community 


projects including Avoca Inclusive 


Playspace, Snake Valley Skatepark 


and Carngham Recreation Reserve 


female friendly changerooms in 


2018/19.  Unspent grants are carried 


forward into 2019/20 as restricted 


funds to facilitate completion of 


these projects. 


Stability 


Rates concentration 


Rates compared to adjusted 


underlying revenue 


[Rate revenue / Adjusted 


underlying revenue] x 100 


64.29% 35.48% 42.39% 36.47% 52.04% 52.73% 53.01% 53.17% The ratio is lower than the prior year 


because of additional grant funding 


received during 2018/19 to fund a 


range of community projects. 


Rates effort 


Rates compared to Property 


values 


[Rate revenue / Capital 


Improved Value of rateable 


properties in the municipality] 


x 100 


0.54% 0.54% 0.57% 0.47% 0.46% 0.50% 0.52% 0.53% The ratio is lower because rates 


revenue is capped and does not 


increase in line with property 


valuation increases. 
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  BP Definitions 
 
"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:  


a) Non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and 
b) Non-monetary asset contributions; and 
c) Contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other 


than those referred to above. 
"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure 
"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to 
its original capability 
“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS 
"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS 
“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets 
"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities 
“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again 
during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government 
grants 
"population "means the resident population estimated by council 
“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges 


"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant 
"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties 
"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for 
which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 


 







 


14 
 


 


Other Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 
 
  BP 1. Basis of preparation 


 
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual 
report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable 
capacity, service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together 
with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the 
results. This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
 
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on 
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other 
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third 
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics). 
 
The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the 
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the 
council’s strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 
Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained 
in the performance statement. 


 
Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and 
explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless 
the variance is considered to be material because of its nature. 
 
The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in 
its strategic resource plan on 25 June 2019 and which forms part of the council plan. The 
strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that 
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long 
term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General 
Purpose Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting 
council. 
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Certification of the Performance Statement 
 


R18(1) 
R18(2) 


 


In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 
2014. 


 


 
 


_________________________ 


Shana Johnny 
Principal Accounting Officer 
Dated: 
 


 
In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the (council name) for the year ended 
30 June 2019 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
 
The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results 
in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars 
in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate. 
 
We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and 
Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form. 


 
 
 


_____________________________ 


Cr Robert Vance 
Mayor 
Dated:  


 
 
 
_____________________________ 


Cr Ron Eason 
Councillor 
Dated:  
 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 


Jim Nolan 
Chief Executive Officer 
Dated:  


 


 








FOR THE PERIOD


                     


Finance Report


 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019







30-Jun-19


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


                                                                   30/06/2018 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


1 Leadership


Income Inc (12245) (10611) (12336) (10634) 1702 1767 (12599)


Expenditure Exp 3632 3717 3515 3715 200 64 3827


Net (8613) (6894) (8821) (6919) 1902 1831 (8772)


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


2 Community 


Income Inc (1338) (1338) (1649) (1599) 50 30 (1481)


Expenditure Exp 3171 3293 3074 3501 426 240 3240


Net 1832 1954 1426 1902 476 270 1759


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


28/02/2016 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


3 Roads


Income Inc (2173) (1104) (2209) (1132) 1077 1107 (2256)


Expenditure Exp 9976 10089 9249 10118 869 95 10314


Net 7804 8985 7040 8986 1946 1202 8058


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


4 Commerce


Income Inc (294) (294) (518) (346) 172 (365)


Expenditure Exp 1200 1227 1084 1135 50 153 1263


Net 906 932 567 789 222 153 898


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


5 Environment


Income Inc (1714) (1714) (1593) (1630) (38) (1685)


Expenditure Exp 2491 2556 2576 2689 113 21 2850


Net 777 842 983 1059 75 21 1165


 Total Income (17765) (15062) (18304) (15341) 2963 2904 (18387)


Total Expenditure 20471 20882 19498 21157 1659 574 21494


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Operating Result 2706 5820 1194 5816 4622 3478 3107


Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Carryovers Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Capital 
Income I (1869) (6468) (12466) (14398) (1933) (1492) (5081)


Expenditure E 5951 15302 12606 20541 7935 7557 8969


Net 4082 8833 140 6142 6002 6065 3888


OPERATING SUMMARY BY KRA AREA TO 







Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Var Budget 19/20


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Working Capital Result


Opening Balance - General 6406 6406 6406


Opening Balance - B.F. Adjust C Park Debtor, 


Bank Acc  etc


Operating Result (2706) (5820) (1194) (5816) (4622) (3107)


Capital Result (4082) (8833) (140) (6142) (6002) (3888)


Add Back Depreciation 6835 6835 6029 6835 806 7034


Add Snake Valley Sewerage Scheme Debtors 38 38


Add Back Bad & Doubtful Debts 1 1 1 1


Add: Flood Grants outstanding at 30 June 2018 2721


Less: CHSP grant overpayment (350) (200) 150


Less Reserve and Provision Adjustment 7


Less Trust funds (120)


Closing Working Capital Result 48 997 11108 1002 (9668) 40


Less: Capital and major projects carryforwards (6065)


Less: Operating carryforwards (3478)


1565


Explanation for Surplus


Net surplus 1565


Less: CHSP repayment (372)


1193  


Amount retained for emergencies - Forecast 2017/18 639


2017/18 Working capital surplus 272


Working capital surplus - 2018/19 282



mailto:=@sum(Operating!E411:E426

mailto:=@sum(Operating!H369:H382)





COA Description Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast Variance- YTD 


Actuals vs. 


Forecast


Notes on 18-19 CARRYOVER Budget 19/20


KRA 1 Leadership


Communication


201005 Governance & Risk Exp Exp 212,100 222,100 196,981 188,900 (8,081) 221,998


201006 Risk Mitigation Projects Exp Exp 5,000 5,000 2,122 5,000 2,878 5,000


201007 Corporate OH&S Exp Exp 9,000 9,000 13,401 9,000 (4,401) 9,000


201505 Communications Exp Exp 104,686 104,686 107,745 106,886 (859) 108,294


Communication Total 330,786 340,786 320,249 309,786 (10,463) 0 344,292


C E O Department


202005 CEO Department Exp Exp 373,574 373,574 346,739 360,000 13,261 Savings in wages 354,195


202006 Central Highlands Councils Victoria Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


202007 Central Highlands Councils Victoria Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


202008 Reconciliation Action Plan Exp Exp 0 0 336 340 (340) 2,430


C E O Department Total 373,574 373,574 347,075 360,340 12,921 0 356,625


Councillors


202505 Councillors Exp Exp 270,550 270,550 231,268 250,050 18,782 253,435


202510 Council Elections Exp Exp 27,000 54,000 38,345 87,000 48,655 Funds carried forward for election 48,655 27,000


202511 Council Election Fines Inc Inc 0 0 (2,358) (50) 2,308 (50)


202515 Council Survey Exp Exp 15,000 15,000 14,518 15,000 482 15,500


202520 Annual Report Exp Exp 9,500 9,500 7,662 9,500 1,838 10,000


Councillors Total 322,050 349,050 289,435 361,500 72,065 48,655 305,885


Other Administration


203505 Audit-Internal Exp Exp 43,000 43,000 39,211 41,310 2,099 46,340


Other Administration Total 43,000 43,000 39,211 41,310 2,099 0 46,340


  


Corporate Services


501005 Council Support Exp Exp 250,619 250,619 201,152 244,900 43,748 Temporary vacancy 220,808


501010 Information Technology Exp Exp 471,399 471,399 460,065 499,594 39,529 Transition of telephone/internet facilities 


due to discontinuation of service by 
554,980


501015 Financial Services Exp Exp 258,957 258,957 278,866 269,891 (8,975) Temporary backfill 282,997


501020 Human Resources Exp Exp 152,448 167,448 147,252 170,862 23,610 167,992


501021 Recruitment Exp Exp 12,500 12,500 16,788 12,500 (4,288) 22,400


501022 Corporate Training Exp Exp 10,000 16,000 7,531 16,000 8,469 Carryforward for corporate training 15,000 10,000


501023 Listen Learn & Lead Gender Equity Program Exp Exp 0 0 4,545 0 (4,545) 0


501024 Listen Learn & Lead Gender Equity Grant Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


501025 Corporate On Costs Exp Exp 1,960,000 1,960,000 2,160,117 1,960,000 (200,117) 2,135,000


501026 Corporate On Costs Inc Exp (1,960,000) (1,960,000) (2,103,756) (1,960,000) 143,756 (2,135,000)


501027 Renew Police & Working With Children Checks Exp Exp 0 0 1,017 1,000 (17) 1,500


203005 Records Management Exp Exp 269,991 269,991 204,287 234,550 30,263 Temporary vacancy 235,650


203007 Freedom of Information Exp Exp 14,384 14,384 865 4,000 3,135 7,947


501030 Revenue Services Exp Exp 185,841 212,841 164,290 193,141 28,851 235,553


501034 Revenue Services Exp Exp 0 0 (723) 0 723 0


501036 Revenue Services Inc Inc (85,200) (85,200) (81,691) (84,100) (2,409) (56,264)


501031 Rates No Gst Inc Inc (8,426,100) (8,426,100) (8,382,556) (8,456,100) (73,544) (8,636,400)


501032 Rates Wind Farms No Gst Inc Inc (276,300) (276,300) (303,721) (307,300) (3,579) (405,000)


501039 Customer Services - Vicroads Agency Inc Inc (900) (900) (631) (900) (269) 0


501040 Customer Services Exp Exp 182,626 182,626 190,558 188,250 (2,308) 190,505
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309006 Disabled Parking Permits Inc Inc (800) (800) (946) (800) 146 (800)


501041 Property Management Exp Exp 14,000 14,000 0 14,000 14,000 14,000


505005 Beaufort Office Exp Exp 0 0 1,359 1,260 (99) 0


506999 Fair Value Adjust of N-C Assets Held for Resale Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Corporate Services Total (6,966,535) (6,918,535) (7,035,331) (6,999,252) 36,079 15,000 (7,154,132)


Corporate Services Administration General


503005 Administration General Exp Exp 739,820 739,820 780,838 791,900 11,062 829,480


503006 Administration - General GST Inc Inc (1,050) (1,050) (4,599) (1,050) 3,549 (1,300)


503007 Administration - General No GST Inc Inc (3,050) (3,050) (1,254) (3,050) (1,796) (1,350)


503008
Federal Assistance Grant - General Purpose Inc


Inc (3,312,000) (1,677,247) (3,447,756) (1,680,624) 1,767,132 Grants Commission early receipt of 


2019/20 allocation
1,767,132 (3,398,261)


503010 Federal Assistance Grant - Natural Disasters Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Corporate Services Administration General Total (2,576,280) (941,527) (2,672,770) (892,824) 1,779,946 1,767,132 (2,571,431)


Finance Costs


505505 Interest Exp Exp 0 0 1,510 0 (1,510) 0


503009 Interest Inc Inc (140,000) (140,000) (110,729) (100,000) 10,729 (100,000)


Finance Costs Total (140,000) (140,000) (109,218) (100,000) 9,218 0 (100,000)


Leadership Total (8,613,405) (6,893,652) (8,821,349) (6,919,140) 1,901,865 1,830,787 (8,772,421)


  


  


KRA 2 Community 


Active Recreation


312004 Goldfields Recreation Reserve Hiring Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


312005 Goldfields Rec Res Exp Exp 7,000 7,000 5,275 7,000 1,725 7,200


312006 Goldfields Rec Res Sect 86 Com Inc Inc (28,950) (28,950) (45,562) (28,950) 16,612 (29,650)


312007 Goldfields Rec Res Sect 86 Exp Exp 28,950 28,950 30,481 28,950 (1,531) 29,650


312015 Avoca Swimming Pool Exp Exp 112,670 112,670 100,400 85,670 (14,730) Swimming pool utilities are paid by the 


contractor under the new contract
88,200


312020 Landsborough Swimming Pool Exp Exp 93,670 93,670 87,160 84,670 (2,490) 86,550


312025 Beaufort Swimming Pool Exp Exp 117,070 117,070 97,938 87,070 (10,868) 87,200


312026 Swimming Pools Inc Inc (41,000) (41,000) 0 0 0 The income is offset against the 


expenditure under the new contract
0


312027 Swimming Pool Major Mtce-Reactive Exp Exp 20,000 20,000 17,229 20,000 2,771 21,300


312029 Swimming Pool Major Mtce-Proactive Exp Exp 13,000 13,000 5,147 13,000 7,853 13,325


Active Recreation Total 322,410 322,410 298,068 297,410 (658) 0 303,775


Public Halls


310505 Public Halls Beaufort Exp Exp 4,860 4,860 9,158 6,420 (2,738) 9,200


310506 Public Halls Beaufort Inc Inc (3,000) (3,000) (3,344) (3,000) 344 (3,000)


310510 Public Halls Avoca Exp Exp 9,340 9,340 12,520 10,850 (1,670) 11,850


310511 Public Halls Avoca Inc Inc (5,700) (5,700) (5,118) (5,700) (582) (5,700)


310515 Beeripmo Centre Exp Exp 5,240 5,240 5,094 6,040 946 7,100


310516 Beeripmo Centre Inc Inc (2,100) (2,100) (1,941) (2,100) (159) (2,100)


310520 Other Halls Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


310525 Lexton Community Centre Exp Exp 6,100 6,100 5,364 5,700 336 5,700


310545 Beaufort Court House Exp Exp 1,700 1,700 1,074 1,000 (74) 1,100


310555 Snake Valley Hall Exp Exp 4,000 4,000 3,903 1,500 (2,403) 2,100


310560 Hall Operational Grants Exp Exp 6,000 6,000 0 1,000 1,000 1,000


Public Halls Total 26,440 26,440 26,710 21,710 (5,000) 0 27,250
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Parks & Reserves


311001 Street Tree Replacement Exp Exp 10,200 10,200 10,695 10,200 (495) 10,200


311005 Parks & Reserves Beaufort Exp Exp 108,800 108,800 64,916 108,800 43,884 Budget carried forward for irrigation 


sytems planned but delayed at PSC 


Lawrence St office and Memorial Park, 


Beaufort


43,884 115,800


311010 Parks & Reserves Avoca Exp Exp 124,800 124,800 93,152 128,500 35,348 135,200


311013 Town Entrance Beautification - Exp Exp 35,600 35,600 9,976 31,600 21,624 37,800


311015 Parks & Reserves - Other Exp Exp 62,500 62,500 38,359 62,500 24,141 65,800


311016 Goldfields Recreation Reserve Exp Exp 25,682 25,682 16,098 25,682 9,584 26,345


311017 Beaufort Lake Dam Wall Monitoring Exp Exp 3,000 3,000 0 3,000 3,000 3,000


311018 Beaufort Lake Maintenance Exp Exp 5,000 5,000 4,455 5,000 545 5,000


311020 Playgrounds Inspections Exp Exp 4,000 4,000 3,176 4,000 824 4,200


311025 Playgrounds Maintenance Exp Exp 11,300 11,300 2,841 11,300 8,459 11,600


311030 Bakery Park & Toll Bar Park Exp Exp 600 600 150 600 450 600


311036 VicRoads Contribution to Roadside Slashing Inc Inc (5,021) (5,021) (5,021) (5,021) 0 (5,021)


311801 Sept 2016 Flooding Insurance Claim Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


707373 Sept 2016 Flood - Insurance Claim Inc  (CLOSED) 0 0 0 0 0 0


311802 Sept 2016 Flooding Insurance Claim Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Parks & Reserves Total 386,461 386,461 238,797 386,161 147,364 43,884 410,524


Facility Maintenance


313505 Reactive Building Maintenance  Exp Exp 123,000 123,000 100,492 123,400 22,908 123,600


313506 Programmed Building Maintenance  Exp Exp 15,300 15,300 29,515 15,600 (13,915) 19,000


313507 Council Buildings Compliance Exp Exp 21,050 21,050 27,991 39,650 11,659 21,800


313508 Property (non-building) Maintenance  Exp Exp 2,000 2,000 12,108 2,000 (10,108) 2,000


313512 Property Insurance Refund Inc Inc 0 0 (5,324) 0 5,324 0


313510 Dams & Bores Operations & Maintenance Exp Exp 18,500 18,500 10,438 18,500 8,062 17,913


313511 Dams & Bores Inc Inc (200) (200) (619) (200) 419 (200)


313520 Snake Valley Sewerage Scheme Exp Exp 0 40,000 47,672 40,000 (7,672) 0


Facility Maintenance Total 179,650 219,650 222,275 238,950 16,675 0 184,113


Council Contributions


301005 Community Grants Exp Exp 41,200 41,200 37,126 41,200 4,074 41,200


301006 Community Capital Projects Exp Exp 50,000 50,000 50,716 50,000 (716) 50,000


301007 Christmas Decorations Exp Exp 1,550 1,550 1,576 1,550 (26) 1,750


Council Contributions Total 92,750 92,750 89,418 92,750 3,332 0 92,950


Animal Control


301505 Animals - Registration And Policy Exp Exp 20,900 20,900 27,535 17,860 (9,675) 18,000


301506 Animals - Fines Inc Inc (1,000) (1,000) (430) 0 430 0


301509 Pound - Sale of Livestock Inc Inc (500) (500) (310) (500) (190) (500)


301510 Pound Exp Exp 6,980 6,980 7,240 4,980 (2,260) 6,980


301511 Animal Inc Inc (2,100) (2,100) (4,686) (3,000) 1,686 (3,500)


301512 Dog Registrations Inc Inc (85,000) (85,000) (93,378) (85,000) 8,378 (85,000)


301513 Cat Registrations Inc Inc (13,000) (13,000) (14,261) (13,000) 1,261 (14,000)


301514 Animal Business Registrations Inc Inc (500) (500) (450) (500) (50) (500)


Animal Control Total (74,220) (74,220) (78,738) (79,160) (422) 0 (78,520)


Local Laws & Rangers


302005 Local Laws Admin Exp Exp 141,404 141,404 154,187 151,426 (2,761) 158,828


302006 Local Laws Admin Inc Inc (3,150) (3,150) (176) (200) (24) (200)


302007 Local Laws Enforcement Exp Exp 12,000 12,000 312 12,000 11,688 12,000


Local Laws & Rangers Total 150,254 150,254 154,323 163,226 8,903 0 170,628


Aged Care Quality & Systems


303005 Care Quality & Systems Management Exp Exp 197,182 197,182 171,527 178,450 6,923 216,077


303504 HACC - Professional Training & Development Exp Exp 0 0 2,820 0 (2,820) 5,000


303507 Aged Care Intake Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0
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303508 HACC Professional Training & Development Reimbursement Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


304503 Care Coordination Exp Exp 111,856 111,856 124,543 128,150 3,607 115,164


303601 Community Care Administration Exp Exp 55,400 55,400 62,987 65,400 2,413 61,307


303245 CHSP Service System Development Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


303246 CHSP Service System Development Inc Inc 0 0 (76,722) (73,774) 2,948 (75,618)


304246 DHHS Service System Development Inc Inc (16,506) (16,506) (16,787) (16,786) 1 (17,206)


Aged Care Quality & Systems Total 347,932 347,932 268,368 281,440 13,072 0 304,724


Maternal & Child Health


303010 M&CH Universal/Enhanced/Fam Violence Exp Exp 163,569 163,569 175,219 203,597 28,378 46,230 207,423


303011 Maternal & Child Health No Gst Applic Inc Inc (111,839) (111,839) (169,719) (153,474) 16,245 Additional funding received under the 


funding agreement to be carried forward 


into 2019/20


(157,300)


303017 M&CH Supported Play Group Exp Exp 41,250 71,540 37,810 86,390 48,580 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20
48,939 57,500


303018 M&CH Supported Play Group Grant Inc Inc (41,250) (41,250) (56,459) (56,100) 359 (57,500)


Maternal & Child Health Total 51,730 82,020 (13,150) 80,413 93,563 95,169 50,123


303230 CHSP Group Social Support Exp Exp 0 0 6,147 0 (6,147) 0


303231 CHSP Group Social Support Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


303637 Group Social Support Exp Exp 87,400 87,400 109,191 110,700 1,509 113,275


303638 Group Social Support Inc Inc (96,200) (96,200) (101,129) (102,179) (1,050) (100,624)


Group Social Support Total (8,800) (8,800) 14,210 8,521 (5,689) 0 12,651


303625 Delivered Meals Exp Exp 70,180 70,180 53,845 72,180 18,335 69,244


303626 Delivered Meals Inc Inc (77,209) (77,209) (55,974) (64,174) (8,200) (73,235)


Delivered Meals Total (7,029) (7,029) (2,129) 8,006 10,135 0 (3,991)


Commonwealth Home Support Programs


303205 CHSP Domestic Assistance Exp Exp 212,515 212,515 183,615 212,515 28,900 189,907


303206 CHSP Domestic Assistance Inc Inc (233,765) (233,765) (258,877) (262,848) (3,971) (278,467)


303210 CHSP Flexible Respite and Care Support Exp Exp 4,100 4,100 15,004 13,425 (1,579) 21,187


303211 CHSP Flexible Respite and Care Support Inc Inc (4,500) (4,500) (34,667) (35,651) (984) (34,869)


303215 CHSP Personal Care Exp Exp 27,450 27,450 36,881 37,650 769 38,028


303216 CHSP Personal Care Inc Inc (30,200) (30,200) (53,248) (45,087) 8,161 (46,405)


303220 CHSP Home Modifications Exp Exp 0 0 2,992 0 (2,992) 2,500


303221 CHSP Home Modifications Inc Inc 0 0 (2,707) (2,000) 707 (2,500)


303225 CLOSED - CHSP Meals Exp Exp 0 0 118 0 (118) 0


303235 CHSP Allied Health and Therapy Services Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


303236 CHSP Allied Health and Therapy Services Inc Inc 0 0 (3,169) 0 3,169 0


303240 CHSP Other Food Services Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


303241 CHSP Other Food Services Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Commonwealth Home Support Program Total (24,400) (24,400) (114,058) (81,996) 32,062 0 (110,619)


Community Centres


304010 Avoca Senior Citizens' Centre Exp Exp 7,340 7,340 9,787 9,181 (606) 11,200


304011 Avoca Community Centre Gst Applic Inc Inc (1,000) (1,000) (1,250) (1,000) 250 (1,000)


304012 Avoca Senior Citizens Centre Grant Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


304015 Beaufort Senior Citizens Centre Exp Exp 7,790 7,790 7,286 7,850 564 9,050


304016 Beaufort Senior Citizens Centre User Charges Inc Inc (3,500) (3,500) (2,361) (3,000) (639) (3,000)


304017 Beaufort Community Centre Grant Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Community Centres Total 10,630 10,630 13,462 13,031 (431) 0 16,250


Aged Care Assessment


303505 Aged Care Assessment Exp Exp 78,225 78,225 62,163 78,225 16,062 80,416


Group Social Support


Delivered Meals
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303506 DHHS Assessment GST Free Inc Inc (78,225) (78,225) (78,455) (78,455) 0 (80,416)


Aged Care Assessment Total 0 0 (16,292) (230) 16,062 0 0


HACC/PYP


304505 PYP Domestic Support Exp Exp 25,550 25,550 17,657 25,550 7,893 20,753


304506 PYP Domestic Support Inc Inc (27,950) (27,950) (28,659) (26,980) 1,679 (28,796)


304508 Home Care Training Exp Exp 0 0 475 0 (475) 0


304510 PYP Respite & Self Care Exp Exp 0 0 16,435 15,300 (1,135) 6,018


304511 PYP Respite & Self Care GST Free Inc Inc 0 0 (551) 0 551 (500)


304515 PYP Personal Care Exp Exp 14,039 14,039 7,675 14,039 6,364 8,611


304516 PYP Personal Care Inc Inc (15,439) (15,439) (11,145) (14,275) (3,130) (14,612)


304520 PYP Home Modifications Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


304521 PYP Home Modifications Inc Inc 0 0 (271) 0 271 0


304525 HACC Minor Capital Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


304526 HACC Minor Capital Grant Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


304528 PYP Volunteer Coordination Exp Exp 91 91 0 91 91 95


304527 PYP Volunteer Coordination Grant Inc Inc (91) (91) (93) (92) 1 (95)


304535 PYP Allied Health and Therapy Services Exp Exp 0 0 1,818 0 (1,818) 0


309010 PYP Podiatry Exp Exp 1,000 1,000 0 1,000 1,000 956


309011 Podiatry GST Free Inc Inc (1,000) (1,000) 0 0 0 0


HACC/PYP Total (3,800) (3,800) 3,343 14,633 11,290 0 (7,570)


Home Modification


303649 Home Modifications Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


303650 Home Modifications Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Home Modification Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Allied Health


303613 Allied Health and Therapy Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


303614 Allied Health and Therapy Services Inc Inc 0 0 (933) (933) (0) (956)


Allied Health Total 0 0 (933) (933) (0) 0 (956)


Senior Citizens


306005 Senior Citz Landsborough Exp Exp 2,000 2,000 2,200 2,000 (200) 2,000


306010 Senior Citizens Festival Exp Exp 2,200 2,200 667 2,200 1,533 2,200


306011 Senior Citizens Festival Inc Inc (2,200) (2,200) (2,200) (2,200) 0 (2,200)


308522 Volunteer Week -  Exp Exp 1,000 1,000 191 1,000 809 1,000


Senior Citizens Total 3,000 3,000 858 3,000 2,142 0 3,000


Education


307005 Pre School Beaufort Exp Exp 11,420 11,420 8,851 8,920 69 8,920


307006 Pre School Avoca Exp Exp 1,400 1,400 2,712 1,400 (1,312) 1,400


Education Total 12,820 12,820 11,564 10,320 (1,244) 0 10,320


303021 Walk to School Project Exp Exp 11,000 22,000 962 22,000 21,038 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 to faciliate completion
25,038 11,000


303022 Walk to School Grant Inc Inc (11,000) (11,000) (15,000) (11,000) 4,000 (11,000)


303025


Youth Outreach Exp


Exp 0 15,800 16,000 26,000 10,000 Western Bulldogs -2018/19 forecast 


included first instalment of the 2019/20 


program


10,000 10,050


303026 Youth Outreach Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


303027


FReeZA Program Exp


Exp 11,745 18,999 0 18,999 18,999 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 to faciliate completion
13,127 0


303028 DHHS FReeZA Program Inc Inc (11,745) (11,745) (5,873) (11,745) (5,873) 0


313006 Childrens' Week Program Exp Exp 550 550 0 550 550 550


Children & Youth
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313007 Childrens' Week Grant Inc Inc (550) (550) 0 (550) (550) (550)


309027 L2P Learner Driver Mentor Program Exp Exp 19,000 19,000 19,000 19,000 0 19,000


309028 L2P Learner Driver Mentor Program Inc Inc (19,000) (19,000) (19,000) (19,000) 0 (19,000)


Children & Youth Total 0 34,054 (3,911) 44,254 48,165 48,165 10,050


Housing


307515 Avoca Aged Housing Estate Exp Exp 1,200 1,200 401 1,200 799 1,300


Housing Total 1,200 1,200 401 1,200 799 0 1,300


Community Services


308005 Community Administration Exp Exp 125,058 125,058 132,626 127,657 (4,969) 137,395


308050 Local Area Planning Project Exp Exp 20,000 20,000 8,006 20,000 11,994 20,000


308051 Local Area Planning Project Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


308054 Recreation Strategy Exp Exp 0 0 800 0 (800) 0


308055 Recreation Strategy Grant Inc Inc 0 0 (2,727) (2,727) 0 0


308235
Safer Together Project - Snake Valley Exp


Exp 0 0 48,695 80,000 31,305 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 to faciliate completion
31,305 0


308236 Safer Together Project - Snake Valley  Inc Inc 0 0 (80,000) (80,000) 0 0


308224 Emergency Communication Project Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


308225 Emergency Communication Projects Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Community Services Total 145,058 145,058 107,399 144,930 37,530 31,305 157,395


Transportation


308510 Community Car Exp Exp 18,800 18,800 18,989 18,800 (189) 19,270


308511 Community Car Inc Inc (7,000) (7,000) (5,486) (5,500) (14) (6,000)


308515 Community Bus Beaufort Exp Exp 18,800 18,800 28,200 18,800 (9,400) 19,270


308516 Community Bus Beaufort Inc Inc (1,500) (1,500) (3,405) (2,200) 1,205 (5,000)


308520 Community Bus Avoca Exp Exp 18,800 18,800 18,800 18,800 0 19,270


308521 Community Bus Avoca Inc Inc (400) (400) (1,386) (400) 986 (800)


308525 Evaluating Transport Connections in the Pyrenees Project Inc Inc 0 0 (15,000) 0 15,000 0


308526 Evaluating Transport Connections in the Pyrenees Project Exp Exp 0 0 4,949 0 (4,949) 10,051 0


Transportation Total 47,500 47,500 45,660 48,300 2,640 10,051 46,010


Brokerage Care


304518 NDIS Care Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


304519 NDIS Care Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


309015 Brokerage Packages Exp Exp 163,500 163,500 91,724 163,500 71,776 111,310


309016 Brokerage Packages Inc Inc (163,500) (163,500) (120,774) (163,500) (42,726) (111,310)


309017 Brokerage DVA User Charges Inc Inc 0 0 (1,223) 0 1,223 0


309018 Brokerage DVA Grant Inc Inc 0 0 (10,315) 0 10,315 0


309019 Brokerage DVA Exp Exp 0 0 19,292 0 (19,292) 0


Brokerage Care Total 0 0 (21,296) 0 21,296 0 0


Health & Preventative Services


309505 Environmental Health Exp Exp 182,324 182,324 159,928 188,834 28,906 193,680


309506 Environmental Health GST free Inc Inc (57,250) (57,250) (53,685) (57,000) (3,315) (58,000)


309508 Septic Tank Inspections Program Exp Exp 0 0 29,531 0 (29,531) 0


309509 Immunisation Grant Inc Inc (6,200) (6,200) (5,379) (6,200) (821) (6,200)


309510 Immunisation Exp Exp 8,536 8,536 9,389 8,536 (853) 7,506


309511 Food Sampling Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


309512 Tobacco Testing Exp Exp 0 0 4,650 4,650 0 0


309513 Tobacco Testing Grant Inc Inc (9,616) (9,616) (24,078) (13,580) 10,498 (16,975)


Health & Preventative Services Total 117,794 117,794 120,356 125,240 4,884 0 120,011


Heritage & Culture


313010 Library Service - Ballarat City Exp Exp 50,000 50,000 47,799 50,000 2,201 34,000


313012 Avoca Library Exp Exp 23,155 23,155 51,068 29,655 (21,413) 24,240


313013 Library Inc Inc (118,600) (118,600) (119,379) (118,956) 423 (121,900)


313015 Beaufort Library Exp Exp 70,535 70,535 76,901 70,535 (6,366) 68,728


313016 Mobile Library Exp Exp 17,760 17,760 13,157 17,760 4,603 19,563


313019 RFID Exp Exp 0 0 1,548 2,000 452 2,000
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313020
Avoca War Memorial - Grant 1Exp


Exp 0 6,325 5,826 6,325 499 Unspent grant funding carried forward in 


2019/20 
500 0


313021 Avoca War Memorial - Grant 1Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


313036
Avoca War Memorial - Grant 2 Inc


Inc 0 0 (30,000) (20,000) 10,000 Unspent grant funding carried forward in 


2019/20 
30,000 0


313037 Avoca War Memorial - Grant 2 Exp Exp 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 0


313023 Beaufort War Memorial Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


313024 Beaufort War Memorial Exp Exp 0 11,330 0 11,330 11,330 Unspent grant funding carried forward in 


2019/20 
11,330 0


313025 Australia Day Exp Exp 12,200 12,200 13,951 12,200 (1,751) 12,700


Heritage & Culture Total 55,050 72,705 60,871 80,849 19,978 41,830 39,331


Community Total 1,832,430 1,954,429 1,425,576 1,902,025 476,449 270,405 1,758,749


KRA 3 Roads 


101005 Works Management Exp Exp 132,031 132,031 127,754 132,081 4,327 136,161


101004 Works Officers - Admin - Exp Exp 0 0 2,090 0 (2,090) 52,833


Works Management Total 132,031 132,031 129,844 132,081 2,237 0 188,994


Sealed Roads


101505 Sealed Routine Maintenance Exp Exp 490,900 490,900 517,019 464,300 (52,719) 489,500


101510 Sealed Shoulder Grading Exp Exp 70,800 70,800 42,702 70,800 28,098 74,600


101515 Sealed Road Inspections Exp Exp 58,000 58,000 77,753 57,700 (20,053) 62,100


101520 Linemarking Exp Exp 35,200 35,200 23,286 46,700 23,414 Linemarking delayed due to contractor 


constraints - funds carried forward
23,414 38,600


Sealed Roads Total 654,900 654,900 660,760 639,500 (21,260) 23,414 664,800


Unsealed Roads


102005 Unsealed Road Inspections Exp Exp 73,700 73,700 59,999 73,700 13,701 79,400


102010 Unsealed Routine Maintenance Exp Exp 829,600 829,600 668,113 828,600 160,487 870,645


Unsealed Roads Total 903,300 903,300 728,112 902,300 174,188 0 950,045


Bridge Maintenance    


103005 Bridge Maintenance Exp Exp 43,400 43,400 54,385 43,400 (10,985) 45,600


103010 Bridge Inspections Exp Exp 6,600 6,600 3,960 10,000 6,040 7,020


Bridge Maintenance Total 50,000 50,000 58,345 53,400 (4,945) 0 52,620


Traffic Control


104005 Guide Posts Exp Exp 104,200 104,200 71,222 89,600 18,378 109,475


104010 School Crossings Exp Exp 28,742 28,742 30,221 28,742 (1,479) 34,113


104015 Traffic Sign Maintenance Exp Exp 104,200 104,200 105,945 104,200 (1,745) 109,400


104016 Signage Improvement Project Exp Exp 0 50,000 2,475 50,000 47,525 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 to faciliate completion
47,525 0


104075 School Crossings Inc Inc (15,300) (15,300) (12,082) (12,082) 0 (12,082)


Traffic Control Total 221,842 271,842 197,781 260,460 62,679 47,525 240,906


Street Cleaning


104510 Street Cleaning Exp Exp 60,000 60,000 58,693 61,500 2,807 65,200


Street Cleaning Total 60,000 60,000 58,693 61,500 2,807 0 65,200


Drainage


105005 Drainage Rural Exp Exp 126,400 126,400 152,241 126,400 (25,841) 134,400


105006 Drainage Rural - Extra Works Exp Exp 0 50,704 42,414 50,704 8,290 0


105010 Drainage Urban Exp Exp 74,500 74,500 63,095 74,500 11,405 79,200


Drainage Total 200,900 251,604 257,750 251,604 (6,146) 0 213,600


Depots


105505 Depots Beaufort Exp Exp 54,300 54,300 53,758 54,800 1,042 56,500


105510 Depots Avoca Exp Exp 56,750 56,750 54,495 59,590 5,095 62,150
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105515 Depots Snake Valley Exp Exp 1,800 1,800 1,542 1,800 258 1,850


105520 Sale of Emulsion Inc Inc (2,000) (2,000) (300) (600) (300) (1,000)


Depots Total 110,850 110,850 109,495 115,590 6,095 0 119,500


Roadside Management


107005 Roadside Rural Exp Exp 304,000 304,000 234,520 304,000 69,480 321,600


107010 Roadside Urban Exp Exp 105,700 105,700 109,765 105,700 (4,065) 111,000


107015 Roadside Urban Tree Inspections Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 131 10,000 9,869 10,300


107025 Roadside Tree Trimming Exp Exp 60,800 60,800 77,013 60,800 (16,213) 62,300


480,500 480,500 421,428 480,500 59,072 0 505,200


Footpaths Kerb & Channel & Shared Walkways


107505 Shared Walkways Maintenance Exp Exp 9,300 9,300 8,242 9,300 1,058 9,600


107510 Footpaths Exp Exp 27,300 27,300 15,959 31,300 15,341 28,900


107515 Kerb & Channel Exp Exp 34,200 34,200 11,598 34,200 22,602 35,300


Footpaths Kerb & Channel & Shared Walkways Total 70,800 70,800 35,799 74,800 39,001 0 73,800


Other Local Roads


108505 Bus Shelters Exp Exp 3,000 3,000 1,738 3,000 1,262 3,100


108515 Band Rotunda Exp Exp 1,700 1,700 3,969 2,300 (1,669) 2,600


108518 Street Lighting Exp Exp 35,200 35,200 39,222 45,000 5,778 43,000


108520 BBQ's/War Memorials Electricity & Drain Leasing Exp Exp 6,400 6,400 5,425 8,100 2,675 8,200


108525 Emergency Response Works Department Exp Exp 40,000 40,000 66,135 40,000 (26,135) 43,500


108543 The Next Disaster Event Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


Other Local Roads Total 86,300 86,300 116,489 98,400 (18,089) 0 100,400


Roads Parks & Streets Income


109070


Federal Assistance Grant - Local Roads Inc


Inc (2,103,000) (1,034,356) (2,173,816) (1,066,845) 1,106,971 Grants Commission early receipt of 


2019/20 allocation
1,106,971 (2,188,876)


109075 Plant Operating Exp Exp (657,000) (657,000) (451,662) (657,000) (205,338) (697,722)


Roads Parks & Streets Income Total (2,760,000) (1,691,356) (2,625,478) (1,723,845) 901,633 1,106,971 (2,886,598)


Corporate Services Assets & Infrastructure


502005 Assets & Development Exp Exp 251,469 251,469 236,497 246,499 10,002 232,171


506035 Depreciation - Land Improvements Exp Exp 217,000 217,000 172,224 217,000 44,776 220,000


506045 Depreciation - Buildings Specialised Exp Exp 1,102,000 1,102,000 1,043,848 1,102,000 58,152 1,120,000


506105 Depreciation - Plant, Machinery & Equipment Exp Exp 510,000 510,000 476,454 510,000 33,546 500,000


506115 Depreciation - Fixtures, Fittings & Furniture Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 11,760 10,000 (1,760) 12,000


506125 Depreciation - Computers & Telecommunications Exp Exp 102,000 102,000 51,574 102,000 50,426 70,000


506135 Depreciation - Library Collection Exp Exp 36,000 36,000 13,736 36,000 22,264 35,000


506185 Depreciation - Sealed Road Formation Exp Exp 16,000 16,000 15,958 16,000 42 17,000


506195 Depreciation - Unsealed Road Formation Exp Exp 11,000 11,000 11,022 11,000 (22) 13,000


506205 Depreciation - Sealed Pavements Exp Exp 1,989,000 1,989,000 1,554,668 1,989,000 434,332 2,000,000


506206 Depreciation - Unsealed Pavements Exp Exp 928,000 928,000 953,239 928,000 (25,239) 950,000


506215 Depreciation - Sealed Surfaces Exp Exp 1,076,000 1,076,000 1,005,724 1,076,000 70,276 1,250,000


506225 Depreciation - Footpaths & Cycleways Exp Exp 39,000 39,000 42,635 39,000 (3,635) 39,000


506235 Depreciation - Kerb & Channel Exp Exp 72,000 72,000 80,612 72,000 (8,612) 73,000


506245 Depreciation - Culverts, Pipes & Pits Exp Exp 204,000 204,000 214,807 204,000 (10,807) 210,000


506255 Depreciation - Bridges Exp Exp 479,000 479,000 348,515 479,000 130,485 479,000


506265 Depreciation - Other Structures Exp Exp 44,000 44,000 32,491 44,000 11,509 46,000


502012 Assets & GIS Exp Exp 328,422 328,422 365,346 342,022 (23,324) 337,316


502013 Road Opening Permits Inc Inc (6,600) (6,600) (8,629) (6,600) 2,029 (7,500)


502014 Project Management Exp Exp 143,325 143,325 198,075 169,825 (28,250) 130,303


502015 Aerial Imaging Exp Exp 12,000 24,000 0 24,000 24,000 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 
24,000 12,000


502016 Infrastructure Condition Assessments Exp Exp 35,500 35,500 37,718 35,500 (2,218) 38,000


502017 Project Management Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Corporate Services Assets & Infrastructure Total 7,599,116 7,611,116 6,858,275 7,646,246 787,971 24,000 7,776,290
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Notes on 18-19 CARRYOVER Budget 19/20


Private Works


109505 Private Works Exp Exp 29,000 29,000 9,530 29,000 19,470 29,000


109506 Private Works Inc Inc (36,000) (36,000) (2,155) (36,000) (33,845) (36,000)


109528 Private Works - Truck Accident on Bridge 61 Eurambeen-Streatham Rd ExpExp 0 0 20,184 0 (20,184) 0


109530 Private Works - K&S Freighters - Truck Fire Neill Street Bft 17/04/19 ExpExp 0 0 5,231 0 (5,231) 0


109531 Private Works - K&S Freighters - Truck Fire Neill Street Bft 17/04/19 IncInc 0 0 0 0 0 0


109509 Private Works - Beaufort Community Bank Complex Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 11,568 10,000 (1,568) 11,000


109510 Private Works - Beaufort Community Bank Complex Inc Inc (10,000) (10,000) (11,649) (10,000) 1,649 (11,000)


109523 Private Works - Assistance with Xmas Decorations Beaufort & Avoca ExpExp 0 0 0 0 0 0


Private Works Total (7,000) (7,000) 32,710 (7,000) (39,710) 0 (7,000)


Roads Total 7,803,539 8,984,887 7,040,003 8,985,536 1,945,533 1,201,910 8,057,757


  


   


KRA 4 Commerce     


Caravan Parks  


311011 Caravan Park Tree Inspections - Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


401005 Avoca Caravan Park Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


401006 Avoca Caravan Park Inc Inc (7,600) (7,600) (7,626) (7,600) 26 (7,752)


401009 Beaufort Caravan Park Improvements Projects Exp Exp 2,652 2,652 0 2,652 2,652 0


401010 Beaufort Caravan Park Operations Exp Exp 197,348 197,348 243,990 229,348 (14,642) 254,486


401011 Beaufort Caravan Park Inc Inc (200,000) (200,000) (252,206) (232,000) 20,206 (279,486)


401012 Landsborough Caravan Park  Exp Exp 0 0 (216) 0 216 0


Caravan Parks Total (7,600) (7,600) (16,059) (7,600) 8,459 0 (32,752)


Economic Development Services


402005 Community Wellbeing & Grants Officer Exp Exp 104,718 104,718 78,831 89,400 10,569 109,010


402010 Economic Development Management Exp Exp 137,891 137,891 136,241 137,891 1,650 139,786


402022 Rassemblement des Beaufort  Exp Exp 500 500 0 500 500 500


402024 State Funded Initiatives Exp Exp 30,000 30,000 0 5,000 5,000 25,000


402026 Event Sponsorship Exp Exp 22,100 22,100 17,696 21,700 4,004 29,200


402027 Event Sponsorship Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


402036 Official Visitor Guide Exp Exp 15,000 15,000 11,274 15,000 3,726 15,000


402037 Official Visitor Guide Advertising Charges Inc Inc (13,000) (13,000) (12,818) (13,000) (182) (8,000)


402038 Central Highlands Regional Strategic Planning Exp Exp 26,000 26,000 12,817 16,000 3,183 16,000


402044 Additional Opportunities Exp Exp 9,000 9,000 11,218 9,000 (2,218) 7,500


402045 Additional Opportunities Inc Inc 0 0 (8,010) 0 8,010 0


402050 Promotional Activities Exp Exp 38,000 38,000 37,945 38,000 55 26,800


402051 Promotional Activities Inc Inc 0 0 (4,800) 0 4,800 0


402054 Tourism Web Site Maintenance Exp Exp 600 1,200 422 1,200 778 10,600


402060 Cultivating Agriculture Central Highlands Exp Exp 20,000 20,000 0 6,000 6,000 10,000


402064 Regional Tourism Organisation / Tourism Strategy Exp Exp 41,575 41,575 41,534 41,535 1 42,365


402066 Wine Industry Co-Op Marketing Exp Exp 5,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 5,000


402070 Tourism Project Officer Exp Exp 62,564 62,564 65,136 62,564 (2,572) 63,986


402093 Beaufort RV Dump Point Exp Exp 0 0 428 0 (428) 0


402084 Grampians Pyrenees Business Awards Exp Exp 0 0 65 6,000 5,935 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 
5,935 4,000


402085 Grampians Pyrenees Business Awards Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


402086 Eco Dev Strategy Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


402088 Events Officer Exp Exp 33,960 33,960 32,296 33,960 1,664 35,173


402095
Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project Exp


Exp 0 0 2,479 0 (2,479) Unspent grant funding carried forward in 


2019/20 
67,521 0


402096 Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project State Grant Inc Inc 0 0 (70,000) 0 70,000 0


402099
Integrated Water Management - Beaufort Closed Loop Exp


Exp 0 0 0 0 0 Unspent grant funding carried forward in 


2019/20 
80,000 0


402100 Intergrated Water Management - Beaufort Closed Loop State Grant IncInc 0 0 (80,000) 0 80,000 0


402101 Intergrated Water Management - Beaufort Closed Loop Contribution IncInc 0 0 0 0 0 0


402091 Central Highlands Straw Pallet Study Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0
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402092 Central Highland Straw Pellet Study State Grant Inc Inc 0 0 (20,000) (20,000) 0 0


402094 Central Highland Straw Pellet Study Contribution Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Economic Development Services Total 533,908 539,508 262,754 460,750 197,996 153,456 531,920


Community Action Plans


404005 Cap Townships Exp Exp 2,500 2,500 242 2,500 2,258 2,500


404007 CAP Projects Exp Exp 25,000 45,651 273 5,000 4,727 25,000


Community Action Plans Total 27,500 48,151 514 7,500 6,986 0 27,500


Other Economic Development


404510 Railway Signal Box Exp Exp 2,000 2,000 5,484 2,750 (2,734) 3,000


404515 Railway Station Exp Exp 3,000 3,000 3,278 3,000 (278) 3,200


404521 Property Rental Inc Inc (11,300) (11,300) (11,027) (11,300) (273) (11,300)


404522 Property Rental Expenses - Exp Exp 3,600 3,600 2,012 3,600 1,588 4,100


Other Economic Development Total (2,700) (2,700) (254) (1,950) (1,696) 0 (1,000)


Information Centres


405005 Avoca Information Centre Exp Exp 150,139 150,139 117,629 150,139 32,510 154,167


405006 Info Ctr Avoca Inc Inc (21,500) (21,500) (12,702) (21,500) (8,798) (16,500)


405010 Info Ctr Landsborough Exp Exp 2,300 2,300 1,910 2,300 390 3,800


405011 Info Ctr Landsborough Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


405015 Info Ctr Lexton Exp Exp 1,000 1,000 1,045 1,000 (45) 1,100


405020 Info Centre Snake Valley Exp Exp 600 600 654 600 (54) 700


405030 Beaufort Information Centre Exp Exp 158,690 158,690 171,052 163,690 (7,362) 199,395


405031 Beaufort Information Centre Inc Inc (40,860) (40,860) (38,663) (40,860) (2,197) (41,740)


Information Centres Total 250,369 250,369 240,924 255,369 14,445 0 300,922


Public Conveniences


405505 Pub Conv Beaufort Exp Exp 61,900 61,900 43,949 41,150 (2,799) 34,500


405510 Pub Conv Lexton Exp Exp 14,250 14,250 6,502 7,350 848 3,550


405515 Pub Conv Avoca Exp Exp 11,975 11,975 16,601 15,200 (1,401) 20,000


405520 Pub Conv Snake Valley Exp Exp 3,230 3,230 1,320 3,240 1,920 3,400


405525 Pub Conv Landsborough Exp Exp 7,300 7,300 4,535 4,600 65 4,100


405530 Pub Conv Ampitheatre Exp Exp 2,000 2,000 2,613 1,000 (1,613) 3,200


405535 Pub Conv Moonambel Exp Exp 4,000 4,000 2,431 1,950 (481) 1,100


405540 Pub Conv Avoca Lions Club Exp Exp 0 0 51 0 (51) 0


405545 Pub Conv Waubra Exp Exp 0 0 675 0 (675) 1,500


Public Conveniences Total 104,655 104,655 78,677 74,490 (4,187) 0 71,350


Commerce Total 906,132 932,383 566,556 788,559 222,003 153,456 897,940


  


KRA 5 Environment


Planning


601005 Planning Administration Exp Exp 295,040 295,040 344,753 368,077 23,324 389,235


601006 Planning GST Free Inc Inc (122,500) (122,500) (147,511) (135,500) 12,011 (126,500)


601007 Planning GST Applic Inc Inc (3,500) (3,500) (8,163) (1,000) 7,163 (8,000)


601010 Town Planning Heritage Advice Exp Exp 3,000 3,000 0 0 0 0


601015 Strategic Planning Exp Exp 58,070 58,070 86,321 58,070 (28,251) 156,543


601017 Planning Enforcement Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


601019 Statutory Planning & Legal Advice Exp Exp 0 0 63,902 61,239 (2,664) 7,100


601022 Planning Compliance/VCAT Exp Exp 45,000 45,000 6,991 22,000 15,009 45,000


601029 Beaufort Framework Plan Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


601030 Beaufort Framework Plan Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


601031 BOM Assistance Program Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


601032 BOM Assistance Program Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


601033 Pyrenees Futures Exp Exp 0 34,681 51,540 73,000 21,460 Unspent budget carried forward in 


2019/20 
21,460 125,000


601034 Pyrenees Futures Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


Planning Total 275,110 309,791 397,833 445,885 48,053 21,460 588,378
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Building


602005 Building Control Exp Exp 232,762 232,762 231,863 213,646 (18,217) 224,122


602006 Building Control Inc Gst Applic Inc (70,000) (70,000) (10,974) (15,000) (4,026) (15,000)


602007 Building Control Inc No Gst Inc (18,000) (18,000) (32,998) (31,000) 1,998 (32,000)


602009 Building Enforcement Exp Exp 18,300 18,300 25,908 35,950 10,042 34,950


602010 Essential Services Inspections Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


Building Total 163,062 163,062 213,800 203,596 (10,204) 0 212,072


Emergency Management


603005 Roadside Spraying Exp Exp 6,000 6,000 8,655 9,000 345 12,000


603010 Fire Hazard Removal Exp Exp 151,800 151,800 191,864 178,800 (13,064) Additional slashing 150,800


603011 Fire Hazard Non-Compliance Inc Inc (28,000) (28,000) 2,069 (13,000) (15,069) (13,000)


603012 Fire Hazard Non-Compliance Removal Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 2,090 10,000 7,910 10,000


603013 Fire Hazard Removal-Council Land Exp Exp 8,000 8,000 2,952 8,000 5,048 8,000


603015 Fire Prevention Officer Exp Exp 81,471 81,471 52,037 81,471 29,434 83,502


603018 Fire Access Improvement Projects Exp Exp 15,000 15,000 0 0 0 15,000


603019 Fire Access Improvement Grant Inc Inc (10,000) (10,000) 0 0 0 (10,000)


603020 Fire Access Tracks Exp Exp 2,300 2,300 100 2,300 2,200 2,300


603021 Fire Access Tracks Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


603023 DO NOT USE Fire Safer Places Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


603025 Emergency Planning Processes Exp Exp 60,000 60,000 48,049 60,000 11,951 63,186


603026 Emergency Planning Process Inc Inc (60,000) (60,000) (30,000) (60,000) (30,000) (60,000)


603028 Emergency Management Exp Exp 0 0 575 0 (575) 0


603035 Community Resilience Project Exp Exp 41,215 61,732 31,505 61,732 30,227 0


603036 Community Resilience Grant Inc Inc (41,215) (41,215) (13,000) (41,215) (28,215) 0


Emergency Management Total 236,571 257,088 296,895 297,088 193 0 261,788


Climate & Environment Protection


603505 Environment Protection Exp Exp 92,322 92,322 86,376 92,322 5,946 94,261


603508 Environment Projects Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 9,447 10,000 553 10,000


603512 Beaufort Sustainable Water Use Plan Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0


603513 Beaufort Sustainable Water Use Plan Grant Inc Inc 0 0 0 0 0 0


603517 Roadside Weeds & Pest Management Prog. Exp Exp 48,146 48,146 49,195 48,346 (849) 50,000


603518 Roadside Weeds & Pest Management Prog. Inc Inc (48,146) (48,146) (48,346) (48,346) 0 (50,000)


603519 C'wealth Roadside Weeds & Pest Exp Exp 40,000 40,000 0 0 0 0


603520 C'wealth Roadside Weeds & Pest Inc Inc (40,000) (40,000) 0 0 0 0


603521 Facility Energy Audit Inc Inc 0 0 (12,660) 0 12,660 0


603522 Facility Energy Audit Exp Exp 0 10,000 22,660 10,000 (12,660) 0


Climate Protection Total 102,322 112,322 106,672 112,322 5,650 0 104,261


Waste Management
104505 Litterbin Clearance Exp Exp 63,300 63,300 59,247 60,600 1,353 0 62,300


313515 Drum Muster Exp Exp 2,500 2,500 714 2,500 1,786 0 2,500


313516 Drum Muster Inc Inc (2,500) (2,500) 0 (2,500) (2,500) 0 (2,500)


604004 Waste Management - Management Time Exp Exp 49,009 49,009 49,008 49,009 1 0 80,141


604005 Kerbside Collection Exp Exp 141,300 141,300 112,079 141,100 29,021 0 146,900


604007 Kerbside Collection Recycling Exp Exp 191,100 191,100 137,670 137,900 230 0 143,200


604009 Waste Disposal Recycling Exp Exp 0 0 63,195 70,000 6,805 0 71,750


604010 Waste Disposal Exp Exp 214,400 214,400 256,444 265,500 9,056 0 293,150


604011 Waste Disposal No Gst Inc Inc (1,253,979) (1,253,979) (1,263,124) (1,261,000) 2,124 0 (1,346,775)


604012 Garbage Rate GST Applic Inc Inc (376) (376) 0 (376) (376) 0 0


604013 Legacy Landfill Monitoring Exp Exp 12,500 12,500 9,570 15,820 6,250 0 12,900


604014 Revegetate Capped Landfills/ Disposal of green waste Exp Exp 11,000 11,000 13,925 11,000 (2,925) 0 21,275


604015 Landfill & Transfer Station Maintenance Exp Exp 45,896 45,896 11,017 14,007 2,990 0 11,938


604016 Recycling Services Temporary  Relief Funding No Gst Inc Inc 0 0 (5,520) (5,520) 0 0 0


604020 Transfer Stations Exp Exp 470,750 470,750 405,340 395,540 (9,800) 0 416,600


604021 Transfer Stations Inc Inc (16,000) (16,000) (22,405) (16,000) 6,405 0 (21,000)


604023 Green Waste Collection Exp Exp 42,500 42,500 53,803 59,400 5,597 0 52,450


604024 Hard Waste Collection Exp Exp 18,600 18,600 38,595 39,020 425 0 19,050
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604025 Waste Bins - Repair & Replacement Exp Exp 10,000 10,000 48,286 24,000 (24,286) 0 24,600


604030 Regional Waste Group Exp Exp 0 0 366 0 (366) 0 0


604031 E-waste Collection and Disposal Exp Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000


Waste Management Total 0 0 (31,790) 0 31,790 0 (1,521)


Environment Total 777,065 842,263 983,409 1,058,891 75,482 21,460 1,164,978


Grand Total 2,705,761 5,820,310 1,194,195 5,815,871 4,621,332 3,478,018 3,107,003


   







30/06/2019 COA Description  Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast code Variance- YTD 


Actuals vs. 


Forecast


Notes 2018-19 CARRYOVER Budget 19/20


30/06/2020 CAPITAL PROJECTS


Council Roads


Road 701002 Gravel Road Resheets - NORTH -                      405,600 439,120 405,600 E  (33,520) Annual Program - complete 418,490


Road 701003 Gravel Road Resheets SOUTH 1,014,000           608,400 577,494 608,400 E 30,907 Annual Program - complete 623,610


Kerb 701015 Kerb & Channel 23,000                23,000 885 23,000 E 22,115 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 22,115 24,000


Footpath 701021 Footpath Rehabilitation 20,000                20,000 -  20,000 E 20,000 21,000


Footpath 701022 Footpaths New 5,000                  10,000 -  10,000 E 10,000 5,000


Footpath 701040 Footpaths Haines Close-Gregory Street - New -                      50,000 20,922 50,000 E 29,078 Budget carried forward to faciliate construction 29,078 -  


Road 701020 Dust Suppression GAT Seals 22,000                22,000 -  22,000 E 22,000 Provisional budget for a 3 year GATT seal program - carried forward 22,000 23,000


Road 701023 Reseals 748,000              748,000 769,929 748,000 E  (21,929) Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 - works on Neill St, 


Beaufort delayed due to VicRoads Traffic Management issues


83,071 767,000


Road 701024 Reseals - Extra Rate Cap Exp 105,000              105,000 -  105,000 E 105,000 108,000


Bridge 701198 201819- Repair Bridge Bearing Pads & Expansion Joints at 2 Sites 


(CLOSED)Exp


127,000              127,000 31,818 35,000 E 3,182 Complete -  


Road 701025 Major Patch Program 107,000              107,000 56,661 107,000 E 50,339 Annual Program - complete 110,000


Drain 701601 Drainage Project 2018-19  (CLOSED) 50,000                50,000 22,662 21,144 E  (1,518) Annual Program - complete -  


Road 701028 Sealed Road Shoulder Rehabilitation Exp 54,000                54,000 38,460 54,000 E 15,540 56,000


Bridge 701034 Bridge 93 & 94 Landsborough Elmhurst Rd 317,000              375,000 -  375,000 E 375,000 Project managed by Ararat Rural City Council. Budget carried forward 


to facilitate completion.


375,000 -  


WIP 701012 Forward Survey & Design Works Exp 60,000                60,000 21,182 21,000 E  (182) Survey and design works for 2018/19 - complete 55,000


760130 State Govt Rural Roads & Bridges Grant Inc  (CLOSED) -                      -   (303) -  I 303 Final grant instalment of Beaufort Carngham Road grant -  


Road 701087 Council Funded Road Capex Projects Exp -                      50,001 8,589 50,001 E 41,412 Budget carried forward. Guardrail for Raglan Elmhurst Road - to 


realign guardrail installed in 2018/19 due to safety concerns. Delayed 


due to redesign.


41,411 -  


Council Roads Total 2,652,000           2,815,001           1,987,419         2,655,145         667,726            572,675              2,211,100           


Funded works - Roads To Recovery Program, Local Roads to Market and Fixing Country Roads


760072 Roads To Recovery General Inc No GST 979,000-               (979,000)  (979,055)  (979,000) I 55 Roads to Recovery annual allocation  (1,394,720)


761215 Bridge 91 Landsborough Elmhurst Road (LRTM) Inc -                       (176,072)  (166,900)  (176,072) I  (9,172)  (9,172) -  


Bridge 701215 Bridge 91Landsborough Elmhurst Road - R2R & LRTM Exp -                      265,072 108,021 392,758 E 284,737 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate completion in 


2019/20.


284,737 -  


761216 Bridge 13 - Beaufort Carngham Road  (LRTM) Inc -                       (296,936)  (278,700)  (296,936) I  (18,236)  (18,236) -  


Bridge 701216 Bridge 13 - Beaufort Carngham Road  -  LRTM Exp -                      445,405 421,660 648,735 E 227,075 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate completion in 


2019/20.


227,075 -  


761301 Raglan Elmhurst Road Ch 21 to 22.5 (LRTM) Inc -                       (423,969)  (381,000)  (423,969) I  (42,969) -  


761091 Trawalla Road Grant Inc  (CLOSED) -                      -   (58,100)  (58,100) I -  Final grant instalment. -  


762999 BRIDGES RENEWAL PROGRAM FED (PC) Inc -                      -  -  -  I -   (352,015)


761309 Eurambeen Streatham Road (Fixing Country Roads) Inc  (CLOSED) -                      -   (600,000)  (600,000) I -  -  


761310 Bridge 59 - Eurambeen Streatham Road Bridge Replacement (FCR) Inc -                      -   (172,777) -  I 172,777 Fixing Country Roads Program - 2019/20 - grant instalment raised in  


2018/19


172,777  (431,700)


761311 Eurambeen Streatham Road Reconstruction 780mts (FCR) Inc -                      -   (86,208) -  I 86,208 Fixing Country Roads Program - 2019/20 - grant instalment raised in  


2018/19


86,208  (215,500)


761312 Raglan Elmhurst Road 1.68km Reconstruction  (FCR) Inc -                      -   (157,997) -  I 157,997 Fixing Country Roads Program - 2019/20 - grant instalment raised in  


2018/19


157,997  (395,000)


761313 Langi Kal Kal Road 1.75km Reconstruction  (FCR) Inc -                      -   (182,985) -  I 182,985 Fixing Country Roads Program - 2019/20 - grant instalment raised in  


2018/19


182,985  (457,519)


Drain 701210 MC 352 Sandy Lane (CLOSED) Exp -                      100,700 111,000 111,000 E -  Complete -  -  


Road 701309 Eurambeen Streatham Road (Fixing Country Roads grant)  (CLOSED) 


Exp


-                      -  682,173 650,000 E  (32,173) Stage 1 - Complete


Drain 701303 MC - 353 Moonambel-Natte Yallock Rd Ch10.78 (Maryborough St 


Arnaud Road R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp


450,000              174,009 11,150 -  E  (11,150) Complete -  


Road 701307 Moonambel-Natte Yallock Rd Ch 8.91 - 10.1 (Maryborough St Arnaud 


R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp


-                      594,135 595,994 599,935 E 3,941 Complete -  


Bridge 701209 Bridge 154 Trawalla East Rd Renew Floodway R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      288,144 283,394 308,200 E 24,806 Complete -  


Road 701306 Langi Kal Kal Road 0.21-1.94 R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      99,906 91,336 90,669 E  (667) Stage 1 - Complete -  


Road 701301 Raglan-Elmhurst Rd Ch 21-22.5 R2R & LRTM  (CLOSED)  Exp 450,000              635,954 691,111 694,200 E 3,089 Complete -  


Road 701217 Bridge 12 - Beaufort Carngham Road  -  BRP (Fed) Exp -                      -  -  -  E -  704,030


Drain 701208 MC 356 Mount William Rd Bridge R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      349,016 278,933 227,000 E  (51,933) Complete -  


Bridge 701310 Bridge 59 - Eurambeen Streatham Road (FCR)Exp -                      -  -  -  E -  654,200


Road 701311 Eurambeen Streatham Road Reconstruction 780mts (FCR)Exp -                      -  -  -  E -  326,500


Road 701312 Raglan Elmhurst Road 1.68km Reconstruction (FCR)Exp -                      -  -  -  E -  598,500


Road 701313 Langi Kal Kal Road 1.75km Reconstruction (FCR)Exp -                      -  -  -  E -  693,119


Road 701053 Vinoca Road Avoca Upgrade -                      -  -  -  E -  622,120
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Notes 2018-19 CARRYOVER Budget 19/20


Bridge 701214 Repair Bridge Bearing Pads & Expansion Joints at 1 Sites R2R  (CLOSED)  Exp 79,000                -  -  -  E -  Budgeted as R2R funded. Funds reallocated to other projects.  R2R 


final year of program - all funds must be drawn down by April 2019 


Quarter report


-  -  


Roads to Recovery Total -                      1,076,364           211,051            1,188,420         977,369 -  1,084,371 -  352,015


September 2016 Flood Event


Non-Cap 707361 Sept 2016 Flood - Gravel Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  876,344 -  NCE  (876,344) All flood works complete -  -  


Non-Cap 707362 Sept 2016 Flood - Sealed Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  1,010,348 -  NCE  (1,010,348) -  -  


Non-Cap 707363 Sept 2016 Flood - Road Seals  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 707364 Sept 2016 Flood - Bridges  (CLOSED) -                      -  88,499 -  NCE  (88,499) -  -  


Non-Cap 707365 Sept 2016 Flood - Major Culverts  (CLOSED) -                      -  41,226 -  NCE  (41,226) -  -  


Non-Cap 707366 Sept 2016 Flood - Tree Removal  (CLOSED) -                      -  169,530 -  NCE  (169,530) -  -  


Non-Cap 707367 Sept 2016 Flood - Parks & Reserves  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 707368 Sept 2016 Flood - Other  (CLOSED) -                      -  254,000 -  NCE  (254,000) -  -  


Non-Cap 707369 Sept 2016 Flood - Project Management  (CLOSED) -                      -  267,423 -  NCE  (267,423) -  -  


Non-Cap 707370 Sept 2016 Flood - Minor Culverts  (CLOSED) -                      -  146,379 -  NCE  (146,379) -  -  


Non-Cap 707371 Sept 2016 Flood - Floodways/Causeways  (CLOSED) -                      -  148,676 -  NCE  (148,676) -  -  


Non-Cap 707372 Sept 2016 Flood - Admin  (CLOSED) -                      -  44,342 4,875,337 NCE 4,830,995 Recognising Flood expenditure in one line -  -  


707373 Sept 2016 Flood - Insurance Claim Inc  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


707360 Sept 2016 Flood - State Grant Inc -                      -   (4,518,442)  (7,526,337) I  (3,007,895) Flood grants recognised in one line -  -  


Total September 2016 Flood Event -                      -                       (1,471,673)  (2,651,000) 1,179,327-         -                                                                                                          -                      - -                      


April 2017 Flood Event


Non-Cap 708361 Apr 2017 Flood - Gravel Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  350,825 -  NCE  (350,825) All flood works complete -  -  


Non-Cap 708362 Apr 2017 Flood - Sealed Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  451,519 -  NCE  (451,519) -  -  


Non-Cap 708363 Apr 2017 Flood - Road Seals  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 708364 Apr 2017 Flood - Bridges  (CLOSED) -                      -  2,590 -  NCE  (2,590) -  -  


Non-Cap 708365 Apr 2017 Flood - Major Culverts  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 708366 Apr 2017 Flood - Tree Removal  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 708369 Apr 2017 Flood - Project Management  (CLOSED) -                      -  23,814 -  NCE  (23,814) -  -  


Non-Cap 708370 Apr 2017 Flood - Minor Culverts (CLOSED) -                      -  248,061 -  NCE  (248,061) -  -  


Non-Cap 708371 Apr 2017 Flood - Floodways/Causeways  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


708360 Apr 2017 Flood - State Grant Inc -                      -   (2,195,239) -  I 2,195,239 -  -  


Total April 2017 Flood Event -                      -                       (1,118,431) -                    1,118,431         -                                                                                                          -                      - -                      


November 2017 Flood Event


Non-Cap 709360 Nov 2017 Flood - Emergency Response  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  All flood works complete -  -  


Non-Cap 709361 Nov 2017 Flood - Gravel Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  245,333 -  NCE  (245,333) -  -  


Non-Cap 709362 Nov 2017 Flood - Sealed Pavements  (CLOSED) -                      -  51,357 -  NCE  (51,357) -  -  


Non-Cap 709364 Nov 2017 Flood - Bridges  (CLOSED) -                      -  2,977 -  NCE  (2,977) -  -  


Non-Cap 709365 Nov 2017 Flood - Major Culverts  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 709366 Nov 2017 Flood - Tree Removal  (CLOSED) -                      -  12,104.46         -  NCE  (12,104) -  -  


Non-Cap 709367 Nov 2017 Flood - Parks & Reserves  (CLOSED) -                      -  -  -  NCE -  -  -  


Non-Cap 709369 Nov 2017 Flood - Project Management  (CLOSED) -                      -  8,766 -  NCE  (8,766) -  -  


Non-Cap 709368 Nov 2017 Flood - Other  (CLOSED) -                      -  13,664 -  NCE  (13,664) -  -  


Non-Cap 709370 Nov 2017 Flood - Minor Culverts  (CLOSED) -                      -  30,341 -  NCE  (30,341) -  -  


Non-Cap 709371 Nov 2017 Flood - Floodways/Causeways  (CLOSED) -                      -  20,540 -  NCE  (20,540) -  -  


709380 Nov 2017 Flood - State Grant Inc -                      -   (397,349) -  I 397,349 -  -  


Total April 2017 Flood Event -                      -                      12,266-              -                    12,266              -                                                                                                          -                      - -                      


Land 


Inventory 702012 Beaufort Residential Estate - Land Purchase Stage 4 -                      449,000 74,414 449,000 LFS 374,586 Contracts underway for land purchase for stages 4 & 5. 374,586 -  


Inventory 702015 Beaufort Residential Estate - Land Purchase Stage 5 -                      132,681 26,970 132,681 LFS 105,711 Purchase of stage 4/5 land underway 105,711 993,000


Inventory 702019 Residential Land Development  - Beaufort Stage 4 334,000              862,683 44,413 862,683
LFS


818,270 Construction planned for second half of 2019 once land purchase is 


completed. 


818,270 -  


Inventory 702024 Avoca Industrial Estate Land Exp -                      -  -  -  LFS -  -  -  


 750076 Beaufort Residential Land Sale Stage 1  (CLOSED)  Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


 750082 Beaufort Residential Land Sale Stage 3  (CLOSED)  Inc 120,000-               (180,000)  (160,000)  (180,000) I  (20,000) Sale for Stage 3 complete  (893,000)


 750083 Beaufort Residential Land Sale Stage 4  (CLOSED)  Inc 278,000-               (278,000) -   (278,000) I  (278,000) Stage 4 & 5 to commence in 2020.  (278,000) -  


750074 Avoca Industrial Estate Land Inc -                       (92,000) -   (92,000) I  (92,000) -  


Selling 702520 Land Sales Selling Costs Exp 64,000                64,000 16,876 64,000 NCE 47,124 47,124 -  


Inventory 702530 Vacant Land - Land Purchase -                      -  -  -  LFS -  -  -  


752530 Vacant Land Sales Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Land Total -                      958,364              2,672                958,364            955,692            -                                                                                                          1,067,692           - 100,000              
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Land & Improvements


Other 702055 Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank & Barkly Hall Upgrade  


(CLOSED)  Exp


-                      339,726 352,938 339,726 E  (13,212) Complete -  


762055 Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank Hall Upgrade Grant  


(CLOSED)  Inc


-                       (135,400)  (138,000)  (135,400) I 2,600 -  


762056 Raglan & Redbank S/C & Raglan, Redbank Hall UpgradeContribution  


(CLOSED)


-                       (65,900)  (17,500)  (65,900) I  (48,400) -  


762057 Transfer Station Reimbursement Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Other 702058 Waste Strategy Transfer Station Upgrades Exp 56,000                56,000 35,573 42,204 E 6,631 Project to create additional hard stand area in Snake Valley to 


accommodate green waste hard waste/recycle collection and 


additional skip bin - complete


57,400


762058 Waste Disposal Charges for Capex Inc 56,000-                 (56,000)  (56,000)  (56,000) I -  -   (57,400)


Building 702061 Avoca High Street Shade Exp -                      34,055 868 34,055 E 33,187 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate completion 33,187 -  


762061 Avoca High Street Shade Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Other 702069 Solar Lighting of Township Entrances  (CLOSED)  Exp 10,000                15,011 19,028 15,011 E  (4,017) Complete -  


Other 702071 Directional Signage Upgrade Exp -                      29,500 27,896 29,500 E 1,604 Primarily complete 1,604 20,000


Non-Cap 702072 RV Dump Point Establishment  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      49,715 63,465 64,000 NCE 535 Complete -  


Non-Cap 702059 Flood Study Planning Beaufort/Avoca/Waubra/Lexton Exp 54,000                130,720 48,587 130,720 NCE 82,133 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate completion 82,133 55,000


Non-Cap 702092 Upper Avoca River Flood Study Exp -                      -  485 -  NCE  (485) Unspent grant funding carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate 


completion


79,515 -  


Non-Cap 702093 Raglan Flood Study Exp -                      -  552 -  NCE  (552) Unspent grant funding carried forward in 2019/20 to faciliate 


completion


51,448 -  


762092 Upper Avoca River Flood Study Inc -                      -   (80,000) -  I 80,000 New grant funding -  


762093 Raglan Flood Study Inc -                      -   (52,000) -  I 52,000 New grant funding -  


Non-Cap 702065 Moonambel Water Supply Business Case  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      42,565 36,200 39,000 NCE 2,800 Complete -  


Non-Cap 702046 Moonambel Water Supply Concept Plan  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      67,900 -  -  NCE -  Complete -  -  


762039 Moonambel Water Supply Planning - State  (CLOSED) Inc -                       (9,000)  (4,190)  (4,190) I -  -  -  


762046 Moonambel Water Supply Planning - Federal  (CLOSED)  Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Other 702086 E-Waste Project - Beaufort Transfer Station  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      -  110,072 102,212 E  (7,860) Complete -  


Other 702087 E-Waste Project - Avoca Transfer Station  (CLOSED) Exp -                      -  116,367 106,750 E  (9,617) Complete -  


Other 702088 E-Waste Project - Snake Valley Transfer Station  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      -  28,210 29,590 E 1,380 Complete -  


762086 E-Waste Project - Beaufort Transfer Station  (CLOSED) Inc -                      -   (99,756)  (99,756) I  (0) Complete -  


762087 E-Waste Project - Avoca Transfer Station  (CLOSED)  Inc -                      -   (100,000)  (100,000) I -  Complete -  


762088 E-Waste Project - Snake Valley Transfer Station  (CLOSED)  Inc -                      -   (25,000)  (25,000) I -  Complete -  


Land & Improvements Total 64,000                498,892              267,795            446,522            178,727            -                                                                                                          247,886              - 75,000                


Recreation Projects


Non-Cap 702022 Croquet Club Development -                      -  2,288 4,400 NCE 2,112 Utilities -  


762041 Beaufort Pool SV Pools Grant Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Other 702056 Playground Equipment Replacement Exp 10,000                29,545 -  29,545 E 29,545 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 29,545 10,000


Other 702060 Hardcourt Renewal Program Exp 77,000                149,000 -  -  E -  Allocated to fund the Lexton Community Hub shortfall -  


762060 Hardcourt Renewal State Grant Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  


Building 702068 Avoca Pool Refurbishment Exp 186,000              186,000 103,499 186,000 E 82,501 Shelters constructed. Heat pump installed and working effectively.  


Pool covers in use. Solar panels installed. 2 Gas heaters installed - 


awaiting gas meter. Main circulating pump installed at Avoca. Spare 


pump purchased. Unspent Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20.


44,692 -  


762068 Avoca Pool SV Pools Grant - State Inc  (124,000)  (12,400) -   (12,400) I  (12,400)  (12,400) -  


Building 702074 Avoca Pool Amenity Renewal Exp -                      25,000 6,469 25,000 E 18,531 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20  for minor improvement 


works


18,531 -  


Building 702075 Beaufort Pool Amenity Renewal Exp -                      25,000 2,406 25,000 E 22,594 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20  for minor improvement 


works


22,594 -  


Building 702076 Landsborough Pool Amenity Renewal Exp -                      15,000 7,652 15,000 NCE 7,348 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20  for minor improvement 


works


7,348 -  


Non-Cap 702070 Snake Valley Linear Park Skate Component Exp 100,000              100,000 -  125,000 NCE 125,000 Funding agreement in place. Works to commence after 1 July 2019 125,000 250,000


762070 Snake Valley Linear Park Skate Component Grant Inc -  -   (225,000) -  I 225,000 225,000  (250,000)


Non-Cap 702017 Recreation Strategy Projects Exp 148,000              293,350 15,345 158,350 NCE 143,005 The allocation is to be distributed to make up balance of funds 


required to complete a range of recreation projects. Unspent budget 


carried forward to facilitate completion of works at Waubra.


83,993 50,000


Non-Cap 702077 Activate Avoca Project - Railway Precinct Exp -                      250,000 15,144 250,000 E 234,856 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 234,856 -  
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Footpath 702091 Activate Avoca - Streetscape Exp -                      250,000 4,639 250,000 E 245,361 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 245,361 -  


Building 703097 Activate Avoca - Town Hall Exp -                      250,000 11,976 250,000 E 238,024 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 238,024 -  


762077 Activate Avoca Grant Inc -                       (500,000) -   (500,000) I  (500,000) Successful grant application of $500k  (500,000) -  


Other 702090 Avoca Inclusive Playspace Exp -                      -  415 74,000 E 73,585 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 73,585 238,000


762091 Avoca Inclusive Playspace Contribution -                      -   (30,000) -  I 30,000 Grant acquittal complete 30,000  (30,000)


762090 Avoca Inclusive Playspace Grant Inc -                      -   (187,200) -  I 187,200 187,200  (208,000)


Footpath 702081 Beaufort Walkability Project  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      266,050 289,434 287,000 E  (2,434) Complete -  


760081 Beaufort Walkability Grant  (CLOSED)  Inc -                       (149,650)  (149,650)  (149,650) I -  Grant acquittal complete -  -  


Footpath 702082 Beaufort Walkability Project - Stage 2 Exp -                      130,000 -  109,000 E 109,000 Awaiting opportunity for second stage grant to proceed with project. 106,566 -  


Other 702083 Crowlands Tennis Court Refurbishment  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      50,000 49,000 49,000 E -  Complete -  


Other 702084 Landsborough Tennis Court Refurbishment  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      70,000 68,000 68,000 E -  Complete -  


Other 702085 Waubra Tennis Court Refurbishment  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      12,521 12,505 12,505 E -  Complete -  


762085 Waubra Tennis Court Refurbishment Contribution  (CLOSED) -                       (15,000)  (15,000)  (15,000) I -  -  


Non-Cap 702078 Avoca Oval - CFNP 2018-19 - Playing Surface Exp -                      -  45,585 60,040 NCE 14,455 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 19,455 -  


760116 Avoca Oval - CFNP 2018-19 - Playing Surface Grant Inc -                      -   (41,036)  (36,036) I 5,000  (4,004)


Non-Cap 702089 Carngham Recreation Reserve - Female Friendly Toilets  Exp -                      -  -  300,000 NCE 300,000 Funding agreement in place.  Expected to be complete by December 


2019.


300,000 -  


762089 Carngham Recreation Reserve - Female Friendly Toilets Grant Inc -                      -   (180,000)  (180,000) I -  New grant funding -   (20,000)


772090 Carngham Recreation Reserve - Female Friendly Toilets Community 


Contribution Inc


-                      -  -  -  I -  -   (10,000)


Non-Cap 702079 Snake Valley Golf Club Sustainable Green Project  (CLOSED)  Exp -                      -  38,061 -  NCE  (38,061) Complete -  


760117 Snake Valley Golf Club Sustainable Green Project  (CLOSED)  Inc -                      -   (38,061) -  I 38,061 New grant funding -  


Non-Cap 703024 Natte Yallock Rec Res Complex Roof Exp -                      -  356 10,000 NCE 9,644 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 9,644 -  


-  


Recreation Projects Total 397,000              1,424,416           193,174-            1,394,754         1,587,928         -                                                                                                          1,488,995           - 25,996                


Buildings 


Building 703018 Lexton Community Facilty Upgrade Exp -                      2,760,000 9,488 2,321,000 E 2,311,512 Successful commonwealth grant $1m. State Grant = $800k and 


community contribution = $200k.  Additional funding being sought. 


Detailed design to be undertaken. 


2,311,512 100,000


763017 Lexton Community Facility Federal Grant Inc -                       (920,000) -   (1,000,000) I  (1,000,000)  (1,000,000) -  


763018 Lexton Community Facility State Grant Inc -                       (920,000)  (520,000)  (800,000) I  (280,000) Successful grant from the State Government of $800k  (280,000) -  


763019 Lexton Community Facility Local Contribution Inc -                       (748,000) -   (200,000) I  (200,000)  (200,000) -  


Building 703095 Beaufort Caravan Park Improvements Exp -                      140,000 -  37,500 E 37,500 Quotes are being obtained for camp kitchen upgrade.  The 


replacement of the ageing HW system and upgrades to older cabins 


deferred to 2019/20.


37,500 20,000


762047 Beaufort Caravan Park - State Govt Funding Inc -                       (102,500) -  -  I -  No grant funding for caravan parks currently available -  


Building 703076 Avoca Projects Exp -                      124,500 -  50,500 E 50,500 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 50,500 -  


Building 703010 Avoca Depot Upgrade Planning Exp -                      5,000 -  5,000 E 5,000 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 5,000 -  


Building 703019 Avoca Depot Upgrade Exp -                      50,000 -  50,000 E 50,000 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20. However funds insufficient 


to complete the job. Considering options. 


50,000 -  


Non-Cap 703012 Beaufort Mens Shed Exp -                      7,479 4,119 7,479 NCE 3,360 Project progressing 3,360 -  


763020 Beaufort Mens Shed Grant Inc -                       (2,787) -   (2,787) I  (2,787)  (2,787) -  


Building 703021 Waubra Rec Res Toilet Block Exp -                      45,389 37,454 45,389 E 7,935 Complete -  


Building 703023 Buildings Energy Efficiency Project -                      100,000 -  100,000 E 100,000 Allocation carried forward in 2019/20 to facilitate completion of 50% 


grant funded project


100,000 100,000


763023 Buildings Energy Efficiency State Grant Inc -                       (50,000) -   (50,000) I  (50,000)  (50,000)  (50,000)


Non-Cap 703014 Pratt Street Carport Exp -                      2,500 -  2,500 NCE 2,500 -  


Non-Cap 703077 Telecommunications Improvements Exp -                      159,091 90,909 159,091 NCE 68,182 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to fund the OPAN Project. 68,182 -  


Building 703069 Building Renewal Program 110,000              151,591 74,660 151,591 E 76,931 Budget carried forward to facilitate completion of Amphitheatre toilet 


block.


76,931 115,000


Buildings Total 110,000 802,263  (303,370) 877,263 1,180,633 -  1,170,198 -  285,000







30/06/2019 COA Description  Original Budget Current Budget YTD Actual Forecast code Variance- YTD 


Actuals vs. 


Forecast


Notes 2018-19 CARRYOVER Budget 19/20


Furniture and Equipment


Furniture 704001 Furniture & Fittings Purchases 21,000                21,000 14,068 21,000 E 6,932 Complete 22,000


Non-Cap 704002 Furniture & Fittings Non-Captial -                      -  40,809 50,000 NCE 9,191 Office refurbishment complete -  


IT 704011 Information Technology Purchases 116,000              167,304 67,842 167,304 E 99,462 * PC Replacements complete.  * Outdoor staff iPhone upgrades 


complete


* IT module upgrades planned in the fourth quarter.


Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to facilitate completion of 


ongoing projects


99,462 127,000


750011 Info Technology Equipment Sales Inc 2,000-                   (2,000)  (2,035)  (2,000) I 35  (2,000)


IT 704012 Electronic Information Screen Purchases -                      35,000 -  35,000 E 35,000 Investigated digital options and found that there was no demand for 


the service.


-  


IT 704014 Information Technology System Improvements -                      130,000 24,935 80,000 E 55,065 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to facilitate completion of 


ongoing projects


55,065 -  


Library 704031 Library Collection Purchases 52,000                52,000 36,032 43,000 E 6,968 Complete 55,000


750072 Furniture & Fittings Sales Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Plant and Equipment Total 187,000              403,304              181,652            394,304            212,652 -  154,527 -  202,000


Plant Purchases


Plant 706003 Heavy Plant Purchases 574,000              800,516 658,022 800,516 E 142,494 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to facilitate purchase of 


plant.


142,494 539,000


Plant 706004 Minor Plant Purchases 11,000                11,000 8,046 11,000 E 2,954 11,000


750070 Plant Sales Inc 120,000-               (163,800)  (172,364)  (163,800) I 8,564 8,564  (120,000)


Plant 706005 Motor Vehicle Purchases 382,000              382,000 62,292 382,000 E 319,708 Unspent budget carried forward in 2019/20 to facilitate purchase of 


vehicles


319,708 382,000


750071 Motor Vehicle Sales Inc 190,000-               (190,000) 2,273  (190,000) I  (192,273)  (192,273)  (190,000)


Plant 705501 Water Bores Refurbishment 15,000                15,000 30,393 39,000 E 8,607 Complete 15,000


760501 Water Bore Refurbishment Grant Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


760503 Fire Damaged Water Bore Contribution Inc -                      -  -  -  I -  -  -  


Plant Purchases Total 672,000              854,716              588,663            878,716            290,053 -  278,492 -  637,000


Net Capital Expenditure 4,082,000           8,833,320           140,338            6,142,488         6,002,150         -                                                                                                          6,064,836           - 3,888,111           


CAPITAL PROJECTS


E Capital Expenditure 5,251,000           12,925,050 7,540,165 13,031,540 5,491,375 5,381,204 7,620,969


LFS Land Development Capitalised to Current Assets 334,000              1,444,364 145,797 1,444,364 1,298,567 1,298,567 993,000


NCE Non-Capital Expenditure 366,000              932,320 4,919,949 6,064,917 1,144,968 877,202 355,000


I Income (1,869,000) (6,468,414) (12,465,573) (14,398,333)  (1,932,760)  (1,492,137)  (5,080,858)


C/F R2R Carryforward Roads to Recovery -  -  


Net Capital Expenditure 4,082,000           8,833,320 140,338 6,142,488 6,002,150 6,064,836 3,888,111







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL


Income Statement


For the period 1 July 2018 to  


 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 $


 Original 


Budget 


 Current 


Budget 


 YTD


 Actual 


 Variance- 


Actuals vs. 


Forecast 


Forecast


 Budget


19/20 


Revenue


Rates and service charges 10,013 10,013 10,004 47 10,051 10,416 


Statutory fees and fines 213 213 228  (30) 198 202 


User charges 858 858 796 25 821 834 


6,246 3,543 6,669  (2,899) 3,770 6,621 


229 741 7,811 746 8,557 174 


979 979 979 - 979 1,395 


124 3,187 3,662 265 3,927 2,360 


Contributions - Operating - - 16  (16) - 10 


Contributions - Capital - 829 68 213 281 30 


Other income  271 271 335  (75) 260 291 


Gross Asset Sales 710 906 315 590 905 1,205 


WDV of Assets Sold  (639)  (639)  (269)  (565)  (834)  (1,134) 


Total Revenue 19,004 20,901 30,614  (1,699) 28,915 22,404 


Expenses


Employee benefits 7,163 7,163 7,002 273 7,275 7,897 


6,536 8,249 11,172 2,372 13,544 6,708 


Bad Debts 2 2 30  (28) 2 1 


Depreciation 6,835 6,835 6,031 804 6,835 7,034 


Finance costs - - 2  (2) - - 


Other expenses 310 310 302 8 310 279 


Total Expenses 20,846 22,559 24,539 3,427 27,966 21,919 


 (1,842)  (1,658) 6,075  (5,126) 949 485 Surplus(deficit) for the year


Grants - Operating - Non-Recurrent


30 June 2019


Contract payments, materials and services


Grants - Capital - Recurrent


Grants - Capital - Non-Recurrent


Grants - Operating - Recurrent







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL


As at 30 June 2019 Actual Actual Budget


30/06/2019 30/06/2018 30/06/2019


 $'000  $'000  $'000 


12,029 8,680 2,291 


Other financial assets 20 5 - 


1,843 781 877 


Inventories 2 4 - 


0 155 1,488 


1,038 681 245 


14,932 10,306 4,901 


58 65 75 


Capital Expenditure 2018-2019 7,687 - - 


227,076 228,071 227,350 


234,821 228,136 227,425 


249,753 238,442 232,326 


 


1,485 1,679 1,045 


156 120 200 


2,068 1,924 2,020 


3,709 3,723 3,265 


129 80 173 


129 80 173 


3,838 3,803 3,438 


  


245,915 234,639 228,888 


84,200 84,200 82,517 


6,075 - - 


155,640 150,439 146,371 


245,915 234,639 228,888 


Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Total Assets


LIABILITIES


Trust funds and deposits


Current liabilities


Total non-current assets


Balance Sheet


ASSETS


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents


Trade and other receivables


Employee provisions


Trade and other payables 


Non-current liabilities


Reserves


Employee provisions


Total non-current liabilities


Total Liabilities


Represented by:


Accumulated surplus


Equity


Non-current assets classified as held for sale


Total current liabilities


Net Assets


Accumulated surplus for 2018/2019


Other assets


Total current assets


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables







PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL


For the period 1 July 2018 to  30 June 2019 2018/19 2018/19


Actual Budget
Inflows/ Inflows/


(Outflows) (Outflows)


$'000 $'000


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and garbage charges 10,107 10,013 


Statutory fees and fines 228 213 


User charges  (193) 944 


Grants 18,292 7,578 


Contributions - cash 92 1 


Other income 603 272 


Net GST refund 1,620 1,119 


Net movements in trust funds 36 - 


Payments to suppliers  (12,337)  (7,191) 


Payments to employees  (6,729)  (7,177) 


Other payments  (332)  (327) 


Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 11,387 5,445 


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment  (8,210)  (5,810) 


Payments for land held for resale  (161)  (367) 


Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 189 343 


Proceeds from the sale of Land Held for Resale 176 438 


Purchase of investments - - 


Proceeds from redemption of investments  (15) - 


Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  (8,021)  (5,396) 


Cash flows from financing activities


Redemption of Financial Assets  (15) 


Finance costs  (2) 


Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  (17) - 


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 3,349 49 


Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 8,680 2,242 


Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the current period 12,029 2,291 


Statement of Cash Flows
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Best Value Principles 
 


Pyrenees Shire Council has the responsibility to provide its ratepayers with best 
value, with all services provided by Council meeting the expectations in terms of 
quality and cost. In providing this, all services need to be accessible, responsive to 
the needs of the community, considerate of the natural environment and subject to 
continuous improvement. 
 
To achieve the best over life outcome for Council’s expenditures, which meets 
quality and service expectations, there will be periodic review of services against 
best on offer in both the public and private sectors.  
 
All Council staff members are responsible for supporting best value principles in their 
normal day to day actions to ensure services are recognised by the community as 
delivering best value.  


 
 


Signed  
 
 
 
Kathy Bramwell 
Director Corporate & Community Services 
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Pyrenees Shire Council – Code Red Day Policy 


 
Purpose 


This policy provides for work place arrangements to be implemented within the Pyrenees Shire 
Council (PSC) in the event that a ‘Code Red Day’ fire warning is issued by Emergency Management 
Victoria. 
 


Definition 


The Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) in consultation with fire agencies determines the ratings for any 
given period or day. The Fire Danger Rating (FDR) uses a combination of words and numbers to give 
an expert assessment of the potential fire danger, and the difficulty of suppressing a fire and the 
potential impact on the community. Code Red is the highest fire danger rating in Victoria. These are 
the worst conditions for a grass fire or bushfire with very high temperatures, strong wind and low 
humidity. It is almost impossible for fire-fighting agencies to control a fire in these conditions. 


 


Policy 


On a Code Red Day, PSC staff will, as far as reasonably practical, protect themselves and others from 
the risks associated with extreme heat and bushfires while engaged in Shire activities. Council’s 
Senior Leadership Team will implement the approved procedures that support this policy and enable 
the Emergency Management Team to reach a state of readiness. 
 


Objectives 


In the event of a ‘Code Red’ fire warning being issued for the South West District (which includes 
Pyrenees Shire), the objectives of this policy are to: 


 
1. Promote and encourage safe work practices for Council employees; 
2. Provide guidance to employees on service delivery and leave entitlements; 
3. Determine the services that will be affected on Code Red Days and document what will be 


modified or suspended; and 
4. Ensure the Council Emergency Management Team have sufficient resources in place to 


undertake their emergency management responsibilities. 
 


Council have determined that as its service delivery will be affected on days declared as Code Red 
fire danger days, some staff may be required to start work earlier in order to enable specific services 
to be delivered. Other staff members, who are primary carers for children, siblings and parents and 
therefore have a duty of care for family members, will be able to access leave as determined by their 
Manager. Those employees who have property that is threatened by disaster resulting from the 
Code Red day will also be able to access leave as required. 
 


Scope 


This policy applies to all Pyrenees Shire Council staff, Councillors, contractors, volunteers and visitors 
in all PSC work locations. 
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Managers/Supervisors Responsibilities 


Managers and Supervisors are responsible for: 


 Briefing all people under their supervision on the terms of this policy and its procedures as 
well as any changes to Council service delivery. 


 Ensuring all employees are aware of the Code Red Day OH&S requirements. 


 Determining and implementing appropriate processes in the event that a ‘Code Red Day’ is 
declared. 


For information regarding service delivery, see Appendix A attached to this document. 


 


Pyrenees Shire Council Related Documents 


Procedure – Extreme Weather (including heat) 
Work Instruction – Response to declared weather conditions 
Municipal Heatwave Plan 
Municipal Emergency Management Plan 


Related Legislation 


Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004 
Occupational Health and Safety Regulations 2017 
Emergency Management Act 1986, 2013 


 


Document History 


Version Number Issue date Description of change 


1.0 Dec 2014 Initial release 


1.1 Nov 2015 Reviewed with no changes 


2.0 Sept 2019 Review – wording and administrative changes; addition of actions’ 


listing for specific functions 
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Directorate - Action Detail Responsibility of - 


Assets and Development - Waste/transfer stations All waste/transfer stations will be closed to all 


users 


Manager Assets and Engineering 


Assets and Development – Community Safety & 


Amenity Officer Call Outs 


Only approved essential call outs will be 


conducted. Call outs on these days must be 


attended by a minimum of 2 members of staff. 


Manager Planning and Development 


Assets and Development - Roadside Slashing and 


Chainsaw Use 


All slashing and chainsaw use will be postponed 


except for emergency management purposes. 


Manager Works 


Assets and Development - Township reserve 


mowing and chainsaw usage 


All reserve mowing and chainsaw use will be 


postponed unless for emergency purposes or the 


preparation of a public event. The Manager 


Works will determine the level of risk prior to any 


works being undertaken on a case by case basis. 


Manager Works 


Assets and Development - Road Construction All road construction work will be postponed, 


unless it’s works to keep worksites safe i.e. 


signage, watering 


Manager Works 


Assets and Development - Road Maintenance All scheduled road maintenance works will be 


postponed other than patrolling for inspection 


purposes and/or emergency management. All 


road sealing to be cancelled unless its committed 


works that can’t be rescheduled. 


Manager Works 


Assets and Development - Depot Maintenance All Works staff will be required to undertake 


depot based maintenance such as plant cleaning, 


depot housekeeping and general servicing on days 


of Code Red Fire Danger.                                                        


Manager Works 


Assets and Development - Equipment Usage All plant that is prohibited to use on Total Fire Ban 


days will not be used on Code Red days e.g. angle 


grinders, welders 


Manager Works 
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Assets and Development - Excessive Heat Staff required to work outdoors to maintain 


safety at worksites need to adhere to the 


Pyrenees Shire Council Extreme Weather 


Procedure (rest break guidance) 


Manager Works 


Corporate and Community Services – Pyrenees 


Community Care 


Community Services to telephone clients on our 


Vulnerable Persons List. 


Manager Community Wellbeing 


Corporate and Community Services – Pyrenees 


Community Care 


Only pre-determined ‘high risk’ clients will 


continue to receive essential care-all other 


services will be postponed. 


Manager Community Wellbeing 


Corporate and Community Services – Maternal 


and Child Health 


Maternal and Child Health centres in high risk 


areas will close. Home visits in these areas will be 


postponed, as will any immunization sessions. 


Manager Community Wellbeing 


Economic Development & Tourism – Community 


Events 


Each event must have an emergency 


management plan, which will include what will 


happen on Code Red days. Event permits will be 


revoked on Code Red days if the event is to be 


conducted in a high risk area. 


Manager Economic Development & Tourism 


General actions – Site Inspections and non- 


essential travel 


All site inspections and non- essential travel is to 


be postponed. 


Managers or any relevant staff members 


Assets and Development Beaufort, Avoca and Landsborough swimming 


pools will be closed. 


YMCA Swimming Pool Operator 








 


 


DRAFT LETTER OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIL AND SNAKE VALLEY & 


DISTRICT LAND PROTECTION GROUP INC. TO MANAGE RESERVE No. 1 PITTONG ROAD, SNAKE 


VALLEY. AUGUST 2019. Incorporation Number A00119365 


 


        


                       Location of Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley Victoria 


This document formally identifies the inaugural, agreed, respective roles and responsibilities of the 


Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group Inc. in the management of Reserve No. 1 Pittong 


Road, Snake Valley, Victoria. 


Background:                                                                                                                                                                             


Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley comprises 1.427 hectares and is zoned “Reserved for 


Municipal Purposes”. It lies one kilometre from the Snake Valley township zone. Residential 


properties adjoin Reserve No. 1.Pittong Road. Council conducted a best practice audit of Council 


owned properties in 2017 and identified Reserve No 1 as surplus to requirements. It was to be sold 


but adjoining neighbours and others within the Snake Valley township, known as “Friends of Reserve 


No. 1”, provided additional information on current use, values and management. Given this 


important information and interest by community groups, Council agreed at its February 2019 


meeting to commence discussions with “Friends of Reserve No.1” on future management of the 


Reserve. 


Pyrenees Shire Council requires that any agreement must be with a local incorporated group. Liason 


with Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group [Snake Valley & District LPG] by the “Friends of  


Reserve No.1” resulted in that group joining the Snake Valley & District LPG. This complied with 


Pyrenees Shire Council requirements and is a better community outcome rather than creating a new 


formal organisation. 


Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group Inc.                                                                                               


Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group Inc. was formed over twenty- five years ago and has a 


long history of working with communities on weed control, revegetation, waterway protection and 


other activities. The group operates and has responsibilities under the Incorporations Act 2012 and a 


Code of Conduct developed and approved by Landcare Victoria Inc. [LVI] in 2019. This organisation is 


the overarching Victorian landcare representative body. 


 







 In Relation to Management of Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley, the Snake Valley & 


District Land Protection Group agrees to: 


-  be aware of and abide by the rules, regulations, roles and responsibilities of the Incorporations Act 


2012; 


-adhere to and promote Landcare Victoria’s Code of Conduct, its general principles of behaviour; 


ensure that appropriate safety policies are in place and to establish procedures through which issues 


are minimised and appropriately managed; 


-compile and regularly review a risk management plan which identifies key risks, likelihood, current 


controls and additional actions;           


 - annually review, report to Pyrenees shire Council  and revise risk management assessments to 


minimise impacts on visitors and volunteers;  


- with Pyrenees Shire Council, review and ensure best practice in both organisational and 


implementation activities of the Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Site Management Plan. 


This includes provision of insurance coverage for Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group 


volunteers. Landcare Victoria Incorporated provides insurance for volunteer group members when 


undertaking nominated group activities on Reserve No. 1. We will ensure that procedures are in 


place to comply with their requirements. For planned public events a risk assessment will be 


completed pre and post event and outcomes reported to the Snake Valley & District LPG Committee. 


- work cooperatively with Pyrenees Shire Council and nominated staff to achieve agreed outcomes 


for Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley.  


Issues for Discussion 


1. Tenure of Agreement between Pyrenees Shire Council and Snake Valley & District LPG. 


Options could include:                                                                                                                                                                                     


[a]a trial period of five years with agreed communication and reporting.                                                          


[b] an ongoing agreement subject to a responsible, incorporated community group in 


operation managing Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, Snake Valley. 


 


2.  General Public Liability- Whilst landcare members will be covered by insurance for any 


injuries suffered as a result of planned voluntary works on Reserve No 1, it is the intent of 


Council, our group and the community to promote Reserve No. 1 for general public use. 


Historically people have been informally using Reserve No. 1 for recreation, exercise, and 


access to Snake Valley. We request that Council continue to provide for public liability 


coverage on Reserve No. 1 Pittong Road, as part of managing the estate of Council owned 


properties. Snake Valley & District LPG will provide for volunteer liabilities under Landcare 


Victoria Inc. processes and programs and will assist Pyrenees Shire Council where possible.   


 


3. Risk Management –a recent inspection of Reserve No 1 identified that some large trees with 


overhanging branches were deteriorating in health. Although Snake Valley & District LPG can 


minimise impacts via our risk management procedures, an agreed process is required with 


Council. We suggest that as Council employs staff or contractors to assess tree health etc on 


other parks, gardens and Council owned areas, that Reserve No 1 Pittong Road Snake Valley  







be included in that process. Communication by Council regarding the assessment outcomes 


and recommendations is an important part of this process.  


 


 


In conclusion, Snake Valley & District Land Protection Group looks forward to working with Pyrenees 


Shire Council to promote biodiversity, public use and appreciation of Reserve No 1. Pittong Road 


Snake valley. 


 


Signed: 


 


Signed 


 


  







 


DRAFT RISK 
ASSESSMENT 


 


RESERVE 
NO. 1 


  
 PITTONG ROAD, 


                                                            


 SNAKE VALLEY 
 


 
VICTORIA 


Type of Risk Likelihood Current  Controls Additional Actions Priority 
Action  
Status 


 
Organisational:                                            
*lack of understanding of 
role and responsibilities 
under Incorporations Act 
 


 
Low 


 
SV & D LPG and community members 
are aware of and have discussed 
responsibilities at 4th August 2019 
meeting. 


 
*Ensure that members are aware of roles and 
responsibilities 
 
 
 


 
High 
Completed 


 
*little awareness and 
implementation of 
Landcare Victoria Inc. [LVI] 
Code of Conduct  
 


 
Low 


 
SV & D LPG and community have 
discussed and have been provided with 
copies of Landcare Victoria Inc. Code of 
Conduct at 4th August 2019 meeting.   


 
* Ensure regular annual governance training on 
Code of Conduct and  risk management 
responsibilities 


 
Low 


 
* no insurance covering 
volunteers  
 


 
Low 


 
SV & D LPG, [Gay Pearse], has discussed 
and clarified insurance requirements 
with Landcare Victoria Inc. 
 


 
*ensure regular contact with LVI regarding 
volunteer insurance, registration and protocols. 
Regularly update SV & District LPG membership 
registration.  
 


 
Low 


 
* understanding and 
ensuring public liability 
insurance for Reserve No. 
1 visitors  
 


 
High 


 
Unsure of previous and current 
Pyrenees Shire Council actions and 
assessments regarding pubic liability.  
  


 
* liason with Pyrenees Shire Council [PS 
Council]with request for Reserve No. 1 to be 
included in land estate responsibilities.  
 
 


High 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 







 
* Committee lack of 
understanding of Reserve 
safety issues and actions 
required  
 


 
Medium 


 
Committee have completed on site risk 
management assessment. Offer by PS 
Council to assist with risk assessment. 


 
* acceptance of PS Council offer to provide 
Reserve safety assessment  
 
* action recommendations from assessment 
 


 
Medium 
 
 
High 


 
* lack of communication 
with P S Council  
 


 
Low 


 
Liason with PS Council established in 
2017 with regular communications in 
2018.  
 


 
* Inaugural Letter of Agreement with Council  
includes regular communication and reporting   
 


 
Low 


     


Implementation of site 
management plan: 
* lack of volunteer 
knowledge of  safety 
issues and risk 
management procedures  
 


 
 
Low 


 
 
Inaugural risk management assessment 
sheet developed on 12th August 2019 
based on State of Victoria Risk 
Assessment data online  


 
 
*introduce a site induction process for all 
volunteers; report and regularly review risk 
management procedures   


 
 
High 


 
* lack of process in 
reducing  risk issues for 
Snake Valley & District 
LPG organised events  


 
Low 


 
Snake Valley & District LPG members 
implementing risk – based protocols 
used by professional groups. Eg 
Education Victoria, Landcare Victoria 
Inc. Greening Australia, Trust for 
Nature.  


 
* understand and adhere to LVI “Code of 
Conduct”; introduce recommended processes 
from “Tips and Tools” section. 
 
*introduce a requirement of the event organiser 
to complete pre event site risk assessment. 
Report to Committee and complete actions 
required to maximise safety.  
 
 


 
High 
 
 
 
High prior to 
nominated 
organised 
events 


 
* lack of knowledge of 
event promotion 


 
Low 


 
Snake Valley & District LPG have 
previously organised multiple events on 


 
* Committee has increased experience in 
organising, and promoting events via training.  


 
Low 
 







obligations regarding 
health and safety issues  
 
 


gorse control and revegetation and will 
continue to upgrade processes as 
required.  


 
*Event promotions will include recommendations 
for appropriate footwear, clothing, equipment, 
and parking. O.H & S recommendations for 
sunscreen, hat etc. Also information on 
unsuitable weather conditions to visit the 
Reserve. eg on total fire ban days or when strong 
wind warnings are in place.   
 
 


 
 
Medium 


 
* lack of knowledge by 
visitors, public  and 
volunteers of preferred 
safer parking area  
 


 
Medium 


 
Adjoining nature strips including a wide 
area with good visibility at the T 
intersection of Kellys Lane and Pittong 
Road are used with neighbour consent. 


 
*liason with adjoining landholders re location and 
signage for a designated parking area   
 
* ensure preferred parking area identified and 
designated with signage 
 


 
Medium 
 
 
Medium 


 
* vehicles travelling on 
Pittong Road at 80 km/hr. 
Increased use of Reserve 
No. 1 at T intersection 
with Kellys Lane by 
pedestrians and cyclists.  
 


 
 
 
Medium 


  
 
  
Current speed rate on Pittong Road is 
80 km/hr.  


 
 
 
* Liase with P S Council regarding lowering the 
speed limit to 60 km/hr.  


 
 
 
High 
 
 
 


 
* public risk of gathering 
blackberries treated with 
weed spray 
 


 
Low 


 
No signage on site 


 
* public use of Reserve No 1 is expected to 
increase. SV & District LPG will erect  signs  
notifying public of blackberry treatment 


 
Medium 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 







* public and volunteer 
injury risk due to multiple 
fence post holes on site 
 
  


High Previous fence post holes identified and 
marked.  


* SV & District LPG is aware of issue. Holes will be 
filled together with any other obvious risk areas 
as a first priority once Letter of Agreement with 
PS Council is completed. 
 


High 


 
* Risk of tall trees and 
branches falling, 
potentially causing injury 
to public   
 
 
 
 
 
* Black Wattle [Acacia 
mearnsii] senescing on 
site. Fallen branches and 
dead trees potentially 
causing public risk or 
injury.  
 


 
 
High 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
High 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
PS Council inspections and risk 
assessment by arborist unknown.  
 
SV & District LPG have noted some tall 
trees showing distress. 
 
 
 
 
No signage or precautions   


 
* liase with PS Council re any assessment or 
approved process 
 
* note preferred safer areas when organising an 
event, or providing seating or suggested 
pathways. Redirect to safer areas on Reserve No 
1.  
 
 
Include in event management advice. Potential to 
identify high risk areas via signage. 
 Develop a plan for management, removal or 
treatment with PS Council. 
 


 
High 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
High 


 
* large kangaroos  on site  
may cause threat or injury  


 
Low 


 
Issue discussed at S V & District 
community August 4th meeting. Current 
recommendation to use alternative 
route or delay site visit 
 


 
Invite local wildlife carer to meeting to identify 
further ways to minimise public risk  


 
Low 


 
* Whilst there are minimal 
tree hollows on site, some 
adjoining land hosts large 
hollow- bearing trees. 


 
Low 


 
No current precautions  


 
Ensure that organised events note this possible 
risk; that event attendees identify bee sting risk 
to organisers, ensure hat appropriate action is 
taken and a first aid kit is available.  


 
Low 







Introduced bees may 
establish hive on site 
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1  Purpose of this document 


This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is signed on ------/-------/2019 between: 


1. Ararat Rural City; 
2. Campaspe Shire; 
3. Central Goldfields Shire; 
4. City of Ballarat; 
5. City of Greater Bendigo; 
6. Golden Plains Shire; 
7. Hepburn Shire; 
8. Loddon Shire; 
9. Macedon Ranges Shire;  
10. Moorabool Shire;  
11. Mount Alexander Shire; 
12. Northern Grampians Shire; and  
13. Pyrenees Shire. 


Hereinafter referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties”. 


In recognition of their common interests and objectives, and in order to supplement 
and strengthen the existing understandings amongst the Parties with respect to 
cooperation for the Central Victorian Goldfields World Heritage Bid (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Program”), the Parties confirm their mutual understanding on the 
following: 


1.1  Purpose 


The signatories to this Memorandum of Understanding will work together to progress 
the development of the Program with the objective of unlocking the full potential of 
the Central Victorian Goldfields region, bringing economic diversification, jobs, 
investment and tourism, and raise the socio-economic outlook and liveability for 
cities, towns and communities across the region. 


 


1.2  Commitment 


This MOU is strictly limited to expressing a desire of the Parties for cooperation. It is 
not a legal agreement; however all parties commit to using their best endeavours to 
achieve its purpose. 


 


2  Objectives 


Cooperation and partnership between the Parties under this MOU is based on the 
overarching mutual recognition of: 


2.1.1  The need for a long-term approach and commitment to the Program; 
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2.1.2  The need for encouraging full participation of all stakeholders; and 


2.1.3  The need for developing the Program. 


 


2.2  Scope of cooperation 


Within the context of their respective mandates, objectives and procedures, the 
Parties shall cooperate in the following areas: 


2.2.1  Each Party pledges to cooperate in a spirit of mutual understanding and to 
develop a closer relationship of goodwill and partnership to increase 
opportunities in the Central Victorian Goldfields region. 
 


2.2.2  On the basis of close cooperation, each organisation will undertake work to 
facilitate the advancement of the Program and other agreed upon activities 
which may include, but are not limited to: 


a) Collaboration 
 
2.2.2.1  Collaboration on activities that strengthen or support the development 
of the Program 
 
2.2.2.2  Collaborative applications for grants and funding 
 
2.2.2.3  Collaborative consultation with Stakeholders and the Community to 
develop arrangements and build confidence in the Program 
 
2.2.2.4  Collaborative and joint delivery of the Program 
 
2.2.2.5  Organising workshops, seminars and meetings jointly 


 
b) Staff support 
 
2.2.2.6  Each Party’s CEO participating in the Program Steering Committee 
 
2.2.2.7  Nominate a responsible officer (Focal Point) for the entirety of the 
Program. 
 
2.2.2.8  Keep their Councillors, Executive and relevant officers informed and 
up-to-date on the Program. 
 
2.2.2.9  If allocated a position by the Program Steering Committee, an officer 
on the relevant Project Control Group and Advisory Bodies. 


 
c) Sharing of information 
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The Parties recognise that effective cooperation to deliver the Program 
depends on open, comprehensive and regular exchange of information. To 
the extent possible in accordance with their representative policies 
concerning disclosure of information, the Parties intend to make appropriate 
arrangements to: 


2.2.2.10  Share information with the other to help promote mutual 
understanding and progression of the Program, and each will respect the 
confidentiality and intellectual ownership of this information 
 
2.2.2.11  Exchanging analytical reports, publications, technical materials, 
expert services and other information related to the purposes of the Program. 


 
d) Publicity 
 
2.2.2.12  Each Party will respect the name and high reputation of the other 
and will consult with the other regarding publicity or external reference to this 
MOU. 


2.2.3  In addition to 2.1.1 and 2.1.2, the City of Ballarat and City of Greater Bendigo 
commits to:  


2.2.3.1  Providing additional staffing and other additional resources to 
coordinate and progress the Program. 
 
2.2.3.2  Keep Parties informed of media and other communications. 


2.2.4  In addition to 2.2.1, 2.2.2 and 2.2.3, the City of Ballarat commits to:  


2.2.4.1  Be the fundholder for the Program. 


 


2.3  Focus of Joint Activities 


With a view to achieving the purposes of the MOU, the Parties intend to: 


2.3.1  Establish a Program Steering Committee 
2.3.2  Undertake meaningful engagement with stakeholders and local communities 


across the region 
2.3.3  Develop an initial draft World Heritage Bid, National Heritage Bid and 


Management Plan 
2.3.4  Agree on program delivery (post the Program) 
2.3.5  The above-mentioned areas may be amended from time to time with mutual 


written consent of the Parties. 
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3  Reciprocal invitations 


The Parties recognize that appropriate representation is important to emphasize their 
common interests, purposes and intentions in substantive terms. The Parties 
therefore intend to invite each other, where appropriate, to meetings, conferences, 
seminars and workshops relevant to cooperation in the priority areas set out in this 
MOU. 


 


4  Focal Point: Responsible Officer 


The Parties will endeavour to ensure that: 


4.1.1  Their respective appropriate Responsible Officer will be responsible for the 
implementation of cooperation activities listed within their areas of 
responsibility activities under this MOU 


4.1.2  Their respective appropriate Responsible Officer will provide brief reports as 
necessary to their respective organisations on the status of implementation of 
all cooperation activities listed within their areas of responsibility under this 
MOU. 


For purposes of coordination and administration of this MOU, the Parties designate 
their respective Responsible Officer as follows: 


For Ararat Rural City 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 
 


For Campaspe Shire 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 
 


For Central Goldfields Shire 
 
Joel CHADWICK 
Manager Tourism Events Culture, Community 
Wellbeing 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: joelc@cgoldshire.vic.gov.au 
 


For City of Ballarat 
 
Susan FAYAD 
Coordinator Heritage and Cultural Landscapes 
City of Ballarat 
PO Box 655 
Ballarat Victoria 3350 
Tel: 03 5320 5677 
Mob:  
Email: susanfayad@ballarat.vic.gov.au 


For City of Greater Bendigo 
 
Trevor BUDGE 
Manager Regional Sustainable Development 
Tel: 03 5434 6288 
Mob: 0488 438 569 
Email: t.budge@Bendigo.vic.gov.au 


For Golden Plains Shire 
 
Helena Charles 
Senior Economic Development Officer 
Tel: 03 5220 7102 
Mob: 0427 600 889 
Email: helena.charles@gplains.vic.gov.au 
 



mailto:susanfayad@ballarat.vic.gov.au

mailto:t.budge@Bendigo.vic.gov.au
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For Hepburn Shire 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 


 


For Loddon Shire 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 


 


For Macedon Ranges Shire 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 


 


For Moorabool Shire 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 
 


For Mount Alexander Shire 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 


 


For Northern Grampians Shire 
 
{name] 
[title] 
Tel: 
Mob: 
Email: 


 


For Pyrenees Shire 
 
Jane BOWKER 
EA to CEO and Councillors 
Tel: 1300 797 363 (reception) 
Mob: N/A 
Email: Jane.Bowker@pyrenees.vic.gov.au  


 


 



mailto:Jane.Bowker@pyrenees.vic.gov.au
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5  Acknowledgements and use of organisational 
emblems and logos 


The Parties recognize that their involvement in joint cooperation activities under this 
MOU will be publicised. Therefore, the Parties understand that: 


5.1.1  There will be public acknowledgment of the role and contribution of each Party 
to the Program in all public information related to such cooperation; 


5.1.2  Information related to activities under this MOU may be made available 
through customary channels according to the normal procedures and policies 
of each Party. Results derived from joint research projects shall be published 
with public acknowledgement of the role and contribution of each Party; and 


5.1.3  The use of emblems and/or logos of each Party in documentation related to 
activities under this MOU will be in accordance with the current policies of 
each Party concerning such usage. 


 


6  Dispute resolution
1
  


The following are the agreed procedures for preventing and/or settling disputes 
concerning this MOU: 


6.1.1  Without prejudice, all Parties will ensure that appropriate resources, financial or 
in-kind, are provided to carry out the agreed responsibilities. 


6.1.2  Where disagreement arises, the nominated representatives of each Party will 
make every effort to resolve the dispute. 


6.1.3  If a matter cannot be resolved, it will be referred to the CEO’s of each Party, 
who will determine a suitable dispute resolution procedure in accord with the 
relevant policies of each Party. 


 


                                                


1
 To be reviewed by Bendigo legal team before release 
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7  Period of arrangement 


7.1.1  This MOU shall be valid for an indefinite period that aligns with the Program 
timeframe. 


7.1.2  The MOU may be renegotiated at any time during the period of the 
arrangement. 


7.1.3  Any changes to the MOU must be documented with copies of the changes 
provided to all parties. 


 


8  Agreement between parties 


8.1.1  Nothing in this MOU shall be construed as creating any legal relationship 
between the parties; its provisions do not create rights, obligations or duties 
for either party. This MOU is a statement of intent to foster genuine and 
mutually beneficial cooperation. 


8.1.2  This MOU shall not prejudice any rights and obligations of either party in any 
international, national, state or local agreements or conventions. 


8.1.3  The organisation representatives responsible for this MOU are City of Ballarat 
(CEO) and City of Greater Bendigo (CEO), on behalf of all Parties. 
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9  Signatories 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned duly appointed representatives of 
the Parties have signed the present MOU concerning the Central Victorian 
Goldfields Region World Heritage Bid Program on the day and year first 
above written. 
 


 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
ARARAT RURAL CITY 
 
 
 
 


Dr Tim HARRISON 
CEO 


 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
CAMPASPE SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Jason RUSSELL 
CEO 


 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Lucy ROFFEY 
CEO 


 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
CITY OF BALLARAT 
 
 
 
 


Ms. Justine LINLEY 
CEO 


 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
CITY OF GREATER BENDIGO 
 
 
 
 


Mr. Craig NIEMANN 
CEO 


 
 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
GOLDEN PLAINS SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Eric BRASLIS 
CEO 
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FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
HEPBURN SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Evan KING 
CEO 


 
 
 


 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LODDON SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Phil PINYON 
CEO 


 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
MACEDON RANGES SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Margot Stork 
CEO 


 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
MOORABOOL SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Derek MADDEN 
CEO 


 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
MOUNT ALEXANDER SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Darren FUZZARD 
CEO 


 
 
 


 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
NORTHERN GRAMPIANS SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Michael BAILEY 
CEO 


 
 
 


FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
PYRENEES SHIRE 
 
 
 
 


Mr. Jim NOLAN 
CEO 


 
 
 


 








 


 


Minutes - Audit and Risk Committee Meeting  
Tuesday 27 August 2019 at 3:00pm in the Council Chambers 
 


Attendees 
 


Members: Mr Geoff Price (Chair) 
Mr Rod Poxon 
Ms Wendy Honeyman  


 Cr Damian Ferrari 
 Cr Ron Eason 
 


Officers: Mr Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
 Mr Douglas Gowans – Director Assets and Development Services 


Ms Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
 Ms Shana Johnny – Manager Finance 
 Ms April Ure – Acting Manager Governance, Risk and Compliance 
 Ms Jane Bowker – Executive Assistant to CEO and Councillors    
 


Guests: Mr Brad Ead – AFS & Associates 
 Ms Cassandra Gravenall – Crowe Australasia  
   
 


1. Apologies 
Nil 
 


2. Conflict of Interest Declarations 
Nil 
 


3. Confirmation of previous Minutes – Chair 
Meeting held 30 April 2019. (Appendix 3 – Minutes of meeting held on 30 April 2019) 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the minutes of the meeting held 30 April 2019, as tabled, be adopted. 


 
Moved:  Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd:  Mr Rod Poxon Carried 
 


4. Outstanding actions from previous minutes: 


Meeting Item Status 


MO37 – April 2019 Audit & Risk 
Committee Charter 
Review 


Changes requested incorporated; Charter adopted 
by Council; Circulated to Committee Members. 


Completed. 


5. Reports: 


5.1 Year End Financials (Crowe Australasia/Shana Johnny) 
Attached are the draft Pyrenees Shire Financials 2018/19 and the Pyrenees Shire Council Performance 
Statement 2018/19.  
 







Audit Committee Meeting 27 August 2019 


Page 2 of 7 


(Appendix 5.1a – Draft Pyrenees Shire Financials 2018/19) 
(Appendix 5.1b – Pyrenees Shire Council Performance Statement 2018/19 Template Spreadsheet) 
(Appendix 5.1c – Pyrenees Shire Council Performance Statement 2018/19) 
(Appendix 5.1d – Management letter and closing report) – not attached 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee: 


a) Adopts the draft Financial Report and Performance Statement in principal in their final form 
after any changes recommended or agreed to by the auditors have been made for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2019;  


b) Recommends that two Councillors and the Chief Executive Officer sign the Final Financial 
Report and Performance Statement in their final form after any changes recommended or 
agreed to by the auditors have been made for the year ended 30 June 2019; 


c) That the Principal Accounting Officer, Ms Shana Johnny, is authorised to make non-material 
changes to the Financial Report and Performance Statement that may arise as a result of the 
audit; and 


d) Receive the Draft Closing Report to the Audit & Risk Committee for the financial year ended 
30 June 2019 including the Draft Final Management Letter via email once completed. 


 
Moved: Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd: Mr Ron Poxon Carried 


6. Close meeting for in camera session with External and Internal Auditors. 
The Committee chose not to close and re-open the meeting for an in camera session with External and 
Internal Auditors. 
 
 


7. Reports (Continued) 


7.1 2019/20 Budget (Shana Johnny) 
Council has finalised the budget for 2019/20 which is aligned to the vision in the Council Plan 2017-
2021.  The draft version of the 2019/20 Budget was provided to the Audit & Risk Committee at their 
meeting on 30 April 2019 and the final budget document, adopted by Council on 25th June 2019, is 
now provided to Committee members for their information. 
 
The budget maintains infrastructure and delivers projects and services valued by the Community, 
within a capped rate increase of 2.5%, the maximum increase allowed by the Victorian State 
Government for 2019/20.  Council resolved in November 2018 not to apply for a rate cap increase for 
the 2019/20 financial year. 
 
Extensive public consultation was undertaken and submissions were considered by Council at a 
briefing session.  Submitters were invited to present their submissions in person to Council but none 
accepted that invitation. 
 
(Appendix 7.1 – Pyrenees Shire Council Budget 2019/20) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee receives the final Pyrenees Shire Council Budget 2019/20. 
 
Moved:  Cr Damian Ferrari 2nd: Mr Rod Poxon Carried 
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7.2 Internal Audit 2019-02- Audit Risk Committee Performance Self-Assessment 
(AFS – Brad Ead) 
Attached is a report following a survey distributed to members of the Pyrenees Shire Council’s Audit & 
Risk Committee to self-assess the Committee’s performance against the Committee’s Charter.  The 
overall average response score from Committee members on a scale of one to six was 5.23.  This was 
reported as being a positive result and a strong indication the Audit & Risk Committee is effectively 
fulfilling its role. 
 
Based on the highest scores in the survey, the areas of strength for the Committee were in the 
conduct of meetings, meeting attendance and participation, the robustness of discussions and in 
making recommendations to address control deficiencies.   
 
Based on the lowest scores in the survey, suggestions for improvement exist around the financial 
reporting and management information provided to the meetings.  Discussion points from the survey 
raised a request for full financial information, and reporting back to the Committee of 
recommendations being attended to. 
 
(Appendix 7.2 – Internal Audit Report 2019-02 Audit Risk Committee Performance Self-Assessment) 
 
Mr Geoff Price requested that a financial report to come to each Committee Meeting as a standing 
item 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee receives the AFS – Internal Audit Report 2019-02 Audit Risk 
Committee Performance Self-Assessment. 
 
Moved: Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd: Mr Ron Poxon Carried 


7.3 Internal Audit 2019-04 Risk Management Framework (AFS – Brad Ead) 
Attached is an internal audit report following a review to  confirm if an adequate risk management 
process, suitable to Pyrenees Shire Council needs is in place.  The review was conducted in June 2019.  
Findings identified seven areas of strength and six areas of risk – two rated as moderate and four 
rated as minor. 
 
(Appendix 7.3 – Internal Audit Report 2019-04 Risk Management Framework) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee receives the AFS – Internal Audit Report 2019-04 Risk Management 
Framework. 
 
Moved:  Mr Rod Poxon     2nd: Cr Ron Eason Carried 


7.4 Internal Audit 2019-03 Past Issues Review (AFS – Brad Ead) 
Attached is a report on the 2019 review of outstanding issues from previous internal audits.   In this 
review Council officers requested that 14 items be closed as deemed complete.  12 items were 
confirmed by internal auditors as completed.  Two items were deemed complete subject to Audit & 
Risk Committee Approval. 
 
(Appendix 7.4 – Report 2019-03 Past Issues Review) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee:  


 Receives the AFS – Internal Audit Report 2019-03 Past Issues Review; 


 Notes the 12 items confirmed by internal auditors as completed; and 
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 Confirms the two items relating to audits prior to AFS & Associates appointment as being 
complete. 
 


Moved:  Ms Wendy Honeyman  2nd: Mr Rod Poxon Carried 


7.5 Outstanding issues report (Kathy Bramwell) 
Attached is a report providing the issues arising from internal audits that are currently outstanding.  


 
 (Appendix 7.5 – Outstanding Issues Report August 2019) 


  
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit & Risk Committee receives the outstanding issues report as at August 2019. 
   


Moved:  Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd: Cr Ron Eason Carried 


7.6 AFS Internal Audit Program Status Update (AFS – Brad Ead) 
Attached is a status update of the Pyrenees Internal Audit Program as at August 2019.    
 
(Appendix 7.6 – Pyrenees IA Program Status Update) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee approves the proposed changes to the 2019-2020 internal audit 
program. 
 
Moved: Cr Damian Ferrari   2nd: Ms Wendy Honeyman Carried 


7.7 Governance, Risk & Compliance Report (April Ure) 
Attached is a report providing an update on governance, risk, compliance and related activities. 


 
 (Appendix 7.7a – Governance, Risk & Compliance Report) 
 (Appendix 7.7b – JMAPP Risk Maturity Appraisal Report) 


  
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee receives the Governance, Risk & Compliance Report.   
   


Moved:  Cr Ron Eason 2nd: Mr Rod Poxon Carried 


7.8 Annual leave balances (Kathy Bramwell) 
Attached is a report showing Council’s progress on reducing staff annual leave balances.  Excessive 
leave balances exposes Council to financial risk in the event of staff resignations and efforts have been 
made over recent years to mitigate that risk by developing leave plans and reducing leave balances to 
an acceptable threshold.  Fortnightly leave balance reports are provided to the Senior Leadership 
Team to enable ongoing monitoring.  The attached graphical report shows the reducing trend of leave 
balances achieved through ongoing management action. 
 


 (Appendix 7.8 – Graph Report on annual leave balances) 
 


 RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit Committee receives the report on annual leave balances.   


   
Moved:  Cr Damian Ferrari 2nd:  Ms Wendy Honeyman Carried 


 







Audit Committee Meeting 27 August 2019 


Page 5 of 7 


7.9 VAGO Audit - Fraud and Corruption Control (Kathy Bramwell) 
VAGO undertook an audit into fraud and corruption control within Local Government in early 2019, 
subsequently tabling a report in Parliament in June 2019.  The objective of the audit was to determine 
whether local councils’ fraud and corruption controls are well designed and operating as intended, 
and primarily focused on expenditure and processes involving senior council staff and councillors.   
 
The audit did not find evidence of fraud or corruption within the audited councils, but did make 
recommendations for all councils to review their fraud and corruption management processes.  
Subsequent to the report publication, the Minister for Local Government wrote to all Victorian 
councils requesting that they review policies, procedures and operations and report back to him on 
review progress and actions taken by 1 September 2019. 
 
Officers have commenced a review of Council policies, procedures and operations and an action plan 
has been developed to enable a timely response to be provided to the Minister.  A report summarising 
the audit findings and detailing Council’s review action plan is attached for information. 
 


 (Appendix 7.9a – Summary of Audit Finds and Pyrenees Shire Council Fraud & Corruption Control 
Action Plan July 2019) 


 (Appendix 7.9b – Letter from Minister for Local Government) 
  
 A copy of the full VAGO report was circulated to Audit & Risk Committee Members under separate 


cover. 
  


 RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit Committee receives the report and action plan relating to fraud and corruption control.   


   
Moved:  Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd:  Mr Rod Poxon Carried 


7.10 Compliance update (Kathy Bramwell) 


Fraud:  There have been no identified instances of fraud since the last meeting of 
the Audit & Risk Committee. 


Protected disclosures: Council has not received a protected disclosure since the last meeting of the 
Audit & Risk Committee. 


 
 RECOMMENDATION: 


That the Audit Committee notes the information provided in the Compliance Update. 
   


Moved:  Cr Ron Eason 2nd:  Cr Damian Ferrari Carried 


7.11 AFS Recent Reports and Publications of Interest to Councils (Brad Ead] 
Attached is a report from AFS & Associates providing their quarterly update to councils on recent 
reports and publications of interest. 
 


 (Appendix 7.11– AFS & Associates Recent Reports and Publications of Interest to Councils) 
  


 RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee notes the information in the AFS & Associates Recent Reports and 
Publications of Interest to councils. 


   
Moved: Mr Rod Poxon   2nd: Cr Ron Eason Carried 
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7.12 VAGO Performance Audit Program – August 2019 update (Kathy Bramwell] 
Attached is an update from the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office on performance audits in progress 
or planned, as at August 2019. 
 


 (Appendix 7.12– VAGO Performance Audit – August 2019 Update) 
  


 RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit & Risk Committee receives the VAGO Performance Audit – August 2019 Update. 


   
Moved: Ms Wendy Honeyman 2nd: Cr Damian Ferrari Carried 


7.13 CEO’s Report – Current Issues for Pyrenees Shire Council (Jim Nolan) 
Attached is the CEO’s report – Current issues for Pyrenees Shire Council. 


 (Appendix 7.13 – CEO’s report) 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Audit and Risk Committee receives the CEO’s report. 


 
Moved: Cr Damian Ferrari 2nd: Ms Wendy Honeyman Carried 


8. General Business – All 
 Cr Ferrari asked for some clarification around Customer Action Request System (CARS) requests and 


whether the traffic light system will be implemented.  He noted that even though CARS doesn’t sit 
with this Committee there are associated risk elements that do.   


 


Ms Bramwell responded the Council staff are currently developing a new CARS system and will take 
Cr Ferrari’s suggestion into consideration. 


 


 Cr Ferrari also asked about whether employee exit interviews are being conducted.  In addition he 
asked what occurs with the information collected, is it collated for workplace issues, are trends 
identified which may be harmful to employees such as unacceptable behaviour by senior staff cause 
workplace harm?  He noted it is very important to understand staff and if issues arise they need to 
be addressed early.   


 


Ms Ure responded that the Manager People & Culture Norman Prueter is currently reviewing the 
Exit Interview process.  Whilst the review is underway an informal departure interview is conducted 
by Mr Prueter with the employee and he uses the feedback provided in his guidance / advice to 
supervisors.  Mr Prueter sometimes includes it in some of his feedback to SLT in the strategic SLT 
meetings.  Overall he has a good understanding of why people leave and uses the knowledge in his 
day to day work.  
 


Cr Ferrari commented that as a Councillor he would like to know some elements of the reasons why 
staff are leaving.   
 


Ms Ure noted that she will take Cr Ferrari’s comments on board.   
 


Mr Nolan added that Mr Prueter is a highly respected staff member and quite a few staff members 
approach him for guidance which is encouraged if staff have an issue.  The Senior Leadership Team 
promote early intervention and a ‘speak up’ culture.  Mr Prueter provides information back to the 
Senior Leadership Team about issues brought to his attention.  Mr Nolan commented that employee 
satisfaction sits with the CEO and is mindful of the role of a CEO and role of Councillors in this space.  
In the past some disgruntled staff have left and said some negative things about Council in the 
community which can’t be prevented.  Whilst staff work for Council this is not allowed.  In addition 
some information is confidential and Council staff may not be at liberty to disclose reasons behind 
staff members leaving.   
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 Mr Price asked what the staff turnover figures are.   
 


Mr Nolan responded that at present it is 16%.  Last year was about the same and the year before 
was higher.   
 


Cr Eason commented that there is a defining line between what is operational and what is a 
Councillor function.  He added that he believes this is an area that can cross over and he would like it 
to be further discussed as staffing matters can be conducted with confidentiality.   


9. Next Meeting 3.00pm Tuesday, 26th November 2019 (MO39) 
 


 
Meeting Closed at 4.45pm 
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1.	
  Introduction	
  


1.1	
  Municipal	
  Context	
  
 
The Pyrenees Shire is an agricultural area of 3500 square kilometres within the 
Grampians-Pyrenees Region, about 2 hours north-west of Melbourne in Victoria. The 
region is noted for its outstanding natural attractions, the Grampians National Park, 
Mount Cole and inland lakes such as Lake Bolac and Lake Fyans. Dotted with 
vineyards and wineries, the region also counts sheep, wool and grain production and 
manufacturing amongst its industries. 
 
Located in close proximity to larger regional centres, such as Ballarat, Ararat, Stawell 
and Maryborough, the Beaufort Township along the Western Highway is the largest 
community within the Pyrenees Shire with just over 1,400 residents. 


1.2	
  Beaufort	
  Township	
  &	
  History	
  
 
Located mid-way between Ballarat and Ararat, Beaufort is situated in a rich pastoral 
district, noted for its merino wool production. Gold was first discovered around 
Beaufort in 1852, which saw the town's population rise dramatically, however it was 
short-lived with most of the alluvial gold gone around 10 years later. 
 
The commercial centre of Beaufort stretches along a section of Neill Street and 
Lawrence Street, with old-style architecture blended with modern buildings that 
include a supermarket. A number of historical buildings date back to the gold rush 
days including the post office, the railway station in Pratt Street and several 
churches. At the western end of Beaufort's commercial centre on Neill Street is an 
octagonal band rotunda, which was built in 1903 and is crowned with an ornate 
clock. On the other side of the road along Livingstone Street is the attractive 
triangular-shaped Memorial Park, which includes a war memorial, and surrounding 
rose gardens. 
 
Camp Hill Reserve is located off King Street on the north side of Beaufort. 
Encompassing areas of thick native forest along a ridge overlooking the town centre, 
it features picnic areas, a BBQ shelter and a lookout area, which offers scenic views 
across the countryside and over Beaufort. Beaufort Lake is located on the southern 
edge of town and is adjacent to the Goldfields Recreation Reserve, which was first 
opened as a park in 1884. Access to the lake is either via the main entrance on 
Lawrence Street / Skipton Road and past the sports oval, or along Lake Road which 
follows the bushy eastern shoreline of the lake. There are walking tracks around the 
lake, picnic areas, a jetty and a caravan park, which overlooks the water. 
 
Lake Goldsmith stretches along the western side of Skipton Road between 10 and 
15 kilometres south of Beaufort. A wildlife reserve surrounds part of the lake and 
includes native grasslands and trees, providing a habitat for duck and bird life. 


1.3	
  Demographic	
  Snapshot	
  
 
Beaufort Township has a population of just over 1,400 residents. Of those residents 
90.97% of them were born in Australia. The median age of residents in Beaufort is 51 
years of age, with the largest age group being the 60+ years (39.47%) followed 
closely by the 40-59 years age group (28.09%). A growing age group is the 0-12 
years (14.22%) considerably higher than the 13-19 years age group (7.54%). 
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79.70% of residents living in Beaufort occupy separate properties, of which 53.47% 
are owned outright, 24.26% are owned with a mortgage and 17.49% of properties 
are rented. 
 
Beaufort’s median total weekly income is $386.00 (against a state median total 
weekly income of $561.00) and it’s median total household income is $687.00 
(against a state median total income of $1,216.00). 
 
*Note all demographic statistics are accurate as of 2011 National Census  


1.4	
  Strategic	
  Context	
  
 
The Pyrenees Shire has a number of key strategic documents that support and guide 
the development of the Beaufort Walkability Plan. This plan responds to both broader 
objectives and specific recommendations put forward by the following documents: 
 


• Pyrenees Shire Council Plan 2013-2017 
• Pyrenees Shire Council Recreation Strategy 2010-2020 
• Pyrenees Shire Access and Inclusion Plan 2010-2013 
• Healthy and Well Pyrenees, Our Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan 


2013-2017 
• Pyrenees Shire Positive Ageing Strategy 2010 


 
There are also more specific council documents such as the ‘Draft Footpath Policy’ 
and ‘Asset Management Plan Part E – Footpaths’ that have also informed the 
development of the Beaufort Walkability Plan. 
 
As well as this, each township in the Pyrenees Shire has a Community Action Plan 
(or CAP Plan) and the Beaufort Walkability Plan sports the objective and actions of 
the Beaufort Community Action Plan. 
 
In the broader state, national and international planning context the Beaufort 
Walkability plan also responds to the following documents: 
 


• Gearing Up for Active and Sustainable Communities; National Cycling 
Strategy 2011-2016  


• Victoria’s Cycling into the Future 2013-2023 (Victorian Department of 
Transport) 


• Victoria’s Trails Strategy 2014-2024 (Victorian Department of Tourism) 
• Australian Walking Track Grading System (Victorian Department of 


Sustainability and Environment)  
• International Mountain Bicycling Association Trail Difficultly Rating Systems 


(IMBA)  


1.5	
  Other	
  Strategies	
  and	
  Case	
  Studies	
  Examined	
  


A number of other council strategies and case studies around walking and cycling 
were reviewed to guide and inform this plan including: 


• City of Wodonga ‘Pathways’ Booklet 
• City of Mildura Tracks & Trails Strategy’ 2012 
• City of Greater Bendigo ‘Cycling & Walking Strategy 2006 
• City of Casey ‘Paths and Trails Strategy 2012 
• ConnectEast; Eastlink Trail  
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• Department of Transport Ararat Town Centre Case Study; Prioritising Cyclists 
and Pedestrians 2012 
 
 


2.	
  Scope	
  of	
  Plan	
  
 
The Beaufort Walkability Plan aims to improve the health and wellbeing of local 
Beaufort residents by: 
 


• Analysing the current provision of paths, trails and connections  
• Identifying the gaps in current provision and opportunities for future 


provision 
• Mapping the gaps in current provision and opportunities for future provision 
• Documenting best practice standards for paths and trails 
• Recommending actions, standards and priorities to improve current 


infrastructure for future walking and recreation 


3.	
  Objectives	
  
 
A series of objectives have been developed to guide the development of the Beaufort 
Walkability Plan: 
 


• To increase participation in physical activity through the development, 
maintenance and management of quality and better integrated infrastructure 
suitable for walking, cycling and where appropriate equestrian use 
 


• To enable walking and cycling to be a legitimate form of transport for short 
trips within the township for people of people of all ages and mobility 


 
• To make the Beaufort Town Centre more pedestrian and bicycle friendly and 


make walking and cycling a safer form of transport for residents and visitors  
 


• To connect places that people want to get to including; the central shopping 
area, train station, schools, pool, skate park and playgrounds, Lake Beaufort 
and Recreation Reserve / Caravan Park and Camp Hill 


 
• To identify and improve existing path and trail facilities 


 
• To extend existing path and trail facilities to provide a comprehensive and 


connected network of circuits for recreation and functional use 
 


• To celebrate Beaufort’s history and artistic culture, by making local sites and 
attractions easily accessible to residents and visitors 


 
• To complement Beaufort’s local character 
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3.	
  Markets	
  for	
  Walking	
  and	
  Cycling	
  in	
  Beaufort	
  
 
Walking and cycling are two of the most popular forms of physical activity in Victoria 
according to the Australian Sports Commission (Participation in Exercise, Recreation 
and Sport Annual Report 2010; State & Territory Tables for Victoria’). 
 
Research undertaken in 2010 for the Pyrenees Shire Recreation Strategy identified 
that the development of facilities for walking and cycling as a future priority for the 
Shire. ‘The development of such facilities is consistent with the trend towards 
increased participation in unstructured, casual activities rather than structured club 
and / or organisation based activities.’ 
 
In community consultation undertaken for the Recreation Strategy, surveyed 
participants indicated that walking was the third most popular activity they currently 
participate in and the second most popular activity in the 45+ years age group and 
with females. While this is not consistent with the state average, there is an argument 
that with the majority of the population in the 45+ years age group this is an important 
recreational activity for the future. 
 
There are also informal walking groups and formal walking projects that have been 
provided in the past as part of health programs or continue to be provided, 
particularly for older residents. 
 
Many survey participants also indicated that the main constraints for them 
participating in recreation activities are work commitments, health problems, not 
interested, family commitments or no facilities close by. When asked what they felt 
would increase their participation they indicated better access to local facilities and 
more information in their top three opportunities. 
 
Other consultation conducted as part of the Recreation Strategy showed support for 
the promotion of existing trails and walks through Beaufort and Camp Hill and the 
preservation of the existing status of State Forests with the Shire and that 
recreational activities such as mountain bike riding and horse riding are highly valued 
by local residents 
 
Further consultation with neighbouring municipalities indicated their interest in 
developing cycling loops and trails between towns in the region for both residents 
and visitors.  
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4.	
  Definitions	
  of	
  Paths,	
  Trails	
  &	
  Connections	
  


4.1	
  Paths	
  
 
In this plan the term ‘paths’ refers to all surfaces specifically designed for both 
occupational and recreational pedestrian walking, cycling and access around the 
township and through open space areas within the township. A path is usually an 
independent structure constructed of concrete, asphalt, brick, stone, compacted 
gravel or loose toppings, such as a ‘street footpath’. 
 


 
 


4.2	
  Trails	
  and	
  Tracks	
  
 
In this plan the terms ‘trails and tracks’ can be used interchangeably but refer to all 
surfaces designed for recreational walking and activities such as cycling, mountain 
biking and horse riding. These trails or tracks may exist within the township, but are 
more than likely to be found in bushland or environmental areas beyond the central 
township. To be more specific a trail is usually a formalised area constructed of loose 
gravel or dirt and may often be shared with vehicles, such as in the case of ‘fire 
access’ and potentially exists as part of an organised circuit for recreation activity. 
Whereas a ‘track’ is usually found in bushland or environmental areas, isn’t 
formalised and has usually come about as a result of recreational activities  
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4.3	
  Connections	
  
 
In this plan the term ‘connections’ refer to all intrinsically visual or logical 
relationships between facilities or sites of interest within the township and beyond, 
that manifest themselves as physical ‘desire lines’. They may not necessarily be 
demarcated as a formal structure or space, but will often appear as worn man-made 
paths or tracks that indicate physical movement between them. Gaps between 
formalised paths will often appear this way, as people make the connection as a 
matter of course. 
 


 
 


4.4	
  Functional	
  Walking	
  and	
  Cycling	
  
 
In this plan the term ‘functional walking and cycling’ refers to use of walking and 
cycling as a form of local transport to take the pedestrians and cyclists from point A 
to point B etc. for a purpose such as shopping, visiting the library or attending school. 
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4.5	
  Recreational	
  Walking	
  and	
  Cycling	
  
 
In this plan the term ‘recreational walking and cycling’ refers to the use of walking 
and cycling for leisure and health benefits, usually taking place during a pedestrian or 
cyclist’s free time, not forming part of their daily functions. It could however be 
argued that ‘dog walking’ falls across both categories of walking. Forms of 
recreational walking and cycling usually include; fitness classes, sports, hiking, 
competitive cycling rides, leisurely cycling on trails and bushwalking. 
 


 
 


4.6	
  Network,	
  Routes	
  and	
  Circuits	
  
 
In this plan the term ‘network’ refers to the overall collection of interconnecting 
walking and cycling routes and circuits. The purpose of developing a network is to 
ensure that connections are made and formalised to enable efficient movement 
around the township on foot or by bicycle. 
 
The term ‘route’ refers to a continuous pathway or trail from one location to another, 
this is usually from a significant facility or place of interest to another significant 
facility or place of interest. An example of a route would be from the Railway Station 
to the Library / Information Centre. 
 
The term ‘circuit’ refers to a continuous loop of pathway or trail, where the pedestrian 
or cyclist ends their journey in the same location as they began. Circuits are 
particularly important for recreational walking and cycling as it enables pedestrians or 
cyclists to know the exact distance and time of their walk or ride. An example of a 
circuit would be the walk around Lake Beaufort.  
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5.	
  Universal	
  Design	
  Principles	
  
 
Good accessible design benefits all members of the community, those with 
disabilities, pregnant and nursing carers, carers with prams, and the elderly.  
 
There are seven Universal Design principles that Council will endeavour to consider 
to ensure that open space is designed for ‘everyone’ to use: 


1. Equitable use  
2. Flexibility in use  
3. Simple and intuitive use 
4. Perceptible information 
5. Tolerance for error  
6. Low physical effort  
7. Size and space for approach and use  


 
It is recognised however that certain recommendations of this plan, will not be able to 
be universally accessed, as the intent is to provide degrees of challenging activity for 
all levels of ability. 
 
The intention of this plan is however to ensure that a considered range of graded 
opportunities for walking and cycling are provided into the future and that information 
is readily available to the community to facilitate choice and use. 
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6.	
  Consultation	
  


6.1	
  Council	
  
 
An initial meeting with the Pyrenees Shire CEO, Council Officers and further 
interviews with additional Council Officers took place on Friday 17th April at the 
Pyrenees Shire Council. Council Officers and Managers representing Infrastructure, 
Parks and Gardens, Community and Family Services were present at the meeting 
and representatives from GIS and Asset Management were also interviewed. 
 
Council officers reviewed the Preliminary Draft Walkability Plan on Monday 15th June 
and feedback was received and the plan subsequently reviewed and council officers 
met again to further review and finalise the plan on Wednesday 23rd September 
2015. 


6.2	
  Community	
  Consultation	
  
 
Community Reference Group Meeting #1 – Wednesday 22nd April 2015 
 
A consultation meeting was held with members of the Beaufort Community at 
Beaufort Secondary College. Community members representing local schools, 
business, CFA, cyclists, lunchtime walkers and the Beaufort CAP Group participated 
in a workshop to discuss issues and opportunities for the Beaufort Walkability Plan 
and is summarised as follows: 
 


• More trees to line pathways / these should be appropriately planted to 
consider the local character of the township 


• Seating to support paths 
• Information points needed 
• Need to consider fire awareness on any external trails (outside town centre) 
• Consider links to Avenue of Honour / Cemetery & other Destinations 
• Potential to use former Primary School Site to be examined 
• Consider link from town to Lake Beaufort needed 
• Further maintenance around paths and fitness stations 
• Consider links to unused road reserve to N/E of township 
• Consider links to Camp Hill 
• Consider links to Golf Links Lane (off Gregory Street)  
• Possible links to Yam Holes area – but issues with forming mining use / sink 


holes need to be examined 
• Look into a way to tell about Gold Rush History 
• Consider ways to draw visitors into Beaufort – planning for future by-pass 
• Consider opportunity to grade walks 
• Highway / Lawrence Street act as barriers presently because of high volumes 


of traffic, in particular trucks 
• Consider current opportunities to walk to school, as there is support for this is 


town 
• Look at current location of school crossings 


 
 
Community Reference Group Meeting #2 – Wednesday 19th August 2015 
 
A further consultation meeting was held with members of the Beaufort Community at 
Beaufort Secondary College to review the Draft Walkability Plan. Submissions were 
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also called from those members unable to attend the meeting. The following 
comments / feedback was received during this meeting: 
 


• Seats and bubblers been considered? 
• Walking opportunities for the future along Neill Street / the Highway have 


these been considered? 
• Shared path to school – concern about bikes and walkers / prams etc 


together 
• Cycling need to consider how many kids it effects? 
• Connections to Recreation Reserve are important 
• Information available 
• Renewal question – needs to be considered with any proposals, is there 


money to maintain 
• Issues with maintenance of existing paths (overgrown / trees to be cleared) – 


DELP (DEPI) land and difficulties getting action. 3.7km of path is owned / 
managed by DELP 


• Traffic options for Lawrence Street / Entry /exit point to schools and Rec 
Reserve needs to be considered as a high priority – unclear as to designated 
lanes – very difficult / dangerous during school drop-off / pick-up and during 
sports practice times  


• Possible funding to come through – bus access from cemetery 
• Need to consult with young people – Heather to organise meeting with 


Student SRC soon 
• Victoria Walks are recording information to publish online about walks – this 


information should be fed through to them once finalised 
• Access to public toilets important on north side of town. Nothing at Camp Hill 


Picnic Ground and no access to toilets at railway station anymore – 
particularly if encouraging people to walk in this area 


• Toilets at Angels – not clean 
• A week to review and come back with any further comments 


 
Two additional submissions were also received by email and raised the following 
points: 
 


• Concern about the demographics; 40% of residents are 60+. the 40-59 group 
(28%) work. Would Pyrenees residents benefit from a campaign publicising 
the benefits of exercise using the walk/cycle track network? (From 
observation this 40% appear sedentary) 


• Support the idea of a walking track town-lake using the median strip in 
Lawrence St/Park Rd 


• Like the idea of a Heritage Walk - perhaps transient visitors would be 
interested 


• There is a dis-used Government Road (easement) that links Stockyard Hill 
Road to Skipton Road. Off Stockyard Hill Road near the eastern end of Golf 
Links Lane and enters Skipton Road quite near the lake walking track 


• Cycling Skipton Road to Lake Goldsmith is neither safe nor pleasant. No 
shoulder. (from experience) 


• Distances listed on larger scale maps – discrepancies need to review 
• The term ‘not-constructed’ for paths, is this really the case, as materials are 


brought it and machinery used? 
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Workshop with Beaufort Secondary College Students (SRC) – Thursday 27th 
August 2015 
 
A workshop was held with 11 students (Years 7-12) who were part of the Student 
Representative Council and 2 teachers at Beaufort Secondary College. The students 
were a mix of those living in town to those living in outlying areas. This had a 
significant effect on how much walking or cycling the students did locally or to school, 
as those students from outlying areas usually came to school by bus. The following 
points represent discussion feedback from the session: 
 


• Walking to school (3 students) 
• Primary School ride bikes mostly – have Bike Ed Program 
• Majority of SC catch bus to school 
• SC PE Classes – Lake Run 
• Young people outside of school / sports programs don’t use recreation 


reserve – reason is that it is seen as unsafe as there are no footpaths 
• Existing School Crossing; including further zebra crossing on service road, 


continue path from Community Church / ELC 
• Speed signage along Lawrence Street needs to be addressed, has not been 


adjusted since Primary School moved and changes up and down in zones 
that are not relevant 


• Cycling for recreation – students felt that most would do this on walking paths 
• Mullock Heap near Lake Circuit path has been converted for BMX use – 


different experience to using Skatebowl at Apex Park. Not a huge number of 
BMX riders, but a few 


• Highway is dangerous for walking / crossing 
• Camp Hill – issues with drains that collapse and potholes (uneven ground on 


paths). Paths not stable 
• What would you like to see on walking tracks? Information about history 


(Steam Rally) / Fitness Station (existing at Lake is good) / Changing art good 
/ Not support in town for graffiti art projects, but maybe for others (like window 
space near public toilets, people put work up and others stop to look at the 
work). Giant chalkboard – one suggestion (need to consider access to 
chalk??) 


• Possibly also consider bike hire in town from central location 
 
The students also completed a short individual survey as part of their consultation 
and the following represents the results of that survey: 
 
Q1 Do you like to walk / cycle or both: 


• Walk only – 4 
• Cycle only – 0 
• Both – 6 
• None – 1 


 
Q2 Why do / don’t you like walking / cycling? 


• Relaxing, enjoyable and easy to do 
• Live out of town 
• Fun and gives me something to do 
• I live too far away 
• Keep me fit 
• Prefer to walk, it is easier to walk 
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• I like walking because I live in town and it gets me places. Its better than 
driving everywhere 


• Keeps me active and allows for relaxing the mind 
• Hate cycling / like walking because its relaxing 
• Good and relaxing way to stay fit 
• Keep fit 


 
Q3A Do you own a bike? 


• Yes – 8 
• No – 3 


Q3B Do you ride to school? 
• Yes – 0 
• No – 11 


Q3C Why? 
• Come to school by bus 
• Live out of town 
• Live far from school 
• Easier to walk 
• Because I don’t like bikes and I don’t own one 
• Just don’t feel like it sometimes 


 
Q4A Do you walk to school? 


• Yes – 3 
• No – 8 


Q4B Why? 
• Too far way 
• Live out of town 
• Live 2 minutes away 
• When my parents work in town I sometimes walk from school to their 


business 
• You are outside and have time to yourself 


 
Q5 What would encourage you to walk more? 


• More time – 4 
• Better footpaths – 9 
• Safer road crossings – 8 


 
Q6 What would encourage you to cycle more? 


• More time – 3 
• Better bike paths – 8 
• Safer road crossings – 7 


 
The students were given a map to mark where they liked to walk in Beaufort and 
most popular were: 


• Lake Circuit 
• Lake Road (around Cemetery) 
• Lawrence Street 
• South Street/ Rifle Butts Road / Golf Course Lane 
• Camp Hill  
• Apex Park 
• Leichardt Street 
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7.	
  Mapping	
  &	
  Analysis	
  of	
  Current	
  Provision	
  


7.1	
  Overview	
  
 
A general impression of the Beaufort Township’s walking and cycling connections is 
that whilst pathway infrastructure is in place, it is mostly in the form of formalised 
pedestrian footpaths in the central township area and fire-tracks / roads in the outer 
areas of the township. There are no on-road bicycle lanes. 
 
In many cases with footpaths, there are gaps along streets where a footpath may 
start but isn’t completed or footpaths along only one side of the street, but not the 
other.  
 
A critical observation is that the northern township is quite divided from the south by 
the Western Highway (Neill Street) that runs east to west through the centre of town, 
with traffic light crossings only a one intersection and only one further accessible 
traffic refuge to enable safe crossing for pedestrians which is in the centre of the 
main shopping strip. This means that easy pedestrian connections between the 
town’s main services and attractions is not as straightforward as it should be. 
 
Skipton Road (Lawrence Street) is the main route to access the Beaufort 
Kindergarten, Primary School, Secondary College, Recreation Reserve / Lake 
Beaufort and Caravan Park, Golf Course and Croquet Club. This also has a 
substantial issue with traffic (in particular trucks) and has only one safe pedestrian 
crossing located adjacent to the Beaufort Kindergarten. The main footpath from town 
only continues south from Neill Street as far as the Community Church, with no 
formal path connection to the Schools and Lake precinct. 
 
There are no formalised connections (bridges / crossings or paths) between Beaufort 
Railway Stations platforms or back to the centre of town or its closest natural 
attraction, Camp Hill. This may be as a result of the reduction in train commuters 
over the years, however it means that large distances have to be covered either east 
or west to access footpaths alongside road crossings across the train line and there 
is no formalised path from the station to do so. 
 
Much of the creek corridor land is vacant and undeveloped due in part to flood 
mitigation; there is also a large median strip between Lawrence Street and the 
Service Lane, which could be investigated for further pathway connections. 
 
New outer residential development, namely Correa Park on the western fringe of the 
township has adequate footpaths within the estate, however the development of 
better connections back into the town centre should be considered along the 
Western Highway (Neill Street) to encourage greater functional walking and cycling. 
 
Growth of an ageing population in town needs to be seriously considered, particularly 
in regards to the growth of health support services to meet the needs of older 
residents and provide opportunities for walking for health and connections between 
facilities such as the croquet / golf club, pool, community centre and Men’s Shed 
 
Youth are an underrepresented group in town and the opportunity exists to provide 
better connections not only between the town and schools, but also the Youth Centre 
(Haverlock Street), Recreation Reserve, Skate Park and Beaufort Pool to encourage 
better participation in recreation. 
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Street, information and wayfinding signage is generally poor, non-existent or out of 
date which makes navigating the town extremely difficult, particularly for visitors. As 
an example the street signs for both former locations of the croquet club and primary 
school are still in place. Areas such as the Camp Hill Picnic Ground are difficult to 
find from the centre of the township and existing signage in the picnic ground is old 
and degraded as are the picnic ground facilities. 
 
The central community noticeboard adjacent to the bandstand (Haverlock Street) is 
useful in terms of providing information on local walks and a map, but this could be 
further extended and improved in other key community / recreation locations such as 
the Library / Beaufort Railway Station / Lake Beaufort & the Recreation Reserve, and 
possibly also at the Beaufort Cemetery or Apex Park (Beggs Street). 
 


7.2	
  Analysis	
  Mapping	
  	
  
 
The collection of existing data / information for this plan has occurred in two ways.  
 
Firstly there has been a process of strategic information collected on the general 
township structure and layout and pedestrian / cycling movement within that layout. 
This information has been undertaken by observation and comes together with 
further information from both meetings with Council and the Community Reference 
Group. 
 
Secondly there has been a process of specific data capture undertaken that complies 
with Council’s asset management process. This has been recording specific 
information on existing assets using a mobile tablet that correlates with GPS 
locations that can be inputted into council’s GIS and Asset Management Systems. 
Refer Appendix D for specific data collected on existing pathways. 
 


7.2.1	
  Key	
  Connections	
  
 
The identified key connections between facilities and attractions around the Beaufort 
Township are as follows: 
 


• Railway Station to Camp Hill Picnic Ground & Lookout 
• Railway Station (north / south platforms connecting Men’s Shed with 


township) 
• Railway Station to Apex Park 
• Railway Station to War Memorial Park / Library & Information Centre 
• Apex Park to Beaufort Swimming Pool (including proposed future crossover 


at Beggs Street and through the old Primary School site) 
• Apex Park to Library / Information Centre 
• North / South Crossing of Western Highway (Neill Street) in central shopping 


precinct at 2 existing crossover locations; traffic lights at Lawrence Street and 
central refuge crossing  


• North / South Crossing of Western Highway (Neill Street) in the central 
shopping precinct at 2 proposed future crossover locations; between the 
Information Centre and Bandstand / Community Notice Board and at the 
south-west corner of Livingstone Street and the bus shelter in front of the 
Service Station 


• Bandstand to Wotherspoon Park & Playground (including Memorial Hospital, 
Ambulance Service & Mechanics Institute) 
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• Wotherspoon Park to Cemetery (Yam Holes Area) 
• Wotherspoon Park to Beaufort Swimming Pool 
• Wotherspoon Park to Beaufort Kindergarten & Schools 
• Wotherspoon Park to Beaufort Lake, Goldfields Recreation Reserve & 


Caravan Park 
• Beaufort Swimming Pool to Beaufort Kindergarten & Schools 
• Beaufort Swimming Pool to Beaufort Lake, Goldfields Recreation Reserve & 


Caravan Park 
• Beaufort Primary & Secondary College to Beaufort Lake & Goldfields 


Recreation Reserve 
• Correa Park Estate (Troys Road) to Town Centre 


7.2.2	
  Issues	
  &	
  Gaps	
  
 
The issues identified around walking and cycling in the Beaufort Township are as 
follows: 
 


• Picnic facilities at Lake Beaufort, but no shade or shelter provided in this area 
or adequate signage  


• Water level at Lake Beaufort precludes use for recreational water activities, 
making it not a highly active area 


• Lack of universal access to play equipment and picnic tables at Wotherspoon 
Park  


• Picnic facilities and signage at Camp Hill Picnic Ground old and deteriorated 
• No facilities or signage at Camp Hill Look Out  
• Location of school crossing in Lawrence Street (Skipton Road) in relation to 


both Beaufort Primary and Beaufort Secondary College 
• Students from the Secondary College walking along the service road to the 


existing school crossing. School east of Lawrence Street and majority of 
south township is west of Lawrence Street 


• Traffic refuges provided, but lack of accessible crossover points over Western 
Highway along central shopping precinct. A long way to walk to traffic lights or 
one accessible central crossing points. This is particularly noticeable at key 
locations like the Library / Information Centre 


• No continuous footpath for access along Haverlock Street (East) b/w 
Bandstand and Wotherspoon Park 


 
The gaps identified around walking and cycling in the Beaufort Township are as 
follows: 
 


• No cohesive wayfinding signage throughout township 
• No connection between north and south, railway platforms or paths to existing 


rail line crossover points 
• No continuous connection to any trails at Camp Hill from Railway Station 
• No formal connection between Apex Park and the Railway Station or facilities 


on the south of the town including the Swimming Pool 
• No continuous path from the Community Church (on Lawrence Street / 


Skipton Road) to Beaufort Primary, Beaufort Secondary College, the 
Goldfields Recreation Reserve & Lake Beaufort 


• No continuous path along Western Highway to connect new development at 
Correa Park to main shopping precinct 
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• No established trails for walking or cycling from Beaufort to surrounding 
locations / natural attractions such as Lake Goldsmith, Raglan, Trawalla & 
State Park, Waterloo and Mount Cole 


 


7.2.3	
  Opportunities	
  	
  
 
The opportunities identified around walking and cycling in the Beaufort Township are 
as follows: 
 


• To develop a consistent wayfinding suite of signage to promote walking and 
cycling in town 


• To improve the direct connection between railway platforms at Beaufort 
Railway Station 


• To improve the crossing points along the Western Highway (Neill Street), but 
providing a number of further accessible crossing points in traffic refuges at 
key locations 


• To improve the access and amenity to and at Camp Hill 
• To improve the access to Lake Beaufort and support existing amenity  
• To complete path connections from bandstand to Wotherspoon Park allowing 


for continuous access 
• To create a connection from Apex Park to the Beaufort Swimming Pool 
• To investigate cycling /walking connections to the Trawalla State Park 


Campsite 
• To investigate cycling connections to Raglan and Waterloo 
• To investigate cycling connections to Mount Cole 
• To investigate the further development /continuation of the Ballarat – Skipton 


rail trail to connect to Lake Goldsmith and Beaufort 
 


7.2.4	
  Constraints	
  
 
The constraints identified around walking and cycling in the Beaufort Township are 
as follows: 
 


• Traffic flow, in particular trucks moving along both the Western Highway and 
Skipton Road / Lawrence Street (Statistics recorded by Beaufort Secondary 
College students indicated nearly 5000 vehicles per day / 1800 of them 
trucks). This makes safe pedestrian crossing difficult 


• Water level at Lake Beaufort. This decreases the attraction to this particular 
location for water activities and also reduces the quality of the natural 
environment 


• Creek corridor and likelihood of flooding in Flood Zones 
• Restricted development within Bush Fire Overlay Zones 
• Shared roads with walking. This is not so problematic with fire tracks around 


Camp Hill which do not carry high volumes of traffic, but are more problematic 
along sections of potential walkway such as Golf Course Lane 


• Poor or non-existent signage. This does not preclude the capacity for walking 
and cycling, but limits opportunities for visitors to enjoy the benefits of 
Beaufort as navigation is difficult 


• Increased development on the outer perimetres of the township 
• Outdated speed zones along Lawrence Street / Park Road 
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7.3	
  Key	
  Themes	
  
 


• Improve connections between the north township and the south township 
 


• Improve connections between key facilities 
 


• Improve standards and consistency of future path and trail construction 
 


• Improve amenity supporting current paths and trails 
 


• Promote and support walking and cycling as forms of both sustainable 
transport for residents of all ages and abilities within town 


 
• Promote and support a range of recreational walking and cycling options for 


residents and visitors of all ages, interests and abilities within town to 
improve health and wellbeing 


 
• Promote increased use of areas of environmental significance such as Lake 


Beaufort and Camp Hill 
 


• Celebrate Beaufort’s unique heritage and arts culture 
 


• Provide safer access / more direct pedestrian crossing points across the 
major roads in Beaufort Western Highway (Neill Street) in the centre of town 
and Lawrence Street, around the schools precinct 


 
• Remove old / redundant signage  


 
• Improve wayfinding signage and information on walking and cycling at key 


locations 
 


• Provide connections from the Beaufort Township to other locations, to 
increase the network of walking and cycling opportunities available for visitors 
and residents 
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8.	
  Recommendations	
  


8.1	
  General	
  
 


• Establish a network of graded walks that interconnect to provide connected 
access around Beaufort 
 


• Establish greater connection between the north of the town and the south of 
the town, through connected routes and safe crossing points  


 
• Design and develop a consistent range of wayfinding signage and establish 


appropriate locations for signage along paths and trails 
 


• Undertake a program of tree planting, landscaping and furniture installation 
where appropriate along existing and new walking and cycling routes and 
circuits 


 
• Design and develop a series of online maps for residents and visitors to 


access the walking and cycling network in Beaufort 
 


• Investigate future opportunities for pedestrian access through former Primary 
School site, particularly if this land is likely to be developed rather than kept 
as open space 


 


8.2	
  Central	
  Township	
  (including	
  Railway	
  Station	
  &	
  Schools)	
  
 


• Investigate the potential for an additional accessible and safe pedestrian 
crossing point from the Library / Information Centre to the Bandstand / Park 
as a priority 
 


• Investigate the potential for either moving the existing school crossing or 
adding an additional accessible and safe school crossing (with refuge) 
opposite the Primary and Secondary College as a priority. This will also assist 
movement from the Golf Course / Bowls Club to Goldfields Recreation 
Reserve 


 
• Investigate the opportunity for an accessible safe crossing point from the 


corner of Livingstone Street to the bus shelter / Service Station as a lower 
priority 


 
• Investigate the opportunity for an accessible safe crossing point from Apex 


Park to the former school site as a lower priority 
 


• Continue the pedestrian footpath on the east side of Lawrence Street 
(Skipton Road) from the Community Church all the way to the Primary and 
Secondary College 


 
• Or investigate the potential for a shared path system to be developed along 


the median strip (between Lawrence Street and the Service Road) from Neill 
Street to the Primary and Secondary Colleges, Beaufort Lake and Goldfields 
Recreation Reserve 
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• Introduce continuous pathways between both the east and west of Beaufort 


Railway Station and Camp Hill 
 


• Introduce continuous pathways between Beaufort Railway Station and Apex 
Park 


 
• Improve continuous pathway access along Haverlock Street between the 


Bandstand and Wotherspoon Park 
 


• Construct continuous pathway from Troys Road (Correa Park) along southern 
side of Western Highway to Central Township 


 


8.3	
  Camp	
  Hill	
  
 


• Improve the level of amenity at the Camp Hill Picnic Ground 
 


• Introduce some formal amenity and interpretation at the Camp Hill Lookout 
 


• Improve the pathway connections from Apex Park, Beaufort Station and the 
War Memorial to both the Camp Hill Picnic Ground and Camp Hill Lookout 


 
• Stabilise ground surfaces around existing paths at Camp Hill 


 
• Improve track / trails from Camp Hill to Jackson’s Reservoir 


 
• Investigate regular public toilet access in existing facilities in the north of the 


central township, as Camp Hill has no access to public toilets 
 


8.4	
  Lake	
  Beaufort	
  &	
  Surrounds	
  (including	
  Beaufort	
  Cemetery	
  &	
  Golf	
  Course)	
  
 


• Introduce some shelter over picnic tables and introduce further amenity and 
interpretive signage at Lake Beaufort 
 


• Investigate opportunities for additional picnic areas around Lake Beaufort 
 


• Improve the current condition of bird hides and boardwalks around Lake 
Beaufort 


 
• Widen circuit path in sections around the Lake Beaufort 


 


8.5	
  Greater	
  Region	
  
 


• Further investigate opportunities to work with neighbouring councils to 
improve or develop connected networks for walking and cycling 


 
• Investigate cycling connections to Raglan, Waterloo and Mount Cole 


 
• Develop improved walking and cycling connections to Lake Goldsmith and 


Trawalla State Forest Camp Ground 
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8.6	
  Access	
  &	
  Inclusion	
  
 


• Improve the width and continuity of all footpaths in the central business / 
shopping precincts 
 


• Continue to install and maintain TGSI’s (Tactile Ground Surface Indicators) at 
all road crossovers in the central business / shopping precinct and major road 
crossing points elsewhere 


 
• Improve street lighting along major routes in the central business area 


 
• Improve access from the Schools Precinct, Recreation Reserve and Caravan 


Park to and around the Beaufort Lake Circuit 
 


• Improve the entry / exit point from both the Schools Precinct and Recreation 
Reserve so traffic is clearly delineated and pedestrian crossing included 


 
• Improve some access grades in paths around the Camp Hill Picnic Ground 


 


8.7	
  Heritage	
  &	
  Arts	
  
 


• Establish and formalise an easy grade Heritage Walk around the centre of the 
Beaufort Township picking up buildings and sites of historical significance 
 


• Further develop Arts Precinct with timber bollard characters and align these 
with significant historical or sites of interest around the township 


 
• Investigate the development of a consistent suite of interpretation signage to 


sit with each of the bollard characters and sites of significance  
 


• Develop a separate walking map for the walk and combine with historical 
information already available 


 
• Investigate further opportunities for a rolling program of local public art to be 


developed. (Ideas such as the City of Ballarat’s ‘ContainART’ or ‘Unicorn 
Lane’ cabinets which host a rolling program of local art may be good starting 
point for this) 
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9.	
  Hierarchy	
  and	
  Development	
  Standards	
  for	
  Paths	
  &	
  Trails	
  


9.1	
  Hierarchy	
  
 
Establishing a hierarchy for paths and trails for the Beaufort Walkability Plan enables 
consistent development standards to be set in terms of path construction. Each 
hierarchy type also reflects a different type of application for a specific type of 
walking or cycling need. The proposed hierarchy types are as follows: 
 
 
Principle Pathway 
A principle pathway is a major, 
accessible pedestrian traffic route. 
These are usually located in high 
profile locations, connecting 
facilities and attractions. 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy: 
Category 1 (Urban Areas / 
Moderate – High Usage) 
 
 


 
 
 
Secondary Pathway 
A secondary pathway is a 
supplementary pedestrian traffic 
route. This may include standard 
neighbourhood footpaths and paths 
through parks and reserves. The 
exception is pathways created for 
access to schools that is classified 
as Category 1. 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy: 
Category 2 (Infrequently Used)  
 
 
Minor Pathway 
A minor pathway is a tertiary 
pedestrian traffic route. This 
includes neighbourhood footpaths 
found in quieter residential areas 
and parks. This type of pathway is 
preferably sealed (where 
practicable), but many be 
unsealed. 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy: 
Category 3  


 
 
 







 


 27 


 
 
Major Trail or Track 
A major trail or track is a long, 
unformalised track that has more 
than likely been created either for 
recreational hiking or bushwalking 
or for vehicle access to bushland or 
rural areas for fire protection. 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy: 
Category 3 (Unformed) 


 
 
 
Minor Trail or Track 
A minor trail or track is a short, 
unformalised track that may have 
been formed by use, rather than 
formally instituted. 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy: 
Category 3 (Unformed) 


 
 
 
Shared-Use  Pathway 
Is a pathway specifically designed 
for shared use between both 
pedestrians and cyclists. It will often 
be located on major pedestrian or 
commuter traffic routes. 
No current classification under 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy 


 
 
 
 On-Road Bicycle Lane 
All other bicycle lanes marked on 
roads. These lanes are of equal 
access and movement with cars. 
They are used by all types of 
cyclists for functional and 
recreational purposes. 
No current classification under 
Pyrenees Footpath Hierarchy 
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9.2	
  Development	
  Standards	
  
 
Development standards are used as a method of consistent approach across all of 
councils developed network of paths and trails. The standards are broken into two 
categories: those elements that must be included and those elements that could be 
included. This gives council a more flexible approach to different settings and 
situations, whilst establishing a minimum level of best practice.  
 
Level of Hierarchy: Must be / have: Could be / have: 
Principal Pathway • 2100mm and 


<2100mm wide 
• off-road 
• sealed, formalised 


and edged 
• free from 


obstructions 
• clear wayfinding 


signage  
 


• max 1:14 gradient 
• information points / 


wayfinding signage 
• adjacent artwork  
• landscaping or 


natural features 
• seating adjacent 
• shelter and other 


facilities 


Secondary Pathway • 1200mm wide 
• off-road 
• constructed or 


formalised and 
edged 


• free from 
obstructions 


• smooth 
 


• max 1:14 gradient 
• possible signage / 


information points 
• seating adjacent 
• minor signage 


Minor Pathway • 1200mm or 
>1200mm wide 


• off-road • 
 


   edged or
      constructed  where •


 
free from 
obstructions


 •
 


grade undefined
 


 


• smooth 
• minor signage 


Major Trail or Track • undefined width, 
but wide enough to 
carry vehicle traffic 
moving in one 
direction. 2 – 3m 


• formalised 
• free from 


obstructions 
• clear wayfinding 


signage 
• grade undefined 


 


•  seating adjacent  
• sealed 
• universal design 


principles applied 
where appropriate  


• shelter and other 
facilities 


Minor Trail or Track • undefined width 
• formalised or 


unformalised 
• grade undefined 


 


• free from 
obstructions 


• off-road (or may be 
shared with 
vehicles) 


     
      practicable
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• minor signage 
Shared-Use Pathway (Off-
Road) 


• 2.5 – 3m wide 
• formalised and 


edged 
• line marking to 


indicate directional 
movement 


• off-road 
• free from 


obstructions 


• sealed 
• seating adjacent 
• information points / 


wayfinding signage 
• landscaping or 


natural features 
• shelter and other 


facilities 


On-Road Bicycle Lane • as per Vic Roads 
standards for 
cycling  


• linemarking on 
road to designate 
specific space for 
bicycles 


• kept free from 
obstructions  


• clear wayfinding 
signage 


• separated from 
vehicle traffic (as 
per Copenhagen 
Bike Lane style) 


• pavement, 
outstands, parking 
or road 
modifications to 
preference cycling 
over vehicle traffic 


 


9.3	
  Design	
  Principles	
  and	
  Technical	
  Details	
  	
  
 
Design principles should be established alongside the Development Standards listed 
above. This ensures a consistent approach and standard of construction, better 
integration of sections of pathway and ease of costing for capital works planning and 
implementation. This is particularly useful in reference to new residential 
developments within the township. 
 
The Design Principles for Beaufort’s Paths and Trails can be found in Appendix C of 
this plan. 
 
Technical Details also enable a consistent approach to design and construction of 
Beaufort’s pathways ensuring better integration of new pathways with existing and 
ease of costing for capital works planning and implementation. Please note that the 
technical details included in this plan merely cover the standards for path 
construction and don’t provide design or technical specifications for signage, as it is 
advised that council seek specialist advice on the development of a suitable 
wayfinding signage suite. 
 
The Technical Details for Beaufort’s Paths and Trails can be found in Appendix C of 
this plan. 
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10.	
  Walking	
  Routes	
  and	
  Circuits	
  


10.1	
  Establishment	
  of	
  Walking	
  /	
  Cycling	
  Routes	
  and	
  Circuits	
  
 
To guide local residents and visitors to appropriate walking circuits suitable to their 
experience, ability and recreational needs it is recommended that a grading system 
be adopted. This grading system should be represented on all public information 
produced around Beaufort’s walking / cycling circuits and also be graphically 
represented on all wayfinding signage installed for circuits. 
 
The following walking grades have been adapted from the ‘Australian Walking Track 
Grading System’ and the International Mountain Bike Association ‘Trail Difficulty 
Ratings’. 


10.2	
  Route	
  /	
  Circuit	
  Grades:	
  Walking	
  
 
Very Easy  
 
Suitable for all, including the disabled with assistance 
 


• Less than 5kms 
• Flat 
• Well formed track or structured path 
• No experience required 
• No steps 


 
Easy  
 
Suitable for families with young children 
 


• Less than 10kms 
• Mostly flat, with some gentle hills 
• Well formed track or structured path 
• No experience required 
• Occasional steps 


 
Intermediate  
 
Recommended for people with some bushwalking / hiking experience 
 


• Less than 20kms 
• Some short steep hills with some gentler hills and flat sections 
• Formed track, possible obstacles 
• Some bushwalking / hiking experience required 
• Many steps 


 
Difficult   
 
Recommended for experienced bushwalkers / hikers 
 


• More than 20kms 
• Very steep 
• Rough track, many obstacles 
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• Limited signage 
• Experienced bushwalkers / hikers 


 
Extreme   
 
Recommended for experienced bushwalkers / hikers only 
 


• More than 20kms 
• Very steep and difficult 
• Rough, unformed track 
• No directional signage 
• Very experienced bushwalkers / hikers 


10.3	
  Route	
  /	
  Circuit	
  Grades:	
  Cycling	
  
 
Very Easy (Road / Hybrid Bicycle) 
 


• Likely to be an off road bike path or shared path  
• Gentle gradient 
• Hardened surface 
• Smooth surface and free of obstacles 
• Frequent encounters with other cyclists / walkers or horse riders 
• Climbs and descents are mostly shallow  
• Max trail grade 10% 
• Firm and level fall zone to either side of the trail corridor 


 
Easy (Road / Hybrid / BMX) 
 


• Likely to be a combination of shared path, track or minor road 
• Gentle gradient 
• Mostly firm or stable surface 
• Smooth surface and relatively free of obstacles 
• Short sections may exceed the above criteria 
• Frequent encounters with other cyclists / walkers or horse riders 
• Climbs and descents are mostly shallow, with some moderately steep 


sections 
• Max trail grade 15% 
• Possible shallow slopes to either side of trail corridor 


 
Intermediate (Road / Hybrid / BMX / Mountain Bike) 
 


• Likely to be either a single trail or road 
• Moderate gradient 
• Possible sections of rocky or loose tread 
• Variable surface and some obstacles 
• Dual use or preferred use 
• Mostly moderate gradients, but may include steep sections 
• Max trail grade 20% or greater 
• Possible moderate slopes to either side of trail corridor 


 
Difficult (Mountain Bike only) 
 


• Likely to be challenging single trail  
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• Steep gradients 
• Variable and challenging surface and many obstacles 
• Single use and direction 
• XC, DH or Trials 
• Contains steeper descents and climbs 
• Max trail grade 20% or greater 
• Possible steep downward slopes or free-fall to either side of trail corridor 


 
Extreme (Mountain Bike only) 
 


• Extremely difficult trails 
• Very steep gradients 
• Highly variable and unpredictable surface and unavoidable obstacles 
• Single use and direction 
• XC, DH or Trials 
• Expect prolonged steep, loose and rocky descents or climbs 
• Max trail grade 40% or greater 
• Possible steep downward slopes or free-fall to either side of trail corridor 


10.4	
  Proposed	
  Information	
  Points	
  
 
The following key information points are recommended for signage and or walking 
information. These have been selected because of their importance for community 
gathering or information and represent the starting points for many of these circuits, 
because they have car parks or public transport access: 
 


• Haverlock Street Park Bandstand / Community Noticeboard 
• Beaufort Railway Station 
• Camp Hill Picnic Ground 
• Lake Beaufort Picnic Area 
• Apex Park (Beggs Street) 


 
Included at these key information points should also be close access to toilet 
facilities, bike hoops or racks for bike parking, drinking fountains and seating. 	
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10.5	
  Proposed	
  Walking	
  /	
  Cycling	
  Routes	
  &	
  Circuits	
  
 
The following represent the proposed new walking / cycling circuits for Beaufort to be 
established and their grading. These circuits also seek to upgrade and improve paths 
and trails for functional walking and cycling: 
 
EASY / VERY EASY: 


1. Heritage / Arts Trail: Haverlock Street Park Bandstand – Beaufort 
Railway Station (Walking Very Easy) 1.5kms 
 


2. Lake Beaufort Circuit (Walking Easy / Equestrian) 1.5kms 
 
INTERMEDIATE: 


3. Lake Beaufort – Beaufort Cemetery – Goldfields Recreation Reserve / 
Lake Beaufort Circuit  (Walking Intermediate / Cycling Easy) 3.7kms 
 


4. Lake Beaufort – Beaufort Cemetery – Beaufort Swimming Pool – Apex 
Park – Beaufort Railway Station (Walking Intermediate / Cycling Easy) 
3.5kms 
 


5. Haverlock Street Park Bandstand to Trawalla State Forest Rest Area 
(along Neill Street East / Avenue of Honour) (Walking Intermediate / 
Cycling Intermediate) 9.8kms 


 
6. Beaufort Railway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via Jackson Street / 


Muntz Lane) (Walking Intermediate) 1km 
 


7. Beaufort Railway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via King Street / Camp 
Hill Picnic Ground) (Walking Intermediate / Cycling Intermediate) 1.2kms 
 


8. Beaufort Raliway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via Lawrence Street / 
Acton Lane) (Walking Intermediate) 1.3kms 
 


9. Camp Hill Picnic Ground to Camp Hill Lookout (Walking Intermediate) 
300m 


 
DIFFICULT: 


10. Beaufort Railway Station – Raglan Recreation Reserve (Cycling Difficult 
/ Equestrian) 10.5kms 
 


11. Beaufort Raliway Station – Waterloo (Cycling Intermediate) 8.4kms 
 


12. Lake Beaufort – Lake Goldsmith (future cycling connection / extension 
to existing Skipton Rail Trail via Cheesemans Road) (Walking Difficult / 
Cycling Intermediate) 13.8kms 
 


13. Haverlock Street Bandstand to Ferntree Waterfall, Mount Buangor 
(Cycling Difficult) 25kms 


 
14. Haverlock Street Park Bandstand to Mount Cole State Forest – 


Mugwamp Camp Ground (Berripimo Walk) (Cycling Difficult) 41.9kms 
 


 
Maps of these individual routes and circuits can be found in Appendix B of this plan. 
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11.	
  Implementation	
  


11.1	
  Community	
  Education	
  &	
  Promotion	
  
 
In order to increase the number of people walking and cycling, it can be beneficial to 
introduce an education program, incorporating the benefits of such activities to 
health, wellbeing and independence, as well as the obvious environmental impacts. 
 
An education program could be either supported by existing recreation programs or 
facilities or introduced through the Beaufort Community Centre and Beaufort Primary 
and Secondary College. This program should focus on the use of roads and trails 
(not only to cyclists and recreational walkers), but also to others who may share the 
road such as motorists. Programs targeting cyclists could also focus on bike 
maintenance and riding skill development. 
 
Alongside of the education programs, should be the continued development of a 
variety walking and cycling groups / programs in the town and the encouragement of 
groups from outside of the region to use facilities. Programs in town should target the 
needs of particular demographics such as lunchtime walks for workers, fitness for 
older residents, walking to school, guided heritage or arts strolls, as well as weekend 
recreational bushwalking or cycling groups. 
 
To promote these groups and the continuing development of a Beaufort walking and 
cycling network, Council should aim to provide information and maps at key 
information centres around the Beaufort Township as well as improve wayfinding 
signage around town. 
 
The use of the community newsletter, social media and council website for promotion 
of ongoing development and activation of the walking and cycling network is 
encouraged, as is the promotion of these recreational opportunities at regional 
events and festivals where appropriate. 
 


11.2	
  Programming	
  and	
  Budget	
  
 
It would be anticipate that a recurring program of capital improvements and new 
projects would be established as a key action of the Beaufort Walkability Plan.  
 
In the following section the Action Plan examines the prioritising of improvement 
works for paths and trails into HIGH, MEDIUM and LOW priorities.  
 
HIGH (A-B) – These priorities should be completed between 1-4 years 
MEDIUM (B-D) – These priorities should be completed between 5 -7 years 
LOW (E) – These priorities should be completed between 8+ years 
 
Some of the improvement works may be accommodated under other already existing 
programs and budgets. Council is also encouraged to seek additional external 
funding where appropriate to assist with the timely completion of works. 
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12.	
  Priority	
  Planning	
  
 
*Please note: The priorities below may change over time due to budgets and 
community needs 


12.1	
  Short	
  Term	
  Priorities	
  
 
No: Action: Priority: 
1.0 Review existing signage around town and decommission 


out of date signage 
A 


1.1 Design and develop a series of online maps for residents 
and visitors of walking and cycling trails and locate at key 
locations 


A 


1.2 Investigate the potential for an additional accessible safe-
crossing point (or modification to traffic existing refuges) 
from Library / Information Centre / Public Toilets - 
Bandstand 


A 


1.3 Investigate the potential for either moving the existing 
school crossing or adding an additional safe school crossing 
point opposite the Primary / Secondary School for students 
to cross Lawrence Street 


A 


1.4  Investigate the potential for a shared-use path to be 
developed along the median strip (between Lawrence Street 
and the service road) from Neill Street to the Goldfields 
Recreation Reserve  


A 


1.5 OR alternately continue the pedestrian footpath along the 
east side of Lawrence Street from the Community Church 
all the way to the Primary / Secondary School  


A 


1.6 Review speed zones along Lawrence Street / Park Road to 
match current conditions and locations of school crossings 


A 


1.7 Construct new footpath along south-side of Western 
Highway between Troys Road (Correa Park) and the 
Central Township Area 


A 


1.8 Improve entry, shade, paths and amenity at Apex Park 
around Youth Space and Playground 


A-B 


1.9 Improve the level of amenity at Camp Hill Picnic Ground A-B 
1.10 Introduce some tree planting and interpretive signage in and 


around the Lake Beaufort Picnic Ground to provide 
improved shade and shelter 


A-B 


1.11 Establish and formalise an easy grade Heritage Walk 
around the centre of the Beaufort Township picking up 
buildings and sites of significance 


A 


1.12 Further develop and implement Arts Project with timber 
bollard characters and align these with significant sites on 
the Heritage Walk  


A-B 


1.13 Investigate suitable access to public toilet facilities on north 
side of township, given that Camp Hill has no access to public 
toilets 


A 


1.14 Improve continuity and quality of footpaths in the central 
township (refer data collection) 


A-B 


1.15 Investigate traffic options for driveway entry / exit at Schools 
and Recreation Reserve in terms of right of way and 
pedestrian crossing 


A-B 
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1.14 Improve access from Beaufort Secondary College to the 
Central Goldfields Recreation Reserve and Lake Beaufort 
through new pathway from Lawrence Street to Lake 
Beaufort Picnic Area and Beaufort Secondary College to 
Lake Circuit 


A-B 


1.15 Improve the pathway connections the War Memorial to both 
Camp Hill Picnic Ground and Camp Hill Lookout, stabilizing 
ground and formalising paths for safe, continuous access 


B 


1.16 Develop a separate walking map and combine with Heritage 
Walk information already available to public 


B 


1.17 Publish walking routes and circuits to ‘Victoria Walks’ 
Website once endorsed by council 


B 


 


12.2	
  Medium	
  Term	
  Priorities	
  
 
No: Action: Priority: 
2.0 Design and develop a consistent suite of wayfinding 


signage templates (Municipal Wide) and establish locations 
for signage along existing paths and trails 


B-C 


2.1 Undertake a program of tree-planting and landscaping 
where appropriate along existing and new walking and 
cycling routes 


B-D 


2,2 Introduce some formal amenity (seating etc.) and 
interpretive signage at Camp Hill Lookout 


B-C 


2.3 Improve the condition of Bird Hides and Boardwalks around 
Lake Beaufort 


B-C 


2.4 Introduce continuous pathways between both east and west 
of Beaufort Railway Station and Camp Hill 


C 


2.5 Investigate future opportunities for pedestrian access 
through former Primary School Site, particularly if land is 
likely to be developed rather than kept as open space 


C 


2.6 Improve continuous footpath access along Haverlock Street 
between the bandstand and Wotherspoon Park 


C 


2.7 Improve universal access to picnic tables & playground at 
Wotherspoon Park 


C 


2.8 Investigate the opportunity for a new accessible safe 
crossing point on Neill Street from Apex Park to the Former 
Primary School Site 


D 


 


12.3	
  Long	
  Term	
  Priorities	
  
 
No: Action: Priority: 
3.0 Investigate additional opportunities for new picnic areas 


around Lake Beaufort 
E 


3.1 Improve Tracks and Trails from Camp Hill to Jackson’s 
Reservoir 


E 


3.2 Improve street lighting along major routes where required D-E 
3.3 Further investigate opportunities to work with neighbouring 


councils to improve or develop connected networks for 
walking and cycling; in particular connections to Lake 
Goldsmith and Trawalla State Forest Camp Ground 


E 
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13.	
  APPENDIX	
  A	
  –	
  Overall	
  Beaufort	
  Walkability	
  Maps	
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14.	
  APPENDIX	
  B	
  –	
  Mapping	
  of	
  Graded	
  Routes	
  and	
  Circuits	
  
 
 
 	
  







Beaufort  Railway Station to 
Camp Hill Lookout Walk 
 
(VIA JACKSONS STREET / MUNTZ LANE 
CENTRAL) 
 


• Easy – 300m / Intermediate – 700m   
• On-road & off road terrain  


 
The walk from Beaufort Railway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via Jacksons  
Street / Muntz Lane) provides a further opportunity to connect the north west 
side of the township in particular the Railway Station / Bus Terminal with the 
Camp Hill Lookout. The walk enters Camp Hill via a path that runs from Muntz 
Lane straight up the hill to the Lookout at the summit. Once at Camp Hill 
Lookout there is the opportunity to connect with other trails to further afield 
such as Jackson Reservoir. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages, but more challenging in sections with some 
steeper uphill and uneven surfaces. Not wheelchair accessible. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 







Beaufort  Railway Station to 
Camp Hill Lookout Walk 
 
(VIA KING STREET / MUNTZ LANE EAST) 
 


• Easy - 500m / Intermediate – 500m / Difficult 300m 
• On-road & off road terrain  


 
The walk from Beaufort Railway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via King Street 
and ) provides an opportunity to connect the north west side of the township in 
particular the Railway Station / Bus Terminal with the Camp Hill Lookout. The 
walk heads west from the Railway Station and enters Camp Hill via Muntz 
Lane, off Jackson Street. Follow the main trail and take the lower trail at the 
fork which runs along the lower ridge of Camp Hill. The trail moves uphill at 
Acton Lane and connects with the vehicle fire track along the top ridge 
heading west to Camp Hill Lookout. Once at Camp Hill Lookout there is the 
opportunity to connect with other trails to further afield such as Jackson 
Reservoir. 
 
This walk is not suitable for all ages, but more challenging in sections with 
some steeper uphill and uneven surfaces. Not wheelchair accessible. 
 
 
 


 


  


 







Beaufort  Railway Station to 
Camp Hill Lookout Walk 
 
(VIA KING STREET / CAMP HILL PICNIC 
GROUND) 
 


• Easy – 1km / Intermediate 800m 
• On-road & off road terrain  


 
The walk from Beaufort Railway Station to Camp Hill Lookout (via King Street) 
provides an opportunity to connect the north west side of the township in 
particular the Railway Station / Bus Terminal with the Camp Hill Lookout. The 
walk enters Camp Hill via the Picnic Ground that provides information and 
amenities to walkers. Once at Camp Hill Lookout there is the opportunity to 
connect with other trails to further afield such as Jackson Reservoir. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages, but more challenging in sections with some 
steeper uphill and uneven surfaces. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 







Camp Hill Picnic Ground to 
Camp Hill Lookout Walk 
 


• Intermediate – 700m 
• On road terrain  


 
The walk from Camp Hill Picnic Ground to Camp Hill Lookout is a short, steep 
ascent to the summit of Camp Hill. The Picnic Ground provides information 
and amenities to walkers and can be accessed by car from King Street. Once 
at Camp Hill Lookout there is the opportunity to connect with other trails to 
further afield such as Jackson Reservoir. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages, but more challenging in sections with some 
windy steeper uphill sections and uneven surfaces. This walk is on road 
following the main vehicle path to the summit lookout. Not wheelchair 
accessible.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


   
 







Correa Park (Troys Road) to 
Haverlock Street (Bandstand) 
 


• Very easy / Easy – 1 km  
• Off-road terrain  
• Constructed path 


 
The walk between Troys Road, Correa Park and the Haverlock Street 
Bandstand connects new residents to the western outskirts of Beaufort with 
the amenities of the central township. This walk can also be connected with 
the Heritage / Arts Walk to take in Beaufort’s history and vibrant, creative life. 
 
Walkers will also find this walk an introduction to this creative township via 
many artisan’s businesses and cafes & fine food along the way. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages and abilities. 
 
Note: This walk requires additional path connections to be made before it is 
complete 
 
 
 
 
 


  


 


 


 







Heritage Arts Trail Walk 
 


• Very easy / Easy – 1.5 km (or less) 
• Off-road terrain  
• Constructed path 


 
The Beaufort Heritage Arts Trail Walk is an opportunity to guide walkers 
around the many historical sites of significance that the centre of the Beaufort  
Township has to offer. Taking in heritage architecture on Neill Street and 
Lawrence Streets, past the historic Beaufort Railway Station and War 
Memorial to the Band Rotunda, Weighbridge and Mechanics Institute. 
 
Complemented by a local arts project representing different local characters 
which tell the walker local stories about the township. For further information 
on Beaufort’s heritage buildings and sites collect a ‘Beaufort Heritage Walk 
Guide’ from the information points. 
 
Walkers will also find this walk an introduction to this creative township via 
many artisan’s businesses and cafes & fine food along the way. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages and abilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 
 







Lake Beaufort Circuit Walk 
 


• Easy – 1.5 km 
• On-road terrain  
• Formalised path (not constructed) 


 
The Lake Beaufort Circuit Walk is 5kms of relatively easy walk on a flat grade 
around the perimetre of Lake Beaufort, one of the townships natural 
attractions. Lake Beaufort is in a native bushland setting and as well as being 
adjacent to the Central Goldfields Recreation Reserve, Beaufort Caravan Park 
and Beaufort Primary and Secondary Schools, offers a range of recreational 
opportunities. Boardwalks and Bird-hides invite the walker to experience the 
local fauna and flora and there is a fitness station not far from the Caravan 
Park. Walkers can also utilise seats, picnic tables and toilets available at the 
site. 
 
This walk is an easy walk, suitable to walkers of all ages and abilities. There 
are bench seats at regular intervals. Whilst the grade is relatively flat, the path 
is not constructed. 
 
 
Note: This walk requires some additional path connections to be made before 
it is complete 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 
 







Lake Beaufort to Beaufort  
Lake Circuit  
 
(VIA BEAUFORT CEMETERY / SWIMMING 
POOL / LAWRENCE STREET AND 
RECREATION RESERVE) 
 


• Easy – 3.5 kms / Intermediate – 2.5 kms 
• On-road & off road terrain  


 
The walk from Lake Beaufort to Beaufort Lake Circuit not only provides the 
opportunity to connect the south-east side of the township, but also connects 
the town’s recreation facilities (such as Wotherspoon Park Playground, Toilets 
& Picnic Facilities, the Recreation Oval, Golf Course and Swimming Pool) and 
provides a walking / cycling circuit within a circuit. This walk also takes in the 
main route connecting the central township with the schools precinct. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages, but is more challenging in length / distance. 
Surfaces may in some parts be wheelchair accessible, but not in other parts. 
 
Picnic facilities are available at the Lake and there are toilets at the Lake 
Beaufort Camp Ground. 
 
Note: This walk requires additional path connections to be made before it is 
complete 
 
 


   


 
 







Lake Beaufort to Beaufort  
Railway Station Walk 
 
(VIA BEAUFORT CEMETERY / SWIMMING 
POOL / APEX PARK) 
 


• Easy – 1.5 kms / Intermediate – 2 kms 
• On-road & off road terrain  


 
The walk from Lake Beaufort to Beaufort Railway Station provides the 
opportunity to connect the east side of the township both north and south and 
provide a relatively easy access way from the Railway Station / Bus Terminal 
to Lake Beaufort for sports, events and general recreation. This walk also 
takes in the historic Beaufort Cemetery and connects recreation facilities such 
as the Beaufort Youth Park (Apex Park) and the Beaufort Swimming Pool. 
 
This walk is suitable for all ages, but is more challenging in sections. 
 
 
Note: This walk requires additional path connections to be made before it is 
complete 
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15.	
  APPENDIX	
  C	
  –	
  Design	
  Principles,	
  Technical	
  Details	
  &	
  Costs	
  
 


15.1	
  General	
  Design	
  Principles	
  for	
  New	
  Paths,	
  Tracks	
  or	
  Trails	
  
 
A series of basic principals have been developed as a tool to assist with the 
development and management of quality pathways, tracks and trails. The following 
are key questions for consideration across a range of different aspects associated 
with pathways, tracks and trails when implementing a new project: 
 
Well-Used Paths, Tracks & Trails 
Rationale: In order to develop well-used paths, tracks and trails it is important that 
they are thoughtfully designed, maintained and managed. 


• Is this path located in an area pedestrians want or need to go? 
• Does it provide the level of experience desired? 
• Is it well connected or signposted? 
• Is it well promoted? 
• Does it have the appropriate level of amenity, signage, landscaping and 


public art desired? 
 
Location 
Rationale: The location of the path, track or trail plays a major role in whether or not it 
is utilised. Paths should clearly connect destinations or be a destination in 
themselves 


• Does the path start and end in an appropriately connected location, either to 
other paths or transport? 


• Is the path located off-road or on a road and how busy or narrow is that road? 
• Does the path involve multiple busy highway or road crossings? 
• Are there suitable safe crossing points? 


 
General Connections 
Rationale: It is important that paths, tracks and trails that are developed link to 
existing paths, tracks or trail networks within the township and beyond. This 
encourages local residents and visitors to use them more. 


• Does the path connect with key services or attractions or paths, tracks or 
trails that do? 


• Is the path a self-contained loop circuit or part of a wider route?  
• If the path is a self-contained loop circuit can users access it clearly and 


easily? 
 
Suitable Widths, Surfaces and Grades 
Rationale: Widths, surfaces and grades should be clearly ‘fit for purpose’ and 
information should be readily available to guide users appropriately. For example a 
flat sealed and constructed path is not suitable for mountain biking. 


• Are the widths, surfaces and grades fit for the type or use required? 
• Are there options for longer and shorter distances where appropriate to cater 


for different users? 
• Is the path robust enough for its purpose? 
• Is there adequate drainage? 
• Is there clear signage and does it match the grade / purpose of the path, track 


or trail? 
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Connection to Transport 
Rationale: Where possible path circuits or routes should begin or end at a public car 
park and with high profile destinations also public transport 


• Does the path need to connect with local public transport options? 
• If a self-contained loop circuit does the path begin and end at a public car 


park?  
• Can the car park support the use of the path; including parking for buses and 


caravans? 
• If a self-contained loop does the path begin and end at a path connection to a 


wider route? 
 
Signage & Maps 
Rationale: Signage is a critical element to encourage greater use of paths, tracks and 
trails. Wayfinding signage in strategic locations provides critical knowledge on 
direction, grade and distance of destinations. This should be coupled with maps to 
assist users with planning and orientation. 


• Is existing signage legible, accurate and up to date? 
• Is there clear wayfinding signage provided including; destinations and 


distances, grades, amenity and maps (where appropriate)? 
• If there is no signage, where are the key locations to stop, rest or change 


direction?  
• Is there a map with information about this path, track or trail easily available 


from key destinations? 
• Does the information on the map correspond to the signage on site? 


 
Amenity 
Rationale: Amenity such as toilets, lighting, seats, bins, and drinking fountains are 
important in key locations to provide support for path, tracks and trail users.  


• Are there public toilets provided in key path, track and trail destinations? Are 
these toilets open regularly to the public? 


• Are there picnic tables, drinking fountains, bins and seating provided at key 
destinations? 


• Are these maintained routinely? 
• If the path is a loop circuit are there seats provided at regular intervals ? 
• Is there lighting provided in major thoroughfares at night and in the early 


morning? 
• Is the path, track or trail in an area that caters for dogs walking on lead and 


off lead or not at all? 
• Are there other activities that could be incorporated into the path, track or trail 


(i.e. Fitness Station)? 
 
Landscaping & the Natural Environment 
Rationale: Given that walking and cycling take place outdoors, not only is it important 
to provide tree shelter from the elements but it is also important that the paths, tracks 
and trails seek to enhance the local landscape and add to the experience  


• Is there adequate shade at intervals throughout the route or circuit loop? 
• Does the path maximise the surrounding natural environment by creating 


views and destinations? 
• Are there trees planted to provide shade around picnic areas and 


destinations? 
• Are existing trees regularly inspected and well maintained? 
• Does the planting around the pathway, track or trail enhance the local 


character of the environment? 
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Universal Access 
Rationale: It is important to provide a range of challenges across all paths, trails and 
tracks, which includes inclusive design that responds to universal design principals 


• Is the path for universal access?  
• Does it have a shallow grade and is it smooth and of a flat or even grade? 
• Is the path clearly signposted and is the information clearly visible? 
• Are there accessible public toilets, seating, picnic tables and drinking 


fountains close by? 
 
Public Art 
Rationale: Public Art in a suitable strategic location can add great value to the user 
experience of the environment or become a destination in themselves 


• Is this an appropriate location in terms of visibility, heritage and access for 
public art? 


• Is the public artwork respectful of the local landscape environment? 
• Will the public artwork enhance the experience of the walk or ride for the 


user? 


	
  


15.2	
  Rates	
  for	
  Path	
  Construction	
  (2015)	
  
 
The following table outlines the costs for construction of the range of pathway types 
outlined in this plan and found on the following pages. The costs are by m2 for 
construction and include both supply of materials and labour for construction: 
 
DETAIL	
  
NO:	
   DESCRIPTION:	
   STANDARD	
  WIDTH:	
   RATE	
  per	
  


m2	
   NOTES:	
  


SD-­‐01	
  
Concrete	
  Footpath	
  
(with	
  reinforcement)	
   1200-­‐2100mm	
   $82.00	
   	
  	
  


SD-­‐02	
  
Concrete	
  Footpath	
  (no	
  
reinforcement)	
   1200-­‐2100mm	
   $77.00	
   	
  	
  


SD-­‐03	
  
Asphalt	
  Footpath	
  (with	
  
timber	
  edge)	
   1200-­‐2100mm	
   $69.00	
  


for	
  areas	
  greater	
  than	
  
30m2	
  


	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   $133.00	
  
for	
  areas	
  less	
  than	
  


30m2	
  


SD-­‐04	
  
Concrete	
  Shared	
  Path	
  
(with	
  reinforcement)	
   2500-­‐3000mm	
   $95.00	
   	
  	
  


SD-­‐05	
  
Asphalt	
  Shared	
  Path	
  
(with	
  timber	
  edge)	
   2500-­‐3000mm	
   $90.00	
  


for	
  areas	
  greater	
  than	
  
30m2	
  


	
  	
   	
  	
   	
  	
   $120.00	
  
for	
  areas	
  less	
  than	
  


30m2	
  


SD-­‐06	
  


Compacted	
  Granitic	
  
Gravel	
  Footpath	
  (with	
  
timber	
  edge)	
   1200-­‐1500mm	
   $26.00	
   	
  	
  


SD-­‐07	
  
Tuscan	
  Toppings	
  
Footpath	
  (no	
  edge)	
   1000-­‐1500mm	
   $35.00	
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16.	
  APPENDIX	
  D	
  –	
  Main	
  Pathway	
  Data	
  	
  
 


16.1	
  Pathway	
  Data	
  Collection	
  
 
As discussed in Section 7.2 site data was collected around the following existing 
pathways in Beaufort. This data was collected using a hand-held tablet with GPS 
capacity and data entered to locations with GPS coordinates for identification and 
mapping purposes. 
 


• Scout Hall – Albert Street / King Street – War Memorial Park – Neill 
Street Nth 


• Neill Street Sth / Bandstand Park – Haverlock Street East – 
Wotherspoon Park / Lawrence Street 


• Lawrence Street – Leichardt Street Sth – Beaufort Swimming Pool 
• Lawrence Street / Park Road East – Beaufort Primary & Secondary 


(School Precinct) 
• Neill Street Sth (between Lawrence & Haverlock Streets) 
• Neill Street Nth (between Lawrence & War Memorial Park) 
• Lawrence Street Nth / West – Willoby Street 
• Lawrence Street Nth / East – Willoby Street 
• Neill Street Nth (Lawrence Street Nth – Beggs Street (Apex Park) 
• Apex Park (Neill Street Entry – Skatepark / Youth Space) 
• Apex Park (Beggs Street / Willoby Street – Baker Street) 


 


16.2	
  Information	
  Collected	
  
 
Criteria including Footpath Attributes, Accessibility & Issues were entered at each of 
the above locations. Under each of these criteria were a series of questions and the 
opportunity to photograph specific locations and attached the image to the data 
record. The following data was collected: 
 
Footpath Attributes: 
 
Location Name 
Footpath Type (ie. Major Pathway / Minor Pathway / Trail etc.) 
Footpath Length  
Footpath Width 
Surface Material (ie. Asphalt / Concrete / Compacted Gravel etc.) 
Condition Rating (ie 1- New to 10 – Poor etc.) 
Renewal / Replacement (ie. No renewal replacement needed, Minor renewal etc.) 
Comments 
 
Accessibility: 
Description (ie. Fit for Purpose / Widening Need etc.) 
Comments 
 
Issues: 
Description (ie. Overhanging trees blocking access, Trip hazards, Lifting - tree roots 
etc.) 
Comments 
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16.3	
  Limitations	
  of	
  Data	
  Collection	
  
 
There were several areas where the data collection didn’t quite allow for suitable 
information to be added. This was as follows: 
 


• Only some areas / locations covered 
• Footpath width didn’t allow for paths of varying widths along its length 
• Diffficult to register no set width with unmade dirt or grassed paths (in this 


situation a standard width of 900mm was used 
• Surface Material didn’t allow for multiple materials to be recorded along its 


length (for example the main street is both exposed aggregate and asphalt in 
sections) 


• Likewise Condition Rating didn’t allow for multiple ratings against sections of 
a length or path 


• Accessibility Description didn’t cater for instances where accessibility issues 
related to gaps in continuations of paths or where no path existed precluding 
access 


• Issues Description didn’t cater for issues where there weren’t suitable, safe 
crossing points 


• Issues Description did not have a category for drainage issues 
• Only one photograph could be taken per record 


 
 









